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IN THE

United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

K-91, Inc.,

Appellant,

No. 20074

Gershwin Publishing Corporation, et al.,

Appellees.

Appeal from the United States District Court for
The Western District of Washington,

Northern Division

Honorable Gus J. Solomon, Chief Judge

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

STATEMENT DISCLOSING JURISDICTION

The United States District Court for the Western Dis-

trict of Washington, Northern Division, the trial court,

had jurisdiction of this cause by virtue of the Judiciary

and Judicial Procedure Act, 28 U.S.C.A. §§ 1337 and 1338.

The complaint of appellees (R. 1) discloses that ap-

pellees were the owners of copyrights to musical com-

positions alleged to have been infringed by appellant and

that the appellees sued the appellant under the Copyright

Act, 17 U.S.C.A. §§1 and 101, for infringement seeking

damages and injunctions.

The appellant answered ( R. 4 ) alleging the appellees

were misusing their copyrights, including the copyrights
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in question in violation of public policy and Sections 1

and 2 of the Sherman Act, U.S.C. §§1 and 2, and, there-

fore come into court with unclean hands, and were barred

from receiving relief. Appellant also counterclaimed (R. 4)

for damages and injunctive relief pursuant to the Federal

Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 13(a), 28 U.S.C.A., Sec-

tions 1 and 2 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. §§1 and 2,

and Sections 4 and 16 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 15

and 26.

This appeal is from a final judgment rendered in the

United States District Court for the Western District,

Northern Division, against appellant (R. 11). This court

has jurisdiction to review such judgment by virtue of the

Judiciary and Judicial Procedure Act, 28 U.S.C.A. § 1291.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Nature of the Action

Appellees, owners of copyrights to certain musical

compositions, filed actions against three radio broadcast-

ing stations and an individual officer and stockholder of

one of them, claiming violations of the federal copyright

law. Appellees seek damages for infringement and in-

junctions restraining future infringement of their copy-

righted works, as well as attorney fees and costs.

^

The appellants admitted that the musical compositions

named in appellee's complaints were performed on its

1. In a period of eighteen months appellees and other members of

ASCAP brought 15 separate suits against II radio stations in Washing-
ton, alleging 272 separate copyright infringements (R. 30, Fact 40, p. 8).

The minimum statutory damages demanded was $68,000 and the max-
imum demanded was $1,360,000, plus attorneys fees and costs. Several

of these suits were settled before trial, several settled after trial, and the

present one was appealed.
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radio station without first obtaining a license to perform

them, but it contended that the copyright owners were

misusing their copyrights in violation of public policy

and state and federal laws and are themselves barred

from maintaining their actions and entitled to no relief.

Specifically the appellant claimed appellees illegally ex-

tended their copyrights, appellees' method of doing busi-

ness was in violation of the Sherman Antitrust Act (15

U.S.C.A. §§ 1-7), and appellees violated the Constitution

and the laws of the State of Washington, Chapter 218,

1937 Session Laws (RCW, Chapter 19.24). Appellant

contended that by reason of "unclean hands " the copy-

right owners have neither legal nor equitable standing to

maintain their actions.

The alleged improper use of the copyrights and viola-

tions of the antitrust laws were also the basis of a counter-

claim filed by the appellant wherein the appellant sought

treble damages and orders enjoining the copyright oviTiers

from further misuse of their copyrights, pursuant to Rule

13(a) of the Federal Rules of CivU Procedure and Sec-

tions 4 and 16 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. §§ 15, 26).

The district court found that the copyright owners had

not unlawfully extended their copyrights or violated

either the federal antitrust laws or the laws of Washington

State, and that their actions were not barred by reason of

"unclean hands." As the appellant did not contest the in-

fringements of the musical copyrights, the district court

granted the appellees injunctions, damages and counsel

fees.

Subsequent to the lower court's decision, the actions

involving two of the corporate radio station defendants



4

and the individual defendant were settled and satisfac-

tions of judgments were entered ( R. 49, Settlement Agree-

ment). The action involving one of the corporate radio

stations, K-91, Inc., was not settled and the defendant

elected to appeal.

The Appellant

The appellant operates a radio station with the call

letters KIXI, located in Seattle, Washington, pursuant to

a license granted by the Federal Communications Com-

mission (R. 37, Fact 3, Tr. 15-16).

Seattle is the hub of a major metropolitan area. KIXI

is one of 14 radio stations and five commercial television

stations competing in the maiket. There are also scores

of movie theatres in the Greater Seattle-Tacoma metro-

politan area. In addition there are hundreds of night spots,

restaurants, hotels, theatres, symphonies and other estab-

lishments which perform music as a part of their public

offerings. The appellant and the defendants who chose not

to appeal broadcast only a special style of programming

which requires a pre-selected kind of music. This music

style is described or characterized in broadcasting circles

as "good music" programming or playing "standards" (Tr.

8-11). Appellant never broadcasts western, hillbilly, rock

and roll or jazz (Tr. 9). It seldom broadcasts religious

music, but relies almost exclusively on popular standards

and hght classical styles. The kind of sound the station

tries to project to attract and hold its audience is of ex-

treme importance and the selection of music therefore is

critical (Tr. 9, 171, 210). The greatest source of the kind

of music appellant needs is controlled by the licensing
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agency of which appellees are members (Tr. 165, 205,

273). The appellant must be able to broadcast this music

to remain in business (Tr. 165, 205, 246, 273, 314) (R. 37,

Fact 18).

The Nature of the Copyrights

The Copyright Act of 1909 defines the various rights

granted to copyright owners. Among these are the right

of mechanical reproduction or the recording right (e.g.

phonograph records) and the right to perform the work

publicly for profit (e.g. radio broadcasts). The perform-

ance right is the primary right involved herein. It is

distinct from the right to print sheet music, or the right

to record music on records or on motion picture films.

The latter is called in the trade a synchronization right.

It will be seen later that both recording and synchroniza-

tion rights are licensed differently from performance

rights.

Broadcasters are not the only ones needing performance

rights. Movie theatres need the rights when a sound-

recorded film is shown. Night clubs perform music for

profit, as do symphonies, theatres, restaurants, hotels, pri-

vate clubs, dance halls, skating rinks, cocktail lounges,

etc. (Tr. 5). All perform music extensively and all must

be licensed. Appellees license performance rights to

broadcasters on a pooled basis and in bulk. This is ac-

complished by assignment of the music performing rights

to the American Society of Composers, Authors & Pub-

lishers ( R. 37, Facts 20, 21 ).
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The American Society of Composers,

Authors and Publishers

The Nature of ASCAP

ASCAP is a voluntary association which was organized

in 1914 for the purpose of Hcensing the pubUc perform-

ance of musical compositions of which the members

owned the copyrights. It was felt that a large organiza-

tion with nationwide coverage could police for infringe-

ments, and if any were detected, ASCAP would attempt

to get the infringer to take a blanket license covering all

of the works of its combined members. If the infringer

refused, ASCAP would have a suit filed for infringement.

(For background, see AJden-Rochelle, Inc. v. ASCAP,

80 F.Supp. 888 ( 1948 ) at 891.

)

The procedure was then and still is that each member

assigned to ASCAP all its non-dramatic performing rights

of its copyrighted musical compositions ( R. 37, Fact 21,

Def. Ex. A-4). The sums ASCAP collected from license

fees were and still are kept in a common fund and the

proceeds are divided, less expenses, at regular intervals

(R. 37, Fact 20, Def. Ex. A-3). The appellees have as-

signed each of the compositions alleged infringed to

ASCAP and these were in turn deposited in the pool.

In fact, all the performance rights wliich are owned by

a member of ASCAP must be assigned to ASCAP for

mutual hcensing (R. 30, Fact 18, p. 5; R. 37, Fact 20,

Def. Ex. A-4).

"The performing rights pool thus licensed by
ASCAP encompasses the predominate bulk— esti-

mated at times to be from 85 to 90 per cent— of the

popular and classical music of this country and not

passed into the public domain. To this must be
added the copyrighted music of some 40,000 foreign



composers and authors, whose respective national

perfomiing societies have authorized ASCAP to h-

cense their compositions for performance in the
United States." Timberg, The Antitrust Aspects of
Merclmndising Modern Music, 19 Law and Contemp.
Problems, 294, 297 (1954). See also Justice Black, dis-

senting in Gihhs v. Buck, 207 U.S. 66 at 81 (1939);
Buck V. Swanson, 33 F. Supp. 377, 386 (D. Neb.
1939); Buck V. Gallagher, 36 F. Supp. 405 (WD
Wash. 1940.)

By the 1930s when radio stations first began to acquire

economic significance, ASCAP had virtual control of all

copyrighted music published in the United States. Watson

V. Buck, 313 U.S. 406 (1940); Alden-RochcUe v. ASCAP,

80 F.Supp. 888 (SDNY. 1948); Alden-Rochelle v. ASCAP,

80F.Supp. 900 (SDNY. 1948).

Today ASCAP is an association of over 8,800 members

comprising both writers and publishers (R. 37, Fact 16;

R. 30, Fact 11, p. 3). It controls more than a million mu-

sical compositions in its performing rights pool (R. 30,

Fact 12, 13). Tliree music licensing organizations in the

United States license the non-dramatic performing rights

of substantially all of the copyrighted works in the United

States today. ASCAP is one of these three, and more than

50% of all performances of copyrighted music broadcast

in the United States are licensed by ASCAP ( R. 37, Fact

18).

In 1962 ASCAP collected almost 35 million dollars

from license fees. Over 30 million dollars came from broad-

casters. Revenue from all other licenses was a little over

4 million dollars (R. 30, Fact 49, p. 9). More than 87%
of ASCAP's total revenue is derived from license fees paid

by broadcasting stations and networks, and less than 13%
from all other users of music combined (R. 30, Fact 48,
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p. 9). In the State of Washington 100% of ASCAP's collec-

tions are from broadcasters and ASCAP collects nothing

from other music users (R. 30, Fact 21, p. 5).

ASCAP is governed by a board of directors of twenty-

four members, twelve are selected by the publishers and

twelve by the composers and authors (R. 30, Fact 24,

p. 6; Def. Ex. A-4). Each twelve determines how to share

revenues among its respective side. From this determina-

tion there is a right of appeal to a Board of Appeal, and

from its decision an appeal may be taken to the full board

of directors ( Def. Ex. A-4 ) . ( See Schmel and Krasilovsky,

The Business of Music, 94-101 (1964).)

The performance rights to some music in ASCAP's

repertory is vastly more valuable than the rights to other

music in the ASCAP repertory and of all the millions of

musical compositions copyrighted very few become hits

or of any significant value. This is also tme of the music

written by the appellees ( R. 30, Fact 83, p. 14 ) . Notwith-

standing this, the revenues pooled and distributed by

ASCAP to its members from fees are not and cannot be

segregated to determine how much money is allocated to

any particular composition (R. 30, Fact 84, p. 14). Nor

can ASCAP's distributions be allocated to a particular

area or state (R. 30, Fact 85, p. 14).

The fee to be quoted for any license is initially de-

termined by the ASCAP board of directors as distin-

guished from its members. The board of directors also

determines the form of the license and the basis upon

which a fee is to be charged (R. 24, Fact 24, p. 6).



9

ASCAP Licenses

ASCAP licenses broadcasting stations under only two

types of licenses, one of which is named "Blanket" and

the other "Per Program" (R. 30, Fact 22, p. 4; Def. Ex.

A-9 ) . Both are bulk licenses or blanket licenses of ASCAP's

entire repertory.

"ASCAP licenses only the pooled aggregate of the
performing rights assigned to it by its members, i.e.,

its entire repertory ... Its licenses always convey a
blanket authorization to the licensee to use its entire

repertory; it never hcenses the right to perform in-

dividual pieces, or individual publisher's catalogues,

or any part of its total repertoiy." Timberg, Ibid, at

297.

As ASCAP's chief counsel, Herman Finkelstein, explains:

"ASCAP is an association of composers, authors,

and publishers of musical works banded together for

the purpose of licensing the public performance rights

of their works on a bulk basis. . .
." Finkelstein, The

Composer and the Public Interest, 19 Law and Con-
temp. Problems 275, 283 (1954).

Both licenses required by ASCAP grant radio stations

the right to use all of ASCAP's million or so copyrights

on "local radio programs, " which are defined to mean pro-

grams "other than a network radio program" (Def. Ex.

A-9). Under both licenses the station must pay fees based

on a percentage of the gross revenues of the station, plus

a sustaining fee (R. 30, Fact 23, p. 5; Def. Ex. A-9). No
other forms of licenses are offered (R. 30, Fact 25, p. 6).

Under the license described as a "Local Station Blanket

License" a fee is charged upon revenues received by the

station from all local radio programs, including those

which use no ASCAP music whatsoever (Def. Ex. A-9).
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Under the type described as "Local Station Per Program

License," the station pays to ASCAP a fee based upon

revenues received from programs which use ASCAP music.

The fees charged for the Blanket License are 2.125% of

the gross revenues of the radio station (Def. Ex. A-9).

The fees charged for the Per Program License are 8%
of the gross (Def. Ex. A-9).

Of the over 5,000 commercial stations licensed by the

Federal Communications Commission and broadcasting in

the United States today, fewer than 60 to 100 have elected

to use the Per Program License. None are using it in

Washington State (R. 30, Fact 57, 62, p. 11).

Broadcasting networks are also licensed by ASCAP

(Def. Ex. A-10). The networks collect fees from aflBliated

stations for music on network programs broadcast over

the affiliate and pass the fees on to ASCAP (R. 30, Pre-

trial Order, Admission 1, p. 1). These fees are in turn

distributed to ASCAP's members ( R. 30, Pretrial Order,

Admission 2, p. 1). Therefore, it is not necessary for a

station to have a separate license to play music which

is supplied from networks because the performance rights

are cleared for the affiliated stations at the source (R. 30,

Fact 59, p. 11). This type of licensing is sometimes called

"clearance at the source."

ASCAP's Washington Licensing Practices

Except for a short period of time in and around 1959,

ASCAP has been engaged in issuing performance licenses

in the State of Washington (R. 30, Fact 19, p. 5). The

licenses are mailed by ASCAP from New York City,

signed by the music user in this state, thence returned
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for signatuie by ASCAP in New York ( R. 30, Fact 19,

p. 5). ASCAP receives license fees from broadcasters in

Washington and in turn distributes the fees to its mem-
bers. Therefore, each of the appellees herein has been

paid and received and will continue to be paid and re-

ceive royalty compensation and other consideration from

broadcasters located in Washington ( R. 30, Fact 20, p. 5 )

.

Significantly, however, broadcasting stations are the only

users of music located in the state from whom ASCAP
collects fees (R. 30, Fact 21, p. 5). Furthermore, the

appellees collect no fees from any other users located in

this state. Other commercial users of music like theatre

exhibitors, night clubs, bowling alleys, taverns, restau-

rants, etc., have not been paying fees in Washington

State, but broadcasters have (R. 30, Fact 21, p. 5).

The only licenses offered to broadcasters in Washington

State are blanket type licenses ( R. 30, Facts 25, 26, 28, 44;

Def. Ex. 7-8a, Pi. Ex. 6). Yet ASCAP offers to all other

users of music in Washington, except broadcasting sta-

tions, licenses where fees are charged for performances

of specific compositions, i.e. per piece licenses (R. 30,

Facts 25, 26, 43; Def. Exs. 7-8a, Pi. Ex. 6). But as stated

above, no fees are collected from these other users.

In 1958, all ASCAP radio licenses expired on the com-

mon date of December 31, 1958. Consequently, in 1959

after expiration of the 1958 licenses, ".
. . ASCAP refused

to offer licenses to any broadcasters located in the State

of Washington" (R. 30, Fact 73, p. 13). With this source

of music cut off completely, broadcasters in Washington

faced the prospect of infringement suits or closing down

for lack of music (Tr. 165, 205, 246, 273, 314). This forced

stations to negotiate with ASCAP for business. After
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several months of negotiating, many stations and ASCAP

agreed to a compromise. Accordingly, a petition was filed

in the United States District Court for the Southern District

of New York asking the court to enter an order ( R. 30, Fact

73, p. 13; R. 37, Fact 40). The petition was filed and an

order entered on the same day, November 20, 1950.

Being a negotiated instrument, the order was entered

by stipulation and agreement of the parties (R. 30, Fact

74, p. 13). It directed ASCAP to issue licenses in one of

two agreed forms for the period January 1, 1959, through

December 31, 1963 (R. 37, Facts 43, 44; Pi. E-s. 11, 12).

Appellant was apprised of the proceedings described

above, but did not sign a license on the ground that it was

illegal to do so and because the Washington law provided:

".
. . All licensees of any violator of this chapter

shall be deemed as aiders and abettors. RCW 19.24.-

100 (Def. Exs. A-13, A-14, A-50).

"Every person . . . who violates or who procures,

aids or abets in violating of any provision of this

chapter ... or who procures, conspires with, or aids

or abets any person or persons in his or their future

to obey the provisions of this chapter . . . shall be

deemed guilty of a gross misdemeanor, and upon con-

viction shall be punished bv a fine ... or imprison-

ment . .
." RCW 19.24.290.

Furthermore, appellant had been advised by counsel

and was of the firm belief that ASCAP and its members

constituted a combination in restraint of trade, and AS-

CAP's members were misusing their copyrights in violation

of the federal copyright and antitrust laws (Tr. 202, 205,

206,251,252,299,301).

Defendants were also convinced that the means of

licensing employed by ASCAP and its combined mem-
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bers was an abuse of the copyright privilege, unjust, un-

reasonable and unfair; and that if copyright owners were

required to compete among themselves, competitive

forces and the market's impersonable judgment would

establish a better system of music allocation (Tr. 173, 170-

211, 265-266, 268-269, 284, 303-305, 306-307, 317, 318).

ASCAP^s Antitrust History

Over twenty years ago, on February 26, 1941, the

United States brought an action against ASCAP charging

ASCAP and its members with violations of the Sherman

Antitrust Act, resulting on March 4, 1941, in a final de-

cree on consent of the parties (Def. Ex. A-1) (United

States V. ASCAP, Civil Action No. 13-95 (S.D.N.Y.).

The 1941 decree was superseded on March 14, 1950, by

the amended final judgment commonly known as the

1950 Consent Decree (Def. Ex. A-2). This amendment

resulted from two significant federal court decisions hold-

ing that the 1941 decree did not adequately cure ASCAP's

unlawful licensing practices.^

Shortly after the Alden-Rochelle case was decided, Chief

~2.

"On July 18, 1948, Federal District Judge Leibell handed down
his memorable opinion in the Alden-Rochelle case declaring

ASCAP to be involved in an illegal monopoly and illegal restraint of

trade under Sections 1 and 2 of the Sherman Act . . . ASCAP,
said the court, had the power to raise prices and exclude competitors

when it desired to do so." (Timberg 299)

With respect to the Section 1 charge, the court stated in part:

"The combination of the members of ASCAP in transferring all

their non-dramatic performing rights to ASCAP is a combination

in restraint of interstate trade and commerce, which is prohibited

by Sec. 1 of the anti-trust laws. It restrains competition among the

members of ASCAP in marketing the performing rights to their

copyrighted works." Alden-Rochelle, Inc. v. ASCAP, 80 F.Supp.

at 894 (S.D.N.Y., 1948).
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Judge Nordbye of the Federal District Court in Minne-

sota, in M. Witmark & Sons v. Jensen, 80 F. Supp. 843

(1948), endorsed Judge Leibell's conclusion that ASCAP

was still a price-fixing combination (Timberg, 300).

The amended final judgment of March 14, 1950, intro-

duced a number of changes pertinent to the issues raised

on this appeal ( Def . Ex. A-2 )

:

1. Although the 1941 decree limited ASCAP to taking

only non-exclusive licenses from its members this limitation

was reinforced by Section IV(B) which enjoined ASCAP

from "limiting, restricting, or interfering with the right

of any member to issue to a user non-exclusive licenses for

rights of a public performance."

2. Sections V(A) and (B) revised the provisions of

the 1941 decree concerning the issuance of licenses to

networks and to manufacturers, to make it clear that they

applied to the television industry as well as the radio

industry.

3. A new provision. Section V(c), also required ASCAP

to issue to motion picture producers a single license cover-

ing motion picture performance rights throughout the

United States. This kind of licensing along with that re-

quired in V(A) and (B) is called in the trade "licensing at

the source" or "clearance at the source."

4. A new provision, Section VI, directed ASCAP "to

grant to any user making written application therefor a

non-exclusive license to perfonn all the compositions in

the ASCAP repertory."

5. A new provision. Section IX, directed that ASCAP
shall "upon written application for a license for the right

of public performance of any, some or all of the composi-
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tions in the ASCAP repertory, advise the apphcant in

writing of the fee which it deems reasonable for the

hcense requested," and that if tlie parties are unable to

agree upon a reasonable fee within 60 days, the appli-

cant may apply to the district court in New York for the

determination of a reasonable fee.

6. Other sections of the amended final judgment

enjoined ASCAP from attempting to issue or enforce any

performance licenses against motion picture theatre exhib-

itors and revised certain provisions of the 1941 decree

concerning ASCAP's internal affairs and the distribution of

fees collected by ASCAP. Some of these latter provisions

were further amended on January 7, 1960 ( Def . Ex. A-3 )

.

At the present time, because of continuing dissatisfac-

tion among ASCAP's own members, John C. McGeehan

by order of the court having jurisdiction of the consent

decree is examining the design and conduct of ASCAP's

method of surveying performances. Whether this will

result in additional amendments to the decree remains

to be seen.

ASCAP and State Legislation

In the 1930s, prior to tlie 1941 consent decree, frustra-

tions of music users and their helplessness when confronted

with ASCAP's monopoly power, motivated several

state legislatures to take action. The Washington Protec-

tion of Copyrights Act, RCW 19.24 was passed in 1937.

Several other states passed laws in attempts to protect

their citizens.^

3. Such statutes were enacted in Vermont (Vermont Rev. Stat, c.54,

Sec. 1175 (1947)); Nebraska (Neb. Rev. Stat. Sec. 59-1402 (1943));
North Dakota (N.D. Rev. Code, Sec. 47-2105 (1943)); Kansas (Gen.

Stat. Kan. Sec. 57-205 (1940)); Florida (Laws of Fla. Ch. 19653

(1939)); Wisconsin (Wis. State Sec. 17701 (1937)); amend Laws Wis.

(1937, c. 247, Laws Wis. and 177 (1941)); Montana Laws of Mont.

(1937, c. 90)). See Warner, Radio & Television Rights 275 (1953).
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ASCAP lost no time in challenging the legislation. But

the United States Supreme Court readily disapproved of

ASCAP's charge of federal supremacy and unconstitution-

ality. In the famous Buck case the court upheld a state's

power to outlaw activities of price fixing combinations

composed of copyright owners. Like the Washington act,

both the Florida and Nebraska statutes made it imlawful

for copyright owners to combine and operate within the

state for the purpose of determining and fixing license

fees.*

ASCAP also tried to test the constitutionality of the

Washington law but the trial court dismissed ASCAP's

challenge for lack of jurisdiction. Buck v. Case, 24 F.

Supp. 541 (1938). On appeal the United States Supreme

Court reversed. Buck v. Gallagher, 307 U.S. 95, 59 S.Ct.

740, 83 L.ed. 1128 (1939). Again ASCAP sued in the dis-

trict court alleging unconstitutionality. The question was

never answered. The district court held ASCAP could not

invoke the aid of equity because its operations were in vio-

lation of the Sherman Act and its hands were unclean.

Buck V. Gallagher, 36 F. Supp. 405 (D. Wash. 1940).

5

4. The court stated:

"And, unless constitutionally valid federal legislation has granted

to individual copyright owners the right to combine the state's

power validly to prohibit the proscribed combinations cannot be

held non-existent merely because such individuals can preserve their

property rights better in combination than they can as individuals.

We find nothing in the copyright laws which purports to grant to

copyright owners the privilege of combining in violation of other-

wise valid state or federal laws . . . We are pointed to nothing

either in the language of the copyright laws or in the history of

their enactment to indicate any congressional purpose to deprive the

states, either in whole or in part, of their long recognized power to

regulate combinations in restraint of trade." Watson v. Buck, 313
U.S. 387, 403-404 (1941); Marsh v. Buck, 313 U.S. 406 (1941).

5. The district court said:

"Plaintiffs contend that the Washington statute is unconstitutional

for a number of reasons . . . Before passing on that question, it is
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Since Buck v. Gallagher, ASCAP has not challenged the

Washington law. However, in 1948, ASCAP brought a

suit for declaratory judgment to establish it had complied

with the law. The Washington Supreme Court found to

the contrary. It found ASCAP was claiming copyrights

and tlie right to license songs on which the copyrights had

expired and were part of the public domain. Taylor v.

State, 29 Wn.2d 638 (1948).

The last court decision to be rendered on the Washing-

ton statute was by the Yakima County Superior Court in an

order entered on July, 1962. This case is one involving a

broadcaster licensed to ASCAP. It is still pending, and no

doubt what is decided by this court will have bearing

upon some of the questions pertaining to Washington

statute. (In the Superior Court of the State of Washington,

Cascade Broadcasting Co. v. ASCAP, No. 45887).

Radio Station Music Requirements

Music is a critical necessity to the broadcaster. Without

it he cannot operate (Tr. 5, 6; R. 30, Fact 45, p. 9). A

necessary to determine whether or not plaintiffs may invoke the aid

of a court of equity. If a party has been engaged in an illegal busi-

ness and been cheated, equity will not help him.' Wheeler v. Sage,

68 U.S. 518, 1 Wall. 518, 529. In other words, before plaintiffs

may invoke the aid of a court of equity, they must come into court

with clean hands. Keystone Co. v. Excavator Co., 290 U.S. 240,

244, 54 S.Ct. 146, 78 L.Ed. 293. If the society exists in violation

of the Sherman Anti-Trust Act, 15 U.S.C.A. Sees. 1-7, 15 note, it,

and the members composing it, are not entitled to a decree for its

benefit.
e e o

"There can be little question here that the Society has the power
to fix prices for the right to publicly perform compositions for profit.

Likewise, it has restricted substantially all competition in the sale

of such right, because it has all such rights. Since the interstate

commerce feature is conceded to be present, the Society clearly

violates the act in question . .
." Id. at 406, 407.
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radio station must have access to copyrighted music as

a great portion of its time is devoted to broadcasting

music (Tr. 5, 6; R. 30, Facts 45, 47, p. Q).^

Because of the importance of music to broadcasters,

appellant (and the other defendants who settled) use

extreme care in the selection of what music is to be broad-

cast. Mr. Walter Nelskog, vice president and general man-

ager of appellant's radio station KIXI, reviews every record

before it is played in order to be sure the station has and

maintains a certain sound or image (Tr. 9).

Modem radio stations need and desire only certain types

of music to fit their special kind of programming ( Tr. 8 )

.

Examples are some play only western music, others reU-

gious, others classical (R. 30, Fact 81, p. 14). KIXI does

not play rock and roll, western, hillbilly or other types of

music (Tr. 9). It broadcasts only standards using special

orchestral arrangements (Tr. 10, 11). In fact, all modem
radio stations specialize in certain kinds of music played.

They have need only for hmited catalogues of music, and

cannot possibly use the entire ASCAP repertory of over

1,000,000 compositions (Tr. 8, 9, 18, 173, 200, 201).

Several of the defense witnesses testified to these facts.

ASCAP does not oflFer licenses of specialty catalogues to

radio stations. Instead ASCAP licenses its entire repertory

of popular, western, religious, classical, standards, etc.,

in one package and radio stations are, therefore, required

6. Radio stations must compete for the public's attention. They must
have an audience in order to sell their time to sponsors (Tr. 6, 7).
Broadcasters compete with night clubs, television stations, theatres, res-

taurants and other industries in the entertainment field for their share of

the public's time and attention (Tr. 6). Thus, broadcasters are in com-
petition with many other users of music, including other stations.
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to take all of ASCAP's 1,000,000-plus compositions or none

(R. 30, Fact 82, p. 14).

The appellant ( and the defendants who settled ) cannot

operate its station and stay in business without using

ASCAP music (Tr. 105, 205, 246, 273, 314). Thus, an

ASCAP license is vital since more than 50% of all perform-

ances of copyrighted music by broadcasting stations in the

United States are licensed by ASCAP and are perform-

ances of compositions in the ASCAP repertory (R. 30,

Fact 48, p. 9).

Not all of tlie revenues received by radio stations are

derived from programs containing music. Stations have

many programs such as news, sports, discussion, etc.,

which contain no music at all ( Tr. 17, 140, 224, 226-227,

305). Nevertheless, the only licenses offered by ASCAP
require that the station pay over 2% of all its gross reve-

nues to ASCAP, even on programs using no music, or

that the station pay 8% of gross revenues on only those

programs containing music. '^

Almost all music played on radio stations today is from

records (Tr. 274). These are obtained from recording

companies who, along with copyright owners, are most

anxious to have stations broadcast their records in order

to stimulate record sales (Tr. 24, 168). However, there is

no way for a broadcaster to obtain a perfoiTnance right

from a recording company or anyone else when he buys

a record (R. 30, Facts 80, 87, 67, 68, 69). The record itself

carries no right to play it on a radio station (R. 30, Facts

58, 63, 64). Neither ASCAP or the appellees has ever

offered record companies licenses authorizing broadcasting

7. As previously established, out of over 5.000 stations licensed today,

less than 100 chose the license charging 8%. (R. 30, Facts 57, 62, p. 11.)
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stations to perform the music contained on the record, i.e.

cleared the record for performance at the source (R. 30,

Facts 63, 64, 65, 66, pp. 11, 12).

Agreements between recording companies and com-

posers (including the appellees by stipulation) provide

that the right to record the music does not include the

right to play it, and accordingly the performance right is

left for only ASCAP to hcense (Def. Ex. 41, 42, 12).8

SPECinCATION OF ERRORS

Preface

Because on several occasions prior to the trial the trial

court asked the parties to stipulate to as many facts as

possible, a very detailed and lengthy pretrial order was

written (R. 30). The court also asked that all contentions

of fact and law be specifically set forth. Accordingly the

contentions were detailed and lengthy (R. 30, Pretrial

Order and Exhibits )

.

Following the same procedure after the trial the appel-

lees submitted and the trial court entered detailed Find-

ings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (R. 37). It, therefore,

seems to the writer that his duty to the court and to his

chent requires that he set forth his specifications of error

consistent with and in the same detailed form as the trial

court required in the Pretrial Order and the Findings of

Fact and Conclusions of Law. This requires a large number

of individual specifications because each fact and conclu-

sion of law must be asserted and numbered separately.

8. This is so in face of the fact that composers and publishers, includ-

ing these appellees, as well as recording companies, actively compete to

have their music recorded and played on radio stations. (R. 30, Fact 59,

p. ll;Def. Ex. A-2.)
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Fortunately, most of the specifications of error fall into

fairly broad classes. These are that the trial court erred in

finding certain facts and conclusions of law, and that it

erred in not finding others. Accordingly, for the sake of

simplification and orderly classification, the writer has set

forth in that portion of the brief immediately following

each separate specification of error where the appellant

disputes a finding of fact or conclusion of law set forth

either in the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law
(R. 37) and in the trial court's Memorandum Opinion

(R. 37). However, each detailed fact or conclusion of

law not found by the trial court but stipulated to by the

parties or contended by the appellant in the Pretrial Order

has been attached to the brief in Appendices "A-E." Each

is numbered individually for ease of reference.

Facts

The court erred in finding that:

1. Defendants failed to prove plaintiflFs or ASCAP vio-

lated Washington law relating to pooling of their interests

without providing for per piece licensing (R. 35, Mem.

Opin. p. 5).

2. There was no evidence of any abusive practice by

either plaintiffs or their licensing agent which would deny

them copyright protection (R. 35, Mem. Opin. p. 5).

3. The defendants failed to take licenses not because

they feared state prosecution and did not want to violate

state law, but that they failed to take licenses only to

avoid paying license fees ( R. 35, Mem. Opin. p. 5 )

.

4. The licensing and policing of performances for profit

can only be done by licensing organizations such as

ASCAP, BMI and SESAC (R. 35, Mem. Opin. pp. 5-6).
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5. The violations of plaintiffs of Washington law and

the federal copyright and antitrust laws were minimal and

the violations of the defendants unconscionable (R. 35,

Mem. Opin. p. 6).

6. For at least ten years, each defendant regularly

broadcast the musical compositions of plaintiffs and of

other authors, composers and publishers for profit, without

the payment of royalty or compensation to any person

(R. 37, Facts, p. 4).

7. The performances were made without regard to the

rights of plaintiffs and other proprietors of the federal

copyright law (R. 37, Fact 9, p. 4).

8. In radio broadcasting, split-second timing is neces-

sary to selection of musical compositions for broadcast

(R. 37, Fact 24, p. 7).

9. The Hcensing of public performances for profit of

copyrighted musical compositions by licensing organiza-

tions such as ASCAP is the only practical way by which

copyright proprietors may exercise their right to license

performances of their copyrighted compositions, and that

it would be impossible for a single proprietor to police the

use of his copyrighted songs (R. 37, Fact 25, p. 7).

10. ASCAP has no power to fix Hcense fees, since any

user has the absolute right to have the court determine a

reasonable license fee (R. 37, Fact 26, pp. 7-S).

11. Plaintiffs have at all times in the last ten years been

ready to negotiate with any broadcaster in the state of

Washington for a license (R. 37, Fact 50, p. 15).

12. In the last ten years, ASCAP has not received any

request from any broadcaster in the State of Washington
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and any ASCAP member in interest for the issuance of a

license to perform one or more specific compositions (R.

37, Fact 51, p. 15).

13. Neither defendant nor any officers of any defendant

corporation has ever been threatened with prosecution

under Chapter 19.24, RCW. There is no evidence that any

broadcaster in the State of Washington has ever been

threatened, although the majority of Washington broad-

casters have taken Hcenses from ASCAP, have paid royal-

ties and have pubficly participated in judicial proceedings

to obtain such licenses (R. 37, Fact 55, p. 18).

14. Defendant's failure to take licenses from ASCAP
was not because they feared prosecution under Chapter

19.24 RCW. Defendants failed to take licenses only

because they wanted to avoid paying license fees on the

same basis charged to—and paid by—other broadcasting

companies (R. 37, Fact 66, p. 18).

15. No Washington public official has made any com-

plaint that ASCAP's per program license does not assess

rates on a per piece system of usage ( R. 37, Fact 52, p. 16 )

.

16. There is no evidence that plaintiffs or other members

of ASCAP have entered into a conspiracy to prevent

recording companies from obtaining licenses authorizing

broadcasting stations to perform publicly for profit any

musical composition (R. 37, Fact 75, p. 19).

17. Each member of ASCAP may assign or license per-

forming rights to recording companies (R. 37, Fact 69,

p. 18).

18. The court erred in not finding all the facts which

were stipulated to by the parties to be agreed facts and
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made a part of the formal Pretrial Order ( R. 30, Facts Nos.

9, 13, 19-22, 24-27, 29, 43-54, 56-57, 59-63, 67-70, 73-74,

79-87). As stated above in the preface, each of the facts

stipulated to by the parties, but omitted from the trial

court's findings, are set forth verbatim in Appendix "A."

19. The court erred in not finding the admitted facts

taken from PlaintiflFs' Answers to Defendants' Request for

Admissions, which were agreed by the parties to be stip-

ulated facts and made a part of the foiTnal Pretrial Order

(R. 30, Admissions Nos. 1-2, 26, 29, 32, 34, 36). As stated

above in the Preface, each of the Admissions stipulated to

be facts, but omitted from the trial covut's findings, are set

forth verbatim in Appendix "B."

20. The court erred in not finding as facts those which

were set forth in the Pretrial Order as "Defendants' Con-

tentions of Fact" (R. 30, Contentions Nos. 1-9, 12, 14-26,

28-32, 34-41, 50-53, 59-69). As stated in the Preface, each

of these contentions is set forth verbatim in Appendix "C."

21. The court erred in not finding that the defendants

rehed on and were guided by statements of the attorney

general and his assistants that the licenses oflFered by

ASCAP violated Washington State Law, Chapter 19.24,

and in particular the statements contained in his letter

dated June 8, 1962, Def. Ex. No. A-14.

The court erred in making the following conclusions

of law:

22. During the last ten years, defendants have com-

mitted numerous other infringements of plaintifi^s' copy-

righted musical compositions and of the copyrighted

musical compositions of other authors, composers and

publishers (R. 37, Concl. 3, p. 2).
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23. Defendants' defenses based upon Ch. 19.24, RCW,
are without merit and cannot be used to defeat plaintiffs'

claims for copyright infringement (R. 37, Concl. 5, p. 21).

24. In consequence of ASCAP's filings with the Secre-

tary of State of the State of Washington in each of the

last three years, ASCAP and its members have fully com-

plied with the provisions of 19.24.040, 19.24.050 and

19.24.055, RCW (R. 37, Concl. 6, pp. 21-22).

25. By bringing lawsuits against infringing broadcasters

in the State of Washington, neither plaintiffs nor other

ASCAP members have violated 19.24.050, RCW. No abuse

of federal or state process results from plaintiffs bringing

the present actions to compel infringing broadcasters to

honor plaintiffs' rights under the Copyright Law nor from

writing letters demanding that their rights be respected

(R. 37, Concl. 7, p. 22).

26. Plaintiffs and other ASCAP members have not

pooled their separate copyrighted interest in ASCAP for

the purpose of fixing prices in violation of 19.34.020, RCW
(R. 37, Concl. 9, p. 22).

27. The ASCAP "per program" license may reasonably

be regarded as assessing rates "on a per piece system of

usage" as the Washington statute uses that phrase. The

willingness of ASCAP's individual members to negotiate

for licenses containing rates assessed on a per piece sys-

tem of usage also constitutes compliance with the statute

(R. 37, Concl. 11, p. 23).

28. ASCAP and its members fully comply with the re-

quirements of 19.24.020, RCW (R. 37, Concl. 12, p. 23).

29. Defendants' contentions as to the requirements of
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Ch. 19.24, RCW, would deprive plaintiffs and all other

copyright owners of their federally granted property rights

(R. 37, Concl. 13, p. 23).

30. To construe the provisions of Ch. 19.24, RCW, so

as to make the acts of the plaintiffs or ASCAP in these

cases unlawful, would raise grave questions concerning

the constitutionality of the Washington statute under the

Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United

States (R. 37, Concl. 14, p. 23).

31. Defendant's defenses and counterclaim based on the

federal anti-trust laws are without merit ( R. 37, Concl. 15,

p. 23).

32. Plaintiffs have not unlawfully extended their copy-

right monopolies through a combination among themselves

or with ASCAP, nor are they guilty of violating the fed-

eral anti-trust laws in any respect alleged by defendants

or otherwise (R. 37, Concl. 16, p. 23).

33. In view of the rights granted to defendants by

Section IX of the Amended Final Judgment, defendants

cannot complain that they have been damaged or preju-

diced by ASCAP's conduct (R. 37, Concl. 15, p. 23).

34. Neither plaintiffs nor other members of ASCAP
have entered into a conspiracy to prevent recording com-

panies from obtaining licenses authorizing any broadcast-

ing station to perform pubhcly for profit any musical

composition (R. 37, Concl. 18, pp. 23-24).

35. Even if plaintiffs' conduct in any respect could be

considered a violation of either Washington law or the

federal anti-trust laws, such violations are so minimal and

the violations of the defendants so unconscionable that
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plaintiflFs should not be deprived of the right to maintain

these actions for the deprivation of their property ( R. 37,

Concl. 19, p. 24).

36. The plaintiffs are entitled to damages of $250.00

for each infringement, or a total of $1,000.00 (R. 37,

Concl. 20, p. 24).

37. The plaintiffs are entitled to reasonable attorneys'

fees and costs of $300.31 (R. 37, Concl. 21, p. 24; R. 11,

Judgment ....).

The court erred in not making the following con-

clusions:

38. The conduct and acts of each of the plaintiffs, of

ASCAP, and of the other members of ASCAP, were and

now are in violation of the Washington Constitution and

of Sections 3 and 7, Chapter 218 of the 1937 Session

Laws of the State of Washington, RCW 19.24.020, RCW
19.24.060.

39. Neither ASCAP nor the plaintiffs have ever prop-

erly filed the list or other information as required by

Washington laws.

40. By reason of each of the plaintiff's violations of the

constitution and laws of the State of Washington, each

of the plaintiffs has unclean hands and none has any legal

or equitable standing to maintain this action.

41. By reason of each of the plaintiffs' acts and con-

duct set forth herein, each of the plaintiffs has unclean

hands irrespective of whether such acts and conduct

amount to statutory violation, and none has any legal or

equitable standing to maintain this action.

42. Each of the plaintiffs, ASCAP and its other mem-
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bers has conspired and combined to restrain trade and

commerce among the several states of the United States

in violation of the Sherman Act, (15 U.S.C. §§ 1, 2). The

specific violations expressed in defendants' contentions of

law (R. 30, No. 7 a-j are set forth verbatim in Appendix

"D".

43. Each of the plaintiffs, ASCAP and its officers, direc-

tors, agents, representatives, members and all others acting

on behalf of ASCAP and plaintiffs should be enjoined

from continuing their unlawful activities in violation of

the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1, 2. The specific injunctive

measures sought in defendants' contention of law in the

Pretrial Order ( R. 30, No. 8 a-i are set forth verbatim in

Appendix "E".

44. By reason of each of the plaintifiFs' violations of

the anti-trust laws of the United States, each of the

plaintiffs has unclean hands and none has any legal or

equitable standing to maintain this action.

45. By reason of each of the plaintiff's acts and con-

duct, each of the plaintiffs has unclean hands irrespective

of whether or not such acts and conduct amount to a

statutory violation.

46. Defendants have no control or voice in the legal

proceedings between the United States and ASCAP and

its members, and have no control or influence over the

consent decree. Said consent decree cannot deprive de-

fendants of the protection afforded them by Washington

laws or by federal anti-trust laws, nor deprive defendants

of their rights thereunder.

47. As here sought to be applied by plaintiffs, the
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Amended Final Judgment of March 14, 1950, would de-

prive the defendants of their property without due proc-

ess of law.

48. The defendant is entitled to a new trial to intro-

duce newly discovered evidence, namely, the letters from

advertising agency refusing to allow radio stations, in-

cluding one of the defendants, to have an advertising

order unless the stations had an ASCAP license.

49. The defendant is entitled to a new trial on the

grounds of newly discovered evidence and material, dis-

covered since the trial, and which could not have been

obtained before the trial by the exercise of reasonable

diligence.

50. PlaintiflFs' actions for damages and injunction herein

are barred by laches.

51. Defendants are entitled to damages, attorneys' fees

and costs.

ARGUMENT

Summary of Argument

The appellees are misusing their copyrights and abus-

ing the copyright privileges granted to them by Congress.

In doing so they are unlawfully extending their copy-

rights, violating public policy of Washington State and

Congress, and violating specific laws of Washington State

and the federal antitrust laws. Such misuse of their

copyright privileges bars the appellees, as copyright own-

ers, from obtaining relief for copyright infringement from

the appellant.

Fvu-thermore, appellees' violations of the federal anti-

trust laws have damaged and otherwise injured the appel-
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lant and other users of music. Such damage and injury

afford the appellant a right of action against the appellees

under Sections 4 and 16 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C.

§§ 15, 16) for damages, attorneys' fees, costs and, most

important, injunctions to correct the abuses.

The Statutes Involved

The texts of all statutes involved are set out verbatim

in Appendix "F."

Introduction

This case is of extreme importance to two industries

—

the music industry and the broadcasting industry. The

problems have been festering for over three decades.

What will be decided runs deeper than whether the

Washington State statute is a defense or whether appel-

lees have violated the Sherman Act. The substance

of what will be decided is whether the copyright laws

actually work primarily for the benefit of composers or

primarily for the benefit of the public, and whether public

policy that competition must remain free is for the music

industry in fact real or illusory.

This case is a plea for free competition. The appellant

is seeking the right to bargain for and buy music in a

competitive and free market unfettered by artificial re-

straints (Tr. 26, 269, 304, 315, 317-318). (Please see Ap-

pendix "G" for text of testimony.) Appellee is powerless

alone. Appellant must have and therefore seeks the aid

of this court.
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Music and the Public Interest

The Public Policy Behind the Copyright Law

The United States Constitution, Article I, Section 8

provides

:

"Congress shall have power ... to promote tlie

progress of science and useful arts by securing for

limited times to authors and inventors the exclusive

right to their respective writing and discoveries."

U.S. Constitution, Art. I, Sec. 8.

On February 22, 1909, the Committee on Patents of

the House of Representatives reported on the bill enacting

the Copyright Act of 1909 which is the source from

which all rights of appellees flow. The committee report

declared the official policy behind the creation of copy-

rights and stated as follows:

"The Constitution does not establish copyrights,

but provides that Congress shall have the power to

grant such rights if it thinks best. Not primarily for

the benefit of the author, but primarily for the bene-

fit of the public such rights are given. Not that any
particular class of citizens, however worthy, may
benefit, but because the policy is believed to be for

the benefit of the great body of people, in that it

will stimulate writing and invention to give some
bonus to authors and inventors.

<9 e <t

".
. . it has been a serious and difficult task to

combine the protection of the composer with the

protection of the public and to so frame an act that

it would accomplish the double purpose of securing

to the composer an adequate return for all use made
of his composition and at the same time prevent
the formation of oppressive monopolies, which might
be founded upon the very rights granted to the com-
poser for the purpose of protecting his interests."

House Comm. Rep. on Bill enacting Copyright Act
of 1909, to amend and Consolidate the Acts Respect-
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ing Copyright, H.R. Rep. No. 2222, 60th Cong., 2d
Sess. 7 (1909).

The above committee report makes it clear that the

copyright laws are for the benefit of the public, not the

composer, and that Congress, even in 1909, feared mo-

nopolistic abuses by copyright owners. This policy should

be kept constantly in mind when determining the issues

of this appeal:

"The copyright law, like the patent statutes, makes
reward to the owner a secondary consideration. In

Fox Film Corp. v. Doyal, 286 U.S. 123, 127, Chief

Justice Hughes spoke as follows respecting the copy-

right monopoly granted by Congress, 'The sole in-

terest of the United States and the primary object in

conferring the monopoly lies in the general benefits

derived by the public from the labors of authors.'

It is said that reward to the author or artists serves

to induce release to the public of the products of

his creative genius. But the reward does not serve

its public purpose if it is not related to the quality

of the copyright." United States v. Paramount Pic-

tures, Inc., 334 U.S. 131, 158, 68 S.Ct. 915, 92 L.Ed.

1260 (1948). Quoted with approval in United States

V. Loews, Inc., 371 U.S. 38, 9 L.Ed.2d 11 (1962).

The appellees and ASCAP have turned the purpose of

the copyright law around. The law is now being abused

and employed primarily for the benefit of a few to exploit

the many. Unless this court recognizes the evil and puts

a stop to it, our courts will become a party to one of the

slickest schemes devised to exploit a privilege beneficently

bestowed.

The broadcast of music by radio stations is the general

public's most immediate source of music and it is the

principal medium through which music is transmitted.

Any system which hinders the free broadcast of music
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and restricts its availability to radio stations harms the

pubhc interest. Such repressions not only deprive the

pubHc of affluent availability, but the purpose of the

copyright act to engender and stimulate the flow of music

to the public is stymied.

The Public Policy Behind the State Law

In the State of Washington the public's interest has

become the concern of the legislature, and it has been

expressed in statute form.^

The Public Policy Behind the Anti-Trust Laws

The great public concern which is at stake here is the

policy laid down by Congress that competition shall be

and remain free. In the music licensing industry this

policy has been made a joke by bright lawyers with in-

genious schemes. The appellees and ASCAP have taken

the privileges bestowed to them by the copyright law

together with the benign parol of the consent decree and

twisted them into a lucrative means of exploitation.

Basic to this appeal is an understanding of the clear

and sound policy expressed time after time by the Su-

preme Court of the United States:

"Basic to the faith that a free economy best pro-

motes the public weal is that goods must stand

the cold test of competition; that the public, acting

through the market's impersonal judgment, shall allo-

cate the nation's resources and thus direct the course

its economic development will take." Times-Pic-

auune Publishing Co. v. United States, 345 U.S. 594,

605 (1953).

9. Session Laws of Washington, 1937, c. 218 § 6, RCW 19.24.060.

See Appendix "F."
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Section 1 of the Sherman Act provides:

"Every contract, combination in the form of trust

or otherwise, or conspiracy, in restraint of trade or

commerce among the several states, or with foreign

nations, is declared to be illegal." 26 Stat. 209 (1890)

as amended, 15 U.S.C. Sec. 1 (1958).

Section 2 of the Sherman Act declares:

"Every person who shall monopolize, or attempt

to monopolize, or combine or conspire with any other

person or persons, to monopolize any part of the

trade or commerce among the several states, or with

foreign nations, shall be deemed guilty of a mis-

demeanor." 26 Stat. 209 (1890), 15 U.S.C. Sec. 2

(1958).

Summary of the Criteria for Decision

To reemphasize, the basic public principles declared

in the copyright act and the anti-trust laws are:

First. The purpose of the copyright laws is primarily

to benefit the public, not primarily to benefit the copy-

right owner.

Second. The purpose of the anti-trust laws is to pre-

serve free competition.

A complete understanding and acceptance of these two

fundamentals is required to properly decide the issues

in this case.

General Rules Applicable to Trial Court's

Findings and Conclusions

This case was presented primarily on the agreed facts

in the Pretrial Order (R. 30) and the depositions. The

oral testimony at the trial was rather brief, and, in fact.
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the appellees called only one witness. The trial court

made rather extensive findings of fact, which makes this

brief difficult to organize because of the interplay of the

facts. Therefore the legal arguments made herein con-

cerning the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law
(R. 37) are meant to apply throughout this brief with-

out unnecessary repetition.

Where the evidence presented is primarily in written

form, such as documentary evidence and depositions, the

appellate court is in as good a position to evaluate the

facts as the trial court, and the trial court's findings of

fact will not be given their usual weight.

"In Caner Oil Co. v. McQuigg [CCA 7th, ( 1940)
112 F.2d 275] the court declared that a district court's

findings of fact, where the testimony consists of docu-

mentary evidence and depositions, is 'subject to free

review unaffected by presumptions which ordinarily

accompany . . . findings on controverted issues.' A num-
ber of courts likewise have held that findings ... on
stipulated facts, on testimony taken by depositions,

and in similar situations where credibility is not seri-

ously involved or, if it is, where the reviewing court

is in just as good a position as the trial court to judge
credibility, are not binding on the appellate court

and will be given slight weight on appeal." 5
MOORE'S FEDERAL PRACTICE 2637.

This is particularly true in this case where the trial

judge, excusing his failure to write a substantive opinion,

stated in his memorandum opinion:

"I also conf^'luded that such an opinion would be
of limited value because there are practically no
controverted issues of fact . .

." (R. 35, Mem. Op.,

p. 4)

As to the trial court's conclusions of law, the appellate

court is not bound whatsoever:
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"This is clear both from the context of the rule

and from long established principles both at law and
in equity that the appellate court is, of course, not

concluded by the trial court's view of the law. The
requii-ement in Rule 52 ( a ) that, in addition to finding

the facts, the district court shall 'state separately its

conclusions of law thereon' is to furnish the causal

link between the facts and the judgment rendered.

But in reviewing the judgment, so far as questions or

conclusions of law are concerned, the appellate court

is not concluded in any degree by the trial court's

view of the law." 5 MOORE'S FEDERAL PRACTICE
2630-2631.

Because neither the Findings of Fact nor the Conclusions

of Law are to be given much weight in this somewhat

unique record, this brief will not belabor at length the

particularities of the trial coxirt's Findings or Conclusions.

Tlie Trial Court's Failure to Find Facts

Previously Stipulated by the Parties

( Specification of Errors 18 and 19

)

After extensive eflForts, many conferences, many argu-

ments, extensive discovery, and, at the insistence of the

trial court, the parties hammered out a lengthy and de-

tailed pretrial order ( R. 30 )

.

The parties stipulated to a great number of facts in

order to obviate the necessity of other proof at the trial.

Yet, the trial court in its Memorandum Opinion (R. 35)

and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (R. 37)

arbitrarily selected only those facts most favorable to

appellees and ignored finding those favorable to appellant.

Thereafter, when challenged by the defendant on motions

to amend and make additional Findings of Fact and Con-

clusions of Law (R. 44, 45), the trial court summarily
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dismissed defendant's motion by the sweeping statement

that the stipulated facts omitted were repetitious or irrel-

evant. (R.48, p. 5).

This generalized and oversimplified conclusion is an

error on the part of the trial court:

"The pre-trial order, when entered, 'controls the
subsequent course of the action, unless modified.' No
proof need be offered as to matters stipulated to in

the order, since the facts admitted at the pre-trial con-
ference and contained in the pre-trial order stand as

fully deteiTnined as if adjudicated at the trial. This
is true, even as to jurisdictional facts." 3 MOORE'S
FEDERAL PRACTICE 1126-1127.

Of the many stipulated facts ignored by the court in its

findings, appellant, for the sake of brevity, will show here

the relevancy of only a few as examples. Rather than

argue the relevancy of each of the facts here, appellant

suggests the relevancy of all of the omitted stipulated

facts will become apparent as they appear and are relied

upon in the brief. Appellant respectfully asks the court

to recognize the facts as they are referred to by numbers

throughout this brief.

Some of the most obviously relative stipulated facts

omitted are:

1. "The ASCAP repertory includes more than a million

musical compositions." (R. 30, Fact 13, p. 3; Appendix

"A," No. 18-1.)

This fact is relevant to show the vast size of the

ASCAP copyright pool on the issues of power to control

prices, power to require licenses, necessity to broad-

casters, consideration of copyrights, monopoly, control

of market—all possible violations of the SheiTnan Act
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(Sees. 1, 2). It is suffieient to cite the most recent case

where the extent of the pool was relevant. See Hazeltine

Research, Inc., v. Zenith Radio Corporation, 239 F. Supp.

51 (1965).

2. "The affairs of ASCAP are managed by its Board of

Directors, the members of which are elected by the

members of ASCAP. The fee to be quoted for any license

of the ASCAP repertory is initially deteiTnined by the

Board of Directors, as distinguished from its members."

( R. 30, Fact 24, p. 6; Appendix "A," No. 18-7.

)

That the license fee is determined by group action goes

to the issue of price fixing and the per se rule. United-

States V. Trenton Potteries Co., 273 U.S. 392 (1927), and

other cases cited infra.

3. "In the last ten years, neither ASCAP nor any plain-

tiffs have entered into any license agreement with any

broadcasters located in the State of Washington on any

other basis than the forms [Per Program and Blanket

License] and similar forms." (R. 30, Fact 26, p. 6;

Appendix "A," No. 18-9.

)

Again tliis fact goes to the issue of price fixing and is

evidence of conspiracy to peg prices within a stabilized

range. United States v. Socony-Vacuum Oil Co., 310

U.S. 150 (1940); United States v. Masonite Corporation,

316 U.S. 265 (1942).

4. "Music is a necessity to the broadcasting industry

in the State of Washington and tliioughout the United

States." (R. 30, Fact 45, p. 9; Appendix "A," No. 18-14.)

This is relevant to the issue of competition and control,

to the issue of the public interest affected, to tying agree-
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ments, block booking and much more too obvious to

mention. Alden-Rochelle, Inc., v. ASCAP, 80 F.Supp. 888

(1948); M. Witimrk & Sons v. Jensen, 80 F.Supp. 843

(D. Minn. 1948); Uniud States v. Paramount Pictures,

Inc., 334 U.S. 131 (1948), and other cases cited later in

this brief.

5. "Each musical copyright is unique." (R. 30, Fact 61,

p. 11; Appendix "A," No. 18-28.)

The uniqueness of the tying product is essential to

the issue of tying agreements. United States v. Loew's,

Inc., 371 U.S. 38 (1962), and other cases too numerous

to repeat the citations here, but cited and relied upon

later in this brief.

6. "ASCAP makes per program licenses available to

all broadcasters; fewer than 60 to 100 broadcasters in the

United States [out of the approximately 5,500 in exist-

ence] elect that fonn of agreement. At the time of the

alleged infringement and now, none elect that form in

Washington." (R. 30, Fact 62, p. 11; Fact 57, p. 11;

Appendix "A," Nos. 18-29, 18-25).

This shows the unreasonableness of the alternative to

the standard Blanket License form oflFered. See Hazeltine

Research Inc., v. Zenith Radio Corporation, 239 F.Supp.

51 (1965), pages 69-78.

"Although it may be said that the Hazeltine pro-

posals on the surface were offers to treat of indi-

vidual patents, the design was quite apparent—to

force by unlawful coercion the accentance of un-
wanted patents. This constituted an illegal extension

of the patent monopolies." Hazeltine Research, Inc.

V. Zenith Radio Corporation, 239 F.Supp. at 77.

7. "ASCAP does not offer licenses to broadcasters
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such as western, religious, 'good music,' classical, 'top

40.'" (R. 30, Fact 82, p. 14; Appendix "A," 18-45.)

Again, this is relevant to abuse of the copyright priv-

ilege and misuse of power gained from pooling. Com-

petition is stifled because only one form of license is

offered—all or nothing. Comparing the Zenith Radio case,

supra, the above is all the more relevant. There the

patent owner at least offered specialty lines from the

patent pool, but the court held this too was only an

illusory offer to force Zenith ".
. . to accede to Hazeltine's

demand and accept a full package license." Id. at 71.

The above fact shows ASCAP does not offer a real or

reasonable choice of licenses. This is relevant to misuse

of copyrights.

8. "The performance rights to some music in ASCAP's

repertory is vastly more valuable than the performance

rights to other music in ASCAP's repertory, and of all

the millions of musical compositions copyrighted very

few become hits or of any significant value. This is also

true of the performance rights to music written by plain-

tiffs." (R. 30, Fact 83, p. 14; Appendix "A," 18-46.)

"The revenue distributed by ASCAP, pursuant to the

consent decree, to its members from performance rights

fees cannot be segregated to determine how much money

is distributed for any particular composition." (R. 30, Fact

84, p. 14; Appendix "A," 18-47.

)

Appellant fails to see how two facts could be more

relevant to this case than the above. The courts agree.

Simply reading the Alden-Rochelle and Witmark cases,

supra, makes this obvious. To repeat the issue, the anti-

trust laws make it illegal to license or treat unique copy-
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rights like fungible goods or so many bushels of wheat.

When this was done in the Zenith case the court stated

the rule which the present trial court ignored completely:

"The reward sought by plaintiff from defendant
for inventions to be 'icensed is in no way related to

the quality of the individual patents and under the

package license each patent drew strength from
others, thus unlawfully extending the monopoly of

each." Hazeltine Research, Inc., v. Zenith Radio Cor-
poration, 239 F.Supp. at 77.

Again:

"Moreover, the reward demanded by plaintiff for

a license under less than the full package of patents

is no wav related to the quahty of the patent . .

."

Id. at 72.'

With the above as examples, it should be immediately

apparent that the trial court's indiscriminate generaliza-

tion that all the agreed facts it failed to find were irrel-

evant is error. In fact, appellant fails to understand how

the trial court could have come to such a conclusion

except by caprice or failure to understand the issues.

This is especially true where the trial court disallowed

any cumulation of the evidence:

"The Court: Let me make an announcement
now. I think I ought to call to the attention of both
of you the fact that you need not develop from live

witnesses evidence that is stipulated.

"If something was stipulated, it is not necessary

to ask a witness about it, and, as to matters that

have not been stipulated, if you ask a witness once
and you get the right answer, you do not have to

ask him that same question over again. You may
proceed." (Tr. 199)

Then the trial court did an about face by not finding
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as facts the stipulated facts and by not finding facts that

were proved at the trial to which no controverting evi-

dence was offered.

Even counsel for appellee agreed that the stipulated

facts were uncontroverted:

"Mr. Rifkind: Those things which we have stip-

ulated to, of course we are bound by. We won't

argue about that. We have negotiated out many
stipulations." (Tr. 29)

Appellees Have Violated Washington Law

(Specification of Errors 2, 28, 38 and 39)

Issuing Blanket Licenses

(Specification of Errors 1, 21, 28 and 38)

In Washington it is unlawful:

".
. . for two or more persons holding or claiming

separate copyrighted works ... to issue blanket

licenses . . . for the right to commercially use or

perform publicly their separate copyrighted works."

RCW 19.24.020.

The language is clear. It required no construction.

Blanket licenses are unlawful. There are no conditions

—

no qualifications to the statute. In fact, the language

of the Washington law is so clear that appellant is

dumbfounded at the trial court's decision that the

appellees are not violating Washington law. One possible

explanation is that the trial court confused later language

in the section that allows copyright owners to pool their

interests and fix prices on condition that they issue per

piece licenses. But the statute does not say they may
issue blanket licenses if they also issue per piece licenses.

Further, appellees do not deny they are "two or more
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persons, holding or claiming separate copyrighted works,"

or that they "issue blanket licenses in this state, for the

right to commercially use or perform publicly their sep-

arate copyrighted works" (R. 30). In fact, appellees

admit and have stipulated in the Pretrial Order that they

issue blanket licenses (R. 30, Facts 19, 22, 62 and 69).

In addition to radio and television blanket licenses,

ASCAP and appellees through ASCAP oflFer twenty other

types of blanket licenses in Washington State ( Def . Ex. 7,

Def. Ex. 8, Def. Ex. 8-A, Pit. Ex. 6). Under the statute,

to issue these licenses is to violate the law. This is true,

regardless of whether or not appellees also oflFer per-piece

licenses. The Washington State Attorney General has so

stated.

"You have asked, by your recent letter, whether
the issuance of 'blanket' licenses and 'per program'
licenses (a form of 'blanket' licenses) by an associa-

tion of holders of copyrights for musical compositions
violates Chap. 218, Laws of 1937 (RCW 19.24), and
whether licensees signing such licenses are subject

to the sanctions of the statute.

"It appears from the plain wording of the statute

that it is unlawful for such associations to issue such
licenses." Letter dated June 8, 1962, from John J.

O'Connell, Attorney General, State of Washington,
to Senator Albert C. Thompson, Jr. (Def. Ex. A-13)

The fact that in 1959 Judge Ryan signed an order con-

taining a pre-agreed statement that the licenses could

be lawfully entered into is of little consequence (R. 6,

Pi. Reply Ex. "D"). The order was submitted to the

court for signature upon negotiated agreement of the

parties (R. 30, Pretrial Order, Agreed Fact 74). The

defendants were not parties to those negotiations or that

order (R. 30, Pretrial Order, Agreed Fact 28). It was
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submitted to the court for signature without the benefit

of testimony, affidavits, memoranda, briefs, or any argu-

ment by lawyers. It was hmited to those parties, at that

time, a mutual agreement to remedy that specific

situation, under the conditions then facing the

parties—no more, no less. It was a settlement of differences

dictated by the parties thereto, and it cannot bind one

not a party. Sam Fox Publishing Co. v. United States, 366

U.S. 604 (1961).

Faced with the overpowering ASCAP repertory and

ASCAP's refusal to issue licenses, the broadcasters would

have signed almost anything (R. 30, Fact 73).

Pooling Copyrights, Fixing Prices and Collecting Fees

(Specification of Errors 11, 15, 18-24, 27, 39)

In Washington it is also a crime for two or more per-

sons holding or claiming separate copyrighted works,

(1) "to band together, or to pool their interests for

the purpose of fixing the prices on the use of said

copyrighted works," or

(2) "to pool their separate interests" or

(3) "to conspire, federate, or join together for the

purpose of collecting fees in this state,"

unless per piece licenses are issued (RCW 19.24.020).

The statute states: "Such persons may join together if

they issue licenses on rates assessed on a per piece system

of usage" (RCW 19.24.020). See Taylor v. State, 29 Wn.

2d 638, 188 P.2d 671 (1948); Buck v. Gallagher, supra,

at 99). Thus copyright owners may band together, may

pool their interests and may conspire, federate and join

together, provided they issue per piece licenses.
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What is a "per piece" license, or, as the statute says,

"a hcense based upon a per piece system of usage?" A
per piece hcense is a hcense where rates are assessed

".
. . on a basis of so much money per each time a piece of

music is played or used in a public performance for profit"

(RCW 19.24.140).

Plaintiffs' licenses entitled "Washington Local Station

Per Program License" are not per piece licenses (Def.

Ex. 7, 8, 8-A). The rate for these licenses is based upon

adjusted gross income derived from all programs using

ASCAP music. The rate is an unreasonable 8%^" of the

gross revenue from the program, whether one ASCAP
song is played or ten seconds of one song or ten songs or

twenty songs or any number of songs. This is a far cry

from "so much money per each time a piece of music is

played." By signing such a license the licensee gets a

blanket right to use the entire repertory—a full package

—and pays on gross revenue. This is not so much money

each time a piece of music is played. (See the previous

section "ASCAP Licenses," stipra.)

It is preposterous for appellees to assert that the per

program licenses are per piece licenses. In the first place,

Mr. Herman Finkelstein, Chief Attorney for ASCAP, has

stated on several occasions under oath that per program

licenses offered by ASCAP are blanket licenses:

"Both the program license and the blanket license

are blanket licenses, that is the user has the right

to use everything in the repertory without getting

any special permission; by merely entering into the

licensing agreement the broadcaster has a right to

10. Just how unreasonable is shown by the fact that of over 5,000

broadcasters in the United States fewer than 100 have the "Per Program"
license. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 62, p. 11, Agreed Fact 57, p. 11.)
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use everything . .
." Statement of Herman Finkel-

stein, September 18, 1956, Hearings Before the Anti-

trust Subcommittee (Committee No. 5 of the Com-
mittee on Judiciary of the House of Representatives,

84th Cong., 2nd Sess., Part 2, Volume 2 )

.

"The radio station or network or the television

station or network has its option to take a license on
a blanket basis or what is called a per program basis

that is still a blanket basis but the payment is in

relation to those programs which use music in the

ASCAP repertoire." Hearings Before the Subcom-
mittee on the Select Committee of Small Businesses

on the Policies of ASCAP, 85th Cong., 2nd Sess. 21

(1958). (R. 30, Def. Ex. 48.)

Mr. Timberg was not confused by the label "Per Pro-

gram." He said:

"ASCAP licenses only the pooled aggregate of the

performing rights assigned to it by its member, i.e.,

its entire repertory. It licenses that aggregate for

specific industrial uses—radio broadcast, dance hall

or symphony concert—^but its licenses always convey
a blanket authorization to the licensee to use its

entire repertory; it never licenses the right to perform
individual pieces, or individual publisher's catalogues,

or any part of its repertory." Timberg, 297.

e e e

"As a matter of linguistic purity, all ASCAP radio

licenses are blanket licenses in that they entide the

station to use the entire ASCAP repertory." Timberg,
310.

The Attorney General of the State of Washington

states that per program licenses are blanket licenses and

that it is unlawful for ASCAP, or plaintiffs through

ASCAP, to issue such licenses. (See letter, June 7, 1962,

from Senator Albert C. Thompson, Jr., to John J. O'Con-

nell, Attorney General, and letter, June 8, 1962, from

John J. O'Connell, Attorney General, in reply (Def. Elxs.
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A-13, A-14). (See also Attorney General's Opinion, Nov.

3, 1941, Def. Ex. A-50.)

The trial court's finding that the appellees, as individual

copyright owners, have always been ready to issue li-

censes on a per piece basis to broadcasters, and this

satisfies the statute, is error (R. 37, Concl. 11, p. 23).

The statute requires that copyright ovioiers file a com-

plete list of the prices demanded for their works.

"... a complete list of their copyrighted works
together with a list of the prices charged and de-

manded for their various copyrighted works shall

be filed . .

." RCW 19.24.040.'

"No person . . . shall be absolved from the fore-

going duty of filing said list of holdings as required

in the preceding sections of this act, if their music
or copyrighted works are used commercially in this

state . .
." RCW 19.24.055.

ASCAP's members (including appellees herein) have

never filed individually under the state law. They have

never shovni they offered "per piece" licenses to broad-

casters by filing one with the Secretary of State. They

cannot at the trial therefore assert they were willing

to offer them if only asked. This is hindsight and a sham.

If the filings made by ASCAP with the Secretary of

State (Def. Ex. 7, 8, 8-A) do not purport to list all rates

offered, charged, or demanded by its members, or if they

do not purport to be filed for the members, then ASCAP's

members either ( 1 ) have not filed as required, or ( 2

)

have not made a complete filing as required. Both omis-

sions are violations.

The fact is, of course, that appellees individually have

no per piece agreements. In fact, as the depositions show.
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most of the appellees did not even know that the Wash-

ington law requires them or even what they are (Def.

Ex. A-31(a), Deposition of Herman Starr, pp. 31-33; Def.

Ex. A-31(c), Deposition of Carolyn Leigh, pp. 16-17;

Def. Ex. A-31(c), Deposition of Ii-ving Brown, p. 7).

It is also significant that whenever broadcasters wrote

ASCAP asking for per piece licenses—^which many broad-

casters have done on numerous occasions—ASCAP did

not even reply. (Def. Ex. A-15, A-16, A-17, A-18, A-19,

A-20, A-21, A-22). (See Def. Ex. A-31d), Deposition

of Louis E. Weber, pp. 12-14, 20.) The only conclusion

defendants could assume by such silence is that none

were available. For this reason it was stipulated that, if

called as a witness, each defendant would testify that he

did not ask for a per piece license from individual plain-

tifiFs, because to do so would have been a useless and

futile act (R. 30, Fact 27). Furthermore, several wit-

nesses testified that defendants at all times have been

ready to negotiate and pay fees on a per piece rate. But

defendants could not negotiate for what was not available

(Tr. 30, 31, 171, 202, 264, 265, 266, 268, 273, 284, 292,

301, 303, 313, 315).

Appellees also argued that if they or ASCAP offer at

least someone a per piece contract, this satisfies the stat-

ute. This is a specious argument for the following reason.

It was stipulated that the filings set forth the only forms

of licenses which were and are made available by ASCAP
in Washington, and that the filings do not contain any

per piece licenses offered to broadcasting stations (R. 30,

Facts 25, 28, 43 and 44). The single per piece license

filed by ASCAP is in "Schedule 11, Schedule of License

Fees for the Performance of Specific Compositions." The
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title of the license itself states broadcasters are expressly

excluded:

"Schedule of License Fees for the Public Perform-
ance for Profit of Specific Compositions in the Rep-
ertory of the American Society of Composers, Au-
thors and Publishers in Establishments Other tlmn
Radio and Television Broadcasting Stations." (Dei.

Ex. 7, 8, 8-A, Schedule 11). (Emphasis added)

Appellees and ASCAP cannot circumvent the law by

tlie neat device of oflFering one per piece license out of

twenty-five and then barring the only users they in fact

license from having it. This is violation of the spirit and

letter of the law. It was clear error for the trial court

to find "compliance" with the Washington law by this

transparent device.

Appellant had the right to rely on the filings, and

appellees should be estopped from now asserting that

the filings did not reflect all the licenses that were avail-

able."

It is clear that appellees, not having offered or issued

per piece licenses to broadcasters in Washington, may
not lawfully "join together" and the trial court's finding

that the appellees stood ready to negotiate on a "per

piece system of usage" is in error ( R. 37, Fact 50, Concl.

11. Appellees have misrepresented their offerings to defendants and
the public. Omission, intentional or unintentional, is a misrepresentation

to anyone who relied upon the filings to ascertain what licenses were
available. Certainly, appellant had no knowledge or indication of any
readiness on the part of appellees to negotiate or offer per piece licenses,

or any licenses, for that matter. If ASCAP members seriously meant the

per program license to be a per piece license, why did they not call it a

"per piece" license? And when ASCAP "advised" broadcasters that they

had better sign one of the two forms of blanket licenses, no mention
was ever made of any other kinds of licenses being available—if in fact

thev were—which, for all practical purposes, they were not. (Def. Ex.

A-24, A-43.)
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6). Also, the court's conclusion that "per program" li-

cense may be regarded as a "per piece" license in com-

pliance with the Washington Statute (R. 37, Concl. 11)

is manifestly wrong.

Collecting fees

Appellees are violating the Washington statute in an- i

other respect. They are collecting fees in this state (R.

30, Facts 20, 23). As stated before, RCW 19.24.020

makes it unlawful for appellees to ".
. . federate, or join

together for the purpose of collecting fees in this state."

ASCAP's Articles of Association state one of the pur-

poses of ASCAP as follows:

"PlaintiflFs, together with the other members of

ASCAP at all times pertinent hereto associated, as

stated in the ASACP Articles of Association, for the

following purposes, among others:

"To grant licenses and collect royalties for the

public representation of the works of its members."
(R. 30, Fact 16)

The trial court found:

"At all times pertinent, plaintiffs have received

royalties . .
." (R. 37, Fact 54)

Further argument by appellant should not be necessary.

Pooling copyrights

It is incontrovertible that ASCAP's members are "pool-

ing, federating and joining together." (R. 30, Facts 10, 18,

plaintifTs membership in ASCAP; Facts 11-4, nature of

ASCAP and its combined repertory of over one million,

and R. 30, Facts 19, 20, 21, 23, 29, 69, issuing hcenses

and collecting fees.)
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The trial court's findings of fact are that the appellees

pool their rights (R. 37, Facts 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21,

23). (See also Def. Ex. A-31g.)

Again, further argument should not be necessary.

Price fixing

(Specification of Errors 26)

The trial court's conclusion that appellees and other

ASCAP members have not pooled their separate copy-

righted interests for the purpose of fixing prices is in

error (R. 37, Concl. 9).

The language of the statute does not require that prices

be actually fixed, only that plaintiffs band together for

the purpose of fixing them. It is incredible to urge that

appellees, together with the other members of ASCAP,

have not banded together for the purpose of fixing prices.

Mr. Stanley Adams, ASCAP's President, testified ASCAP
sets uniform prices (Def. Ex. A-31g, p. 59).

ASCAP is managed by a board of directors. ASCAP's

Articles of Association, Art. IV and Art. V, pages 9, 15,

state:

"Powers of the Board of Directors:

".
. . It is hereby expressly declared that the Board

of Directors shall have the following powers, that

is to say:

".
. . to fix the rate, time, and manner of payment

of royalties for performances of all works registered

with the Societv . .
." (Id. at Sec. 2, p. 15) (Def.

Ex. A-4)

It has been stipulated that the board initially sets the

fees to be charged:
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"The fee to be quoted for any license of the

ASCAP repertoiy is initially determined by the

Board of Directors, as distinguished from its mem-
bers." (R. 30, Fact 24)

This is also the uncontroverted testimony of ASCAP's

President, Stanley Adams (Def. Ex. A-31g, p. 13).

The point is that the members have federated or joined

together "for the purpose" of collecting fees, and this is

a violation of the Washington Act. The power to estab-

lish a particular rate is immaterial to the violation. ^^

Threats of Suits

(Specification of Errors 13, 14, 25, 29)

The Washington law also makes it a crime for the per-

sons to use combined power to extort fees from and exploit

citizens of the State of Wasliington. It is unlawful to use a:

".
. . systematic campaign or scheme designed to

illegally fix prices for the commercial use of copy-
righted works in this state through the use of extor-

tionate means and terrorizing practices based on
threats of suits." RCW 19.24.060.

Federal courts also recognize that suits for infringement

12. The fact that appellees claim they stood ready to negotiate for a

separate license and to deal individually is also immaterial to the charge

of price fixing. This is a sham—a straw man. In Taylor v. State, supra,

the court attached no significance to the fact that ASCAP had only the

non-exclusive right to license its members' work and the members were
free to deal individually.

"It should be added that the members at the present time do not

confer the exclusive power over their individual copyrighted com-
positions to ASCAP but may, under certain conditions, act for them-
selves individually." Taylor v. State, 29 Wn.2d 643.

See also the recent holding in Hazeltine Research, Inc., v. Zenith

Radio Corporation, 239 F. Supp. .51 at 77.

"Although it may be said that the Hazeltine proposals on the

surface were offers to treat individual patents, the design was quite

apparent—to force by unlawful coercion the acceptance of un-

wanted patents."
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can be used as weapons to intimidate others and further

existing monopohstic abuses. In a patent case where the

plaintiff sued for infringement and the defendant counter-

claimed for violation of the antitrust laws, the court in

assessing treble damages for the defendant stated:

"The trial court also found that the infringement action

and incidental activities of Kobe were intended and
designed to further the existing monopolistic pur-

poses . . . The infringement action and related ac-

tivities, of course, in themselves were not unlawful,
and standing alone would not be sufficient to sustain

a claim for damages which they may have caused, but
when considered with the entire monopolistic scheme
wliich preceded them. We think, as the trial court did,

that they may be considered as having been done to

give effect to the unlawful scheme ... To hold that

there was no liability for damages caused by this con-
duct, though lawful in itself, would permit a monop-
olizer to smother every potential competitor with liti-

gation before it had an opportunity to be otherwise
caught in its tentacles and leave the competitor with-

out a remedy." Kobe, Inc. v. Dernpsey Pttmp Co., 198
F.2d 416, 425 (10th Cir. 1952) certiorari denied 344
U.S. 837, 73 S.Ct. 46, 97 L.Ed. 651 (1952).

In Hozeltine Research, Inc. v. Zenith Radio Corpora-

tion, 239 F.Supp. 51 (1965), the facts were very

similar to the case at bar. There the plaintiff controlled a

pool of television patents and forced the defendant to

take a package license with fees based on gross revenues.

The plaintiff filed numerous infringement suits against

those ".
. . who refused to sign its license agreement" ( Id.

at 70). The court in holding for the defendant recognized

the coercive effect of infringement threats and suits:

"It [the defendant infringer] was forced either to

cease manufacturing and selling the television receiv-

ers, pay tribute with consequent increase in costs or
incur the expenses incident to the defense of pro-
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tracted patent litigation. Although defendant's choice

determined the nature and amount of the resulting

damages, it was the necessity of having to choose

that occasioned the injury." (7c?. at 72.)

In judging that there was no abuse of federal or state

process from plaintiffs bringing the present suits (R.

37, Concl. 7), the district court chose to ignore the

Washington statute and refused to follow basic concepts

of equity applied in the federal system.

Ample evidence is in the record of threats, coercion

and a systematic scheme. The following findings of fact

by the trial court are proof of a scheme: ASCAP is pay-

ing all expenses of these actions and tlie others which

were settled (R. 37, Fact 55); ASCAP selected and re-

tained the law firms (R. 37, Facts 55 and 56); ASCAP
arranged to have stations monitored for infringements

(R. 37, Fact 57) and continues to do so (R. 37, Facts 58,

59); ASCAP has authority to commence these actions and

other actions (R. 37, Facts 60, 61); and to arrange for

settlement (R. 37, Fact 62).

It is hardly a coincidence that in 1962, almost three

decades after passage of the Washington law, nearly 100

copyright owners—all members of ASCAP—sued for in-

fringement within a period of a few months. Clearly these

circumstances show a "campaign or scheme." They also

show "extortionate means and terrorizing practices."

In the eighteen months prior to the trial appellees and

other ASCAP members brought 15 suits against 11 radio

stations, alleging 272 infringements (R. 37, Fact 63). The

potential liability to the small radio stations was stagger-

ing. Statutory damages alone could amount to $1,360,000.^^

13. Statutory damages can be assessed at $5,000 per performance.
The Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C.A. § 101(b).
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It must be remembered that ASCAP is a combination

of not merely a few copyright holders, but of over 8,800.

When ASCAP commenced these suits it presented to the

defendants the awesome picture of a combine with re-

sources of over $36,000,000 a year and over a million copy-

rights. The sheer size of this combine is intimidating to

any broadcaster.

Another striving piece of evidence is the tactics used

against Wescoast Broadcasting Co. This company was a

defendant in the cases consolidated for trial. It operates

a radio station in Wenatchee, Washington. Immediately

after refusing to sign an ASCAP license and settle suits

pending against it, the company was sued for an addi-

tional 28 infringements on which statutory damages would

not be less than $7,000 but could be $140,000 plus costs

and attorneys' fees (R. 30, Pretrial Order, Plaintiff's An-

swer to Admission 26). $140,000 is as much as the station's

gross income for a full year, and several times its entire

profit (Tr. 304).

More evidence in the record is in Defendant's Exhibit

A-43. On July 15, 1963, ASCAP's lawyer wrote several

form letters to Washington radio stations demanding:

"We have recently settled a number of copyright

infringements in the Federal courts against Washing-
ton radio stations.

"We have prepared a complaint against your sta-

tion for playing copyrighted music for profit without

the consent of the owners. We are authorized to offer

you the same settlement terms, provided you indi-

cate your acceptance of these terms within ten days
from the date of this letter." (Def. Ex. A-43).

The most impressive evidence of intimidation was

ASCAP's arbitrary refusal to license all radio stations lo-
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cated in Washington in 1959 (R. 30, Fact 73). All broad-

casters located in Washington were by a decision made

in New York deprived of the use of over one million

musical compositions combined in the largest music li-

censing repertory in the world!

Finally, one must ask why was one defendant, Rogan

Jones, sued personally? By suing this individual, the ap-

pellees and ASCAP hoped to intimidate him by threat

of loss of his personal assets into signing a license. They

wanted to make him an example of what was in store

for others who fouglit them. Whereas all other broad-

casters were sued for only a few infringements, Mr. Jones

was sued for scores of them. It takes no stroke of genius

to realize that Mr. Jones had been singly selected for

annihilation. If this is not evidence of a carefully plotted

"systematic campaign" and "terrorizing practices" it would

be diflBcult to know what else the legislature of Wash-

ington could have had in mind in using these words in

its statute. Parenthetically, it should be noted that ASCAP
succeeded in defeating Mr. Jones. The risk of having to

pay the judgment of over $73,000 was too great and he

signed an ASCAP license (R. 49, Settlement Agreement).

Appellees Have Misused Their Copyrights in Violation

of Public Policy and the Federal Anti-Trust Laws

Specification of Errors 2, 20, 31, 32, 33, 35, 42

Introduction

The plaintiffs, through their conduct as described here-

after, are guilty of two distinct malpractices, either of

which constitutes a defense, and either of which is grounds

for injunctive relief and damages.
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First. The plaintiflFs are unlawfully extending their copy-

right monopolies. Moiion Salt Co. v. Siippiger, 314 U.S.

488 (1942); Hazeltine Research, Inc. v. Zenith Radio

Corporation, 239 F.Supp. 51 (1965); M. Witmark &
Sons V. Jensen, 80 F.Supp. 843 (D. Minn. 1948) and cases

cited therein.

Second. The plaintiffs are violating Sections 1 and 2 of

the Sherman Antitrust Act, by pooling copyrights, price

fixing, sharing fees, block booking, and monopolization

of performing rights. United States v. Loews, Inc.,

371 U.S. 38 (1962); Northern Pac. R. Co. v. United

States, 356 U.S. 1 (1958); United States v. Para-

mount Pictures, Inc., 334 U.S. 131 (1948); Internutiorml

Salt Co. V. United States, 332 U.S. 392 (1947); Mercoid

Corporation v. Mid-Continent Investment Co., 320 U. S.

661 ( 1944 ) ; Hazeltine Research, Inc. v. Zenith Radio Cor-

poration, 239 F.Supp. 51 (1965); M. Witmark & Sons

V. Jensen, supra; Alden-Rochelle, Inc. v. ASCAP, 80

F.Supp. 888 (1948); Alden-Rochelle, Inc. v. ASCAP, 80

F.Supp. 900 (1948).

Abuses of the patent and copyright privilege are classic

violations. Early and late court decisions without excep-

tion condemn pooling copyrights and patents when licens-

ing through a central agency which imposes competitive

restraints, (See e.g.. United States v. Masonite Corp., 316

U.S. 265 (1942)) and tying agreements as in the Loew's

case, supra, the Zenith Radio case, supra, and others cited

before and hereafter.

A copyright owner is entitled to exercise the same rights

that any other seller of property enjoys. But he cannot

exercise his copyrights as a part of a larger plan to violate
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the antitrust laws. He cannot do as appellees and the other

members of ASCAP, namely pool and extend his single

monopoly of a particular piece of copyrighted music to

create another vastly larger and more powerful monopoly.

United States v. Loews, 371 U.S. 38 (1962); M. Witmark

& Sons V. Jensen, 80 F. Supp. 843 (D. Minn. 1948);

United States v. Paramount Pictures, Inc., 66 F.Supp. 323

(SDNY 1946); appealed 334 U.S. 131. He cannot grant

or refuse to grant licenses pursuant to an agreement with

competitors—other copyright owners—to regulate compe-

tition. United States v. Gypsum Co., 333 U.S. 364 (1948);

Standard Sanitary Mfg. Co. v. United States, 226 U.S. 20

(1912).

In short:

"Patents give no protection from the prohibitions

of the Sherman Act to such activities, when the li-

censes are used as here, in . . . [a] scheme to restrain."

United States v. New Wrinkle, Inc.; 342 U.S. 371,

378 (1952).

No additional authority is needed for the proposition that

patents and copyrights are treated the same with respect

to abuse of the privilege granted. See, however, United

States V. Loew's, 371 U.S. at 46.

The very natiu'e of ASCAP's organization, its activities

and its methods are so inimical to the Copyright Act and

the antitrust laws that ASCAP and its members have been

constantly embroiled in litigation. This turmoil has re-

sulted in two court decisions that are exactly like the case

at bar. These cases are M. Witmark & Sons v. Jensen and

Alden-Rochelle v. ASCAP, supra. In addition to these two

cases, there are, of course, many more decisions involving

misuse of copyrights and patents which are in point. This



59

will be discussed later, but of special significance are

the very recent cases, United States v. Loew's Inc., 377

U.S. 38, decided in 1962, and involving the offense of

block booking of copyrights, and Hazeltine Research, Inc.

V. Zenith Radio Corporation, 239 F. Supp. 51 decided in

the Seventh Circuit in 1965, and involving patent pooling.

The defendant calls the above cases to the court's at-

tention at this time because of their striking similarity to

the present case and respectfully recommends that the

court give them considerable study.

Turning now to the trial court's findings that appellees

and ASCAP are not violating the antitrust laws or unlaw-

fully extending their copyrights.

Unlawful Extension of Copyrights

Specification of Errors 32

Appellant respectfully points out the clearest cases

illustrating unlawful extensions of the copyright privilege.

These are Motion Salt Co. v. Suppiger, 314 U.S. 488

(1942); Mercoid Corp. v. Mid-Continent Investment Co.,

320 U.S. 661 (1944); Hazeltine Research, Inc. v. Zenith

Radio Corporation, 239 F.Supp. 51 (1965); and M. Wit-

nrnrk & Sons v. Jensen, 80 F.Supp. 843 (D. Minn. 1948);

Alden-Rochelle v. ASCAP, 80 F.Supp. 890 (1948).

No one can say it plainer tlian Chief Judge Nordbye

in the Witmark case:

"In view of the Court's finding that the copyright

monopoly has been extended, it is not necessary to

determine whether antitrust violations alone would
deprive plaintilFs of the right to recovery . . .

"It follows, therefore, from the premises that plain-
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tiffs sliould be denied any recovery herein." M. Wit-
mark & Sons V. Jensen, 80 F. Supp. at 850.

Judge Leibell also spelled out the violations in the

Alden-RocheUe decision:

"Many of the cases which held that patent owners
may not combine their patents so as to extend the

monopoly of the one patent by the monopoly of the

other, state the legal principles which prevent two
copyright owners from doing a similar thing. The
leading cases, which hold that such a combination
of patents constitutes an illegal restraint of inter-

state commerce, are reviewed in a recent decision,

United States v. Line Material Co., et al., 33 U.S.

287, 68 S.Ct. 550 (Quotation from case, which fol-

lows, is omitted herein.)" Alden-Rochelle v. ASCAP,
80 F. Supp. 890, 894 (1948).

Judge Goldberg said in 1962 in the Loew's case:

"The antitrust laws do not permit a compounding
of the statutorily conferred monopoly." United States

V. Loew's, Inc., 371 U.S. at 52.

Judge Austin said:

"The reward sought by plaintiff from defendant
for inventions to be licensed in no way related to

the quality of the individual patents and under the

package license each patent drew strength from
others, thus unlawfully extending the monopoly of

each." HazeJtine Research, Inc. v. Zenith Radio Cor-
poration, 239 F. Supp. at 77.

"Plaintiff's offer to license its patents individually

but at royalty rates far in excess of the package rate

was never an alternative to its controlling policy to

grant defendant a license only under all of its patents

. . . This constituted an illegal extension of the patent
monopolies." Ibid.

It seems unnecessary to state that appellees in pooling

their licenses with others, offering only package licenses.

I
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and sharing fees, are cleaily extending tlieir copyrights

unlawfully.

The Effect of the Per Se Rule

There are certain contractual restraints which are con-

demned by Section 1 of the Sherman Act without the

necessity of any exhaustive analysis of the facts. Here the

courts have no discretion. These kinds of restraints are

considered so odious as to be per se unlawful. In other

words, as the Supreme Court said in Northern Pac. Ry v.

United States, supra:

".
. . there are certain agreements or practices which

because of their pernicious effect on competition and
lack of any redeeming virtue are conclusively pre-

sumed to be unreasonable and therefore illegal with-

out elaborate inquiry as to the precise harm they have
caused or the business excuse for their use." Northern

Pac. Ry. V. United States, 356 U.S. at 5.

Thus, agreements between competitors whose purpose

is to fix prices and those of copyright licensors pooling

their copyrights together are unequivocally banned with-

out inquiry to their effect on competition or their justi-

fication. United States v. Socony-Vacuum Oil Co., 310

U.S. 150 (1940); United States v. Loews, Inc., supra;

Northern Pac. Ry. v. United States, supra.

Notwithstanding the per se rule, the trial court in its

findings attached great significance to the fact that the

1950 consent decree enables an applicant for an ASCAP
license to petition the court to set a reasonable fee (R.

37, Fact 26, p. 7; R. 35, p. 4). The district court went

on to say that pooling of copyrights and licensing through

ASCAP is the only practical way for copyright owners

to protect their rights (R. 37, Fact 25, p. 7). Appellees
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also emphasized in argument to the court that because

joint hcensing is the only "sensible" way to market music

that this justified all the appellees' conduct and excused

their activities (Tr. 120-150).

The answer to these assertions is that the per se rule

applies and the court may not inquire into the reason-

ableness of the rate. The rate itself is immaterial. Fur-

ther, the consideration of commercial convenience to the

copyright holder is also immaterial. Therefore, the trial

court's decision so far as it is based upon these considera-

tions is in error.

The reasonableness of rates is immaterial

Specification of Errors 9, 10

Price fixing under the Sherman Act is illegal per se.

Absolutely no justification can be shown:

"The reasonableness or unreasonableness of the rates

does not militate against the absolute control of

ASCAP to fix prices. The vice of the arrangement is

apparent because, as the Supreme Court stated in

United States v. Socony-Vacuum Oil Co., 310 U.S.

150, 223, 60 S.Ct. 811, 844, 84 L.Ed. 1129, '.
. . the

machinery employed by a combination for price fix-

ing is immaterial.' " M. Witmark & Sons v. Jensen,

80 F.Supp. 843 at 849.

The Trenton Potteries decision is the landmark case for

the proposition that reasonableness is no excuse. Most later

decisions cite and rely upon its mandate as their touch-

stone:

"The aim and result of every price fixing agree-

ment, if effective, is the elimination of one form of

comnetition. The power to fix prices, whether rea-

sonably exercised or not, involves power to control

the market and to fix arbitrary and umeasonable
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prices. The reasonable price fixed today may through

economic and business changes become the unrea-

sonable price of tomorrow. Once established, it may
be maintained unchanged because of the absence of

competition secured by the agreement for a price

reasonable when fixed. Agreements which create such

potential power may well be held to be in them-
selves unreasonable or unlawful restraints without the

necessity of minute inquiry whether a particular price

is reasonable or unreasonable as fixed and without

placing on the government in enforcing the Sherman
Law the burden of ascertaining from day to day
whether it has become unreasonable through the mere
variation of economic conditions. Moreover, in the

absence of express legislation requiring it, we should

hesitate to adopt a construction making the difference

between legal and illegal conduct in the field of busi-

ness relations depend upon so uncertain a test as

whether prices are reasonable. . .
." United States v.

Trenton Potteries Co., 273 U.S. .392, 397-398 (1927).

Thus, the trial court's finding that apellants have an

absolute right to petition the court for a determination

of a reasonable rate is immaterial to this case. The pricing

devices established by paragraph X of the consent decree

(Def. Ex. A-2) may satisfy the Depaitment of Justice,

but they do not satisfy the Supreme Court.

The decree cannot by any stretch of the imagination

sanction pooling arrangements in derogation of the law,

or deprive appellants of their rights bestowed by the

Sherman Act. Yet as being used today, it actually encour-

ages these practices.

Convenience to the appellees is no excuse

Specification of Error 9

"To this defense the shortest answer is that the

law does not allow an enterprise that maintains con-

trol of a market through practices not economically
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inevitable, to justify that control because of its sup-

posed social advantage [citing cases]. It is for Con-

gress, not for private interests, to determine whether

a monopoly, not compelled by circumstances, is ad-

vantageous. And it is for Congress to decide on what
conditions, and subject to what regulations, such

monopoly shall conduct its business." United States

V. United Shoe Mack Corp., 110 F.Supp. 295, 345

(D. Mass. 1953), Aff'd, 347 U.S. 521 (1954).

"The necessities or convenience of the patentee do

not justify any use of the monopoly of the patent

to create another monopoly." Mercoid v. Mid-Con-
tinent Invest. Co., 320 U.S. at 666.

In the most recent case, the court's ruUng is quite clear:

".
. . plaintiff cannot justify such use of the monop-

olies of patents, by arguing the necessities and con-

venience to it of such a policy." Hazelfine Research,

Inc. V. Zenith Radio Corporation, 239 F.Supp. at 77.

"Whatever may be the asserted reason or attempted

justification of Hazeltine, its efforts to compel de-

fendant to accept a package of patents involved use

of the patent or group of patents as a lever . . . Such
a licensing scheme ... is illegal. . .

." Id. at 77.

"If good business reasons and expressions of good
intent would serve as a defense for restraining trade,

the Sherman Act would be rendered impotent and
would afford no aid to the free flow of commerce."
Id. at 78.

In other words, inconvenience is the appellees' problem

and not the covuts' nor the appellant's, and again the

trial court's emphasis and reliance on this feature is im-

material and in error.^"*

I
14. We suggest, however, that appellees could police infringements

through a cooperatively financed organization such as ASCAP, but with-

out tying or coupling the protective efforts with unlawful pooling, price

regulating, or sharing fees. A membership organization supported by
dues could do the policing job.
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Eflfect on competition

The effect of the per se rule is not only to declare

commercial convenience and reasonableness of prices im-

material, it also has the effect of obviating the usual

Sherman Act requirement of showing that the conduct

in question has an adverse effect on competition.

"Certain contractual restraints are usually con-

demned out of hand by the language of Section 1,

without the necessity of any exhaustive analysis of

the facts. Here the courts have little discretion. Re-

straints so presumed to be per se unlawful are those

whose purpose or effect is solely to control the prices

in or foreclose access to the market place. Thus
agreements between competitors whose only purpose

is to fix prices . . . and those of a licensor . . . unrea-

sonably e.xercising leverage to tie a unique product

to some other product have no objective other than

to restrain trade and are necessarily banned if the

language of Section 1 is to have any meaning. Again,

transactions between competitors—regardless of pri-

mary purposes—whose principal effect is to cause an
unnatural increase in the general level of prices in

or arbitrarily to exclude other competitors from the

market, in most cases are likewise viewed as undue
restraints of trade which violate the section.

"
'. . . there are certain agreements or practices which

because of their pernicious effect on competition and
lack of any redeeming virtue are conclusively pre-

sumed to be unreasonable and therefore illegal with-

out elaborate inquiry as to the precise hann they

have caused or the business excuse for their use.'

"

Van Cise, Understanding the Antitrust Laws 24, 25

(1963), citing numerous cases for the above, and
quoting Northern Pac. Ry. v. United States, 356 U.S.

1, 5 (1958).

A landmark case could not state the ade more clearly

or unequivocally:

"Under the Sherman Act, a combination formed
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for the purpose and with the effect of raising, de-

pressing, fixing, pegging, or stabilizing the price of

a commodity ... is illegal per se." United States v.

Socony-Vacuum Oil Co., 310 U.S. 150, 223 (1940).

In view of the above, the appellant is not required to

show how appellees' conduct stifles competition. Never-

theless appellant will show later in this brief how in a real

and practical way appellees' activities stifle competition.

Particular Violations of the Anti-Trust Lau>s

ASCAP and its members are violating Section 1 and 2

of the Sherman Act despite the consent decree. ASCAP

and its members are:

(a) extending their copyright privileges;

(b) fixing prices and stabilizing rates between indi-

vidual copyright members in licensing performance
rights;

( c ) excluding non-member copyright holders from the

market;

(d) tying the license of desirable music to undesirable

music and poor music to valuable music.

(e) forcing full package licensing, and offering illusory

and unreasonable alternatives.

The Witmark and Alden-Rochelle cases clearly establish

these activities as violations, and nothing in the 1950

decree pertaining to broadcasters has changed this. The

facts of the two cases are so like those in the case at bar

that defendants will quote them at length.

The Witniark decision

"Plaintiffs in these cases are seeking (1) damages
for alleged infringement by defendants of certain

musical composition copyrights owned by plaintiffs,

and (2) an injunction restraining future threatened
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violation of these copyrights. Plaintiffs contend that

defendants, who operate certain motion picture the-

atres, give public performance of those compositions

for profit when showing certain films in their theatres

without first obtaining from plaintiffs a license to

perform publicly the compositions for profit. De-
fendants contend that plaintiffs are entitled to no
relief upon the gi-ounds that ( 1 )

plaintiffs have
illegally extended their copyrights, and (2) plain-

tiffs' method of doing business is in violation of the

Shei-man Anti-tmst Act, 15 U.S.C.A. § 1-7, 15 note.

Unless these defenses can be sustained, it follows

from the evidence that plaintiffs have established in-

fringements of the musical copyrights referred to in

the complaint and are entitled to an injunction, dam-
ages and counsel fees.

s a o

"There are some fifteen thousand theatres in the
United States which obtain music performance rights

from ASCAP. The performance rights of any musical

composition controlled by ASCAP may be licensed

singly, but it appears tliat ASCAP's copyrighted

music is always licensed as a group under a blanket

license from ASCAP. And while the copyright own-
ers, including the plaintiffs herein, since the consent

decree entered into in 1941 between ASCAP and
the Federal Government may deal individually with

anyone seeking a license for the performance of their

composition publicly for profit, it seems that, in the

licensing of the performance rights of the music inte-

grated in a sound film, as a matter of practice the-

atre owners have but little opportunity to obtain

licenses from the many individual copyright owners
belonging to ASCAP who may have copyrighted
music in the particular film purchased by the theatre

owner. Defendants term the right of granting in-

dividual licenses by the individual ASCAP copyright
owner as 'illusory' in that the motion picture theatre

owner is generally required to buy lus pictures for

his theatre before he knows what copyrighted music
may be contained therein. . . . and there is no deviation

in the manner in which theatre owners obtain a li-

cense for the performance rights of copyrighted



68

music. They all clear through ASCAP, and for years

ASCAP has built up its business in this regard ac-

cordingly and with full knowledge of all of these

circumstances. In fact, one of the witnesses, in-

formed as to the methods of doing business in this

regard, testified, and his testimony is not contra-

dicted, that he had never heard of any theatre owner
approaching anyone but ASCAP for performance

rights where the music was copyrighted by an

ASCAP member." M. Witinark & Sons u. Jensen, 80
F.Supp. at 844-845.

At this point it can be seen how similar the Witmark

case is to the present case. The nature of the plaintiffs'

actions and the defendants' contentions are identical.

Both theatre owners and radio broadcasters must have

ASCAP music (Tr. 165, 205, 264, 273). In both the copy-

right owner members of ASCAP could deal individually

(R. 37, Facts 23, 24, 25, p. 7), and in both, as a matter

of practice, they do not or will not. There is no devia-

tion in the manner in which radio owners obtain per-

formance rights licenses, and it is impossible for radio

stations to contact copyright owners for individual licenses

prior to playing each record (R. 37, Facts 24, 25).

Mr. Lincoln Miller testified, and the testimony is un-

contradicted, that he has never heard of any radio broad-

caster approacliing anyone but ASCAP for performance

rights (Tr. 165).

Continuing with Judge Nordbye's decision:

"The United States Court of Appeals for this cir-

cuit has held in Remick Music Corp. v. Interstate

Hotel Co., (1946), 157 F.2d 744, at page 745, certiorari

denied, 329 U.S. 809, 67 S.Ct. 622, 623, 91 L.Ed.

691, 1296, that the right to perform a composition

publicly for profit and the right to record it are sep-

I
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arate and independent rights.

o o o

"And because of the claimed right to split the

licensing of the recording rights and perfonnance
rights, plaintiflFs urge that the asserted extension of

their copyrights is merely the copyright monopoly
which has inured to them because of the advance-

ment in the motion picture industry which has in-

augurated sound films and devised the teclinique of

integrating the sound script with the background of

music and songs ... By placing the control of per-

fonnance rights for motion pictures in a Society

maintained by them, they have obtained a potential

economic advantage which far exceeds that enjoyed

by one copyright owner. The power, although it may
be argued it has been benevolently exercised in the

past, nevertheless fully exists. Tlirough ASCAP, these

plaintiffs and their associates by a refusal to license,

or by the imposition of an exorbitant performance
license fee, can sound the death laiell of every mo-
tion picture theatre in America. That it would not

be good business economics for them to do so does
not mitigate the economic advantage which these

plaintiffs have obtained in addition to that which
is granted to them by their lawful copyright monop-
oly. Free competition among the members of ASCAP
to license individually their music is effectively

curbed, if not completely obliterated, by the scheme
of operation which the members of ASCAP have
adopted . . . The pooling of all license fees obtained
from the licensing of some 80% of all sound music
in motion pictures and the sharing of the revenues
thus obtained permit each copyright owner to enjoy
the benefits obtained by other copyright owners. So
it will be seen that plaintiffs have also tied their

copyrights with other copyrighted music and thus

have shared in the rewards which are obtained from
other copyrighted material.

"Instead, therefore, of having a single monopoly
of a particular piece of copyrighted music and the

benefits which that might afford, every copyright
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owner of music in ASCAP obtains the added eco-

nomic power and benefit which the combined
ASCAP control gives to them and their associates.

Obviously, no one copyright owner would have the

monopolistic power over the motion picture industry

which ASCAP now enjoys.

o o e

"However free plaintiffs and their associates in

ASCAP may have been from any design or intent

to extend their copyright monopoly, or however
beneficial it may be for them to carry on their busi-

ness in this manner, or however inconvenient it may
be for them to function otherwise, such facts and
circumstances will not peiTnit them to enlarge their

lawful monopoly. As stated by the Supreme Court
iji B. B. Chemical Co. v. Ellis, 314 U.S. 495, 498,

62 S.Ct. 406, 408, 86 L.Ed. 367: "'...The patent

monopoly is not enlarged by reason of the fact that

it would be more convenient to the patentee to have
it so, or because he cannot avail himself of its bene-
fits within the limits of the grant.'

"It is the collective acts and agreements of plain-

tiffs and their associate members which have diverted

their copyrights from their 'statutory purpose and
become a ready instrument for economic control in

domains where the anti-trust acts or other laws not

the patent statutes define the public policy.' Mercoid
Corporation v. Mid-Continent Inv. Co., supra, 320
U.S. at page 666, 64 S.Ct. at page 271. Refuge can-

not be sought in the copyright monopoly which was
not granted to enable plaintiffs to set up another
monopoly, nor to enable the copyright owners to tie

a lawful monopoly with an unlawful monopoly and
thus reap the benefits of both.

"It seems undeniable that there is no competition
among ASCAP members. Competition is effectually

restrained because all licenses are granted by ASCAP
under its control and domination. All earnings de-
rived from licenses are pooled and divided among
the members . . . And while it is contended that tlie
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present rates arrived at in February, 1948, were
acquiesced in by some twelve thousand motion pic-

ture exhibitors as being fair and reasonable and that

they were wiUing to execute contracts with ASCAP
thereunder, the price fixing power was nevertheless

vested in ASCAP. The reasonableness or unreason-

ableness of the rates does not militate against the

absolute control of ASCAP to fix prices. The vice

of the arrangement is apparent because, as the Su-

preme Court stated in United States v. Socony-
Vaciimn Oil Co., 310 U.S. 150, 223, 60 S. Ct. 811,

844, 84 L.Ed. 1129, '.
. . the machinery employed by

a combination for price fixing is immaterial. Under
the Sherman Act a combination formed for the pur-

pose and with the effect of raising, depressing, fixing,

pegging, or stabilizing the price of a commodity in

interstate or foreign commerce is illegal per se.'

"It cannot be denied, therefore, that plaintiffs and
their associates, acting in concert through ASCAP,
fix prices and completely control competition and
thereby restrained trade in violation of Section 1

of the Sherman Anti-trust Act which declares illegal

'every contract, combination in the form of trust or

otherwise, or conspiracy, in restraint of trade or

commerce among the several states.' Moreover, it

seems inescapable on this record that plaintiffs,

through ASCAP, have achieved monopolistic domina-
tion of the music integrated in the sound films in

the motion picture industry and have effectively mo-
nopolized that part of trade and commerce in viola-

tion of Section 2 of the Sherman Anti-trust Act."

M. Witmark & Sons v. Jensen, 80 F.Supp. 847-850.

(Emphasis added)

The Alden-Rochelle decision

"So that ASCAP might act for all its members most
effectively, each member assigned to ASCAP the

non-dramatic performing rights of his copyrighted
musical compositions. The sums that ASCAP col-

lected were kept in a common fund and a division

of the proceeds, less expenses, was made at regular

intervals. The division was one-half to the publisher
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members, and one-half to the composer and author

members.

"ASCAP is governed by a board of directors of 24
members. Prior to 1941 they were self-perpetuating,

but since then 12 members are selected by the

publishers and 12 by the composers and authors.

The 12 who represent the publishers determine how
the publishers' share of the fund shall be divided

among the publishers; the 12 directors who represent

the composers and authors perform a like service in

allotting their respective shares to the composers and
authors. From their determination there is a right

of appeal to the Board of Appeal; and from its de-

cision an appeal may be taken to the full board of

directors.

"The division of the publishers' share among the

publisher members is based upon the popularity,

earning capacity, seniority and the number and qual-

ity of the compositions in a publisher members'
catalog. Popularity or vogue is determined by a sur-

vey of the compositions played over certain broad-
casting chains in a given period." Alden-Rochelle v.

ASCAP, 80 F.Supp. at 891.

This is exactly the same procedure ASCAP follows

today. See Articles of Association of ASCAP, Article IV

and Article XV, Sec. 1(c) (Def. Ex. A-4).

As in the present case, the court also found that indi-

vidual per piece licensing would be impracticable.^^

15.

"A 'per piece' license would be commercially impracticable. Ex-
hibitors frequently contract for films before they are produced.

The 'cue sheets' for the film are made available when the picture is

released for exhibition purposes. They list the musical compositions

included in the picture. The extra labor and great e.xpense of get-

ting 'per piece' licenses for the musical compositions on a film is

evident when we consider the film needs of an average neighborhood
house, which exhibits two double feature shows weekly. Each fea-

ture contains parts or selections from about 20 musical compositions.

Eighty per cent of the musical compositions on films is ASCAP
music. That would require 64 'per piece' licenses a week, not in-
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Nevertheless, in Alden-Rochelle, the court found that

ASCAP and its members were in violation of both Sec-

tions 1 and 2 of the Sherman Act:

"Almost every part of the ASCAP structure, almost

all of ASCAP's activities in licensing motion picture

theatres, involve a violation of the anti-tnist laws.

Although each member of ASCAP is granted by the

copyright law a monopoly in the copyrighted work
it is unlawful for the owners of a number of copy-

righted works to combine their copyrights by any
agreement or arrangement, even if it is for the pur-

pose of thereby better preserving their property

rights." Ibid.

The significance of Alden-Rochelle and
M. Witniark & Sons

Faced with the rulings of Alden-Rochelle and Wit7nark,

the conclusions of the trial comt in this case that com-

mercial expedience is an excuse and that the anti-trust

laws have not been violated are incredible. If not, then

the Alden-Rochelle and Wittnark cases should be re-

versed and the principles upon which they are founded

declared no longer the law.

ASCAP's price fixing in the broadcasting industry

(Specification of Error 10)

As previously established, not only does ASCAP's board

of directors initially determine the fees charged (R. 30,

eluding licenses for music which is used on newsreels and short sub-

jects. Exhibitors naturally prefer a blanket license good for a year,

covering all musical compositions controlled by A.SCAP. For a 'per

piece' license ASCAP charges $10.00, plus. For a yearly blanket

license the cost to the average neighborhood theatre is less than

$100. Not a single theatre ever requested a 'per piece' license from

ASCAP." Id., at 893.
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Fact 24, p. 6), but it also determines the t\qpe of licenses

which will be oflFered.

"Q. The Board of Directors of ASCAP initially deter-

mines the license rates for ASCAP's repertory and
the terms of the licenses, doesn't it?

"A. Yes." (Def. Ex. A-31g, testimony of Stanley Adams,
President of ASCAP.) (Emphasis added.)

This is a form of price fixing regardless of the exact

rate of the fee.

Furthermore, Stanley Adams, President of ASCAP, tes-

tified:

(a) One of the primary purposes of ASCAP is to

assure the member a uniform price for his work.

(Def. Ex. A-31g, p. 59)

(b) The rate charged for music has nothing to

do with the type of music used. (Def. Ex. A-31g,

p. 61)

(c) There is one rate charged to all stations, re-

gardless of the amount of music each uses, the kind

of music each uses, or the quality each uses. (Def.

Ex. A-31g, p. 61)

The consent decree only requires ASCAP to issue two

types of licenses—blanket and per program. The decree

does not require that ASCAP issue any other kind of

license, and it does not state that these are the only

kinds of licenses ASCAP can offer. See United States v.

ASCAP, No. 13-95 Amended Final Judgment, Section VI.

(Def. Ex. 2).

Judge Sylvester J. Ryan, in a 1962 proceeding under

the 1950 decree, held that the court administering the

consent decree was powerless to compel ASCAP to issue

different types of licenses from the two called for. The

court held Section IX deals only with the procedure for
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determining reasonable fees, not types of licenses.

"The entire Section IX, which speaks of a fee for

the 'license requested' following application for a
license . . . deals with the procedure for determining
the reasonable license fees, not types of licenses. The
words 'license requested' do not mean that an ap-
plicant for a license is given the right under the
decree to compel ASCAP to give any type of license

it demands and have the court fi.x the fee." United
States V. ASCAP, In the Matter of the Application
of Shenandoah Valley Broadcasting, Inc., Civil 13-95,

supra.

Therefore, copyright owners, by their membership in

ASCAP, in pooling their copyrights, are enabled through

the selection of the form or type of license they chose to

issue to in practical effect regulate and stabilize the prices

at which they sell their copyrights. This is accomplished

by refusing to calculate fees except by a percentage of

gross revenues. All other kinds of licenses, such as per

piece, licenses for specialty catalogues at reduced rates

and clearance at the source by licensing recording com-

panies, are denied. (See R. 30, Facts, 81, 82, 83, p. 14.)

ASCAP has effectively fixed the range within which

music users can obtain licenses by formulating the type

of license and the boundaries for assessments of fees.

"Hence prices are fixed within the meaning of the
Trenton Potteries Co. case if the range within which
purchases or sales will be made is agreed upon, if

the prices paid or charged are to be at a certain

level or on ascending or descending scales, if they
are to be uniform, or if by various formulae they
are related to the market prices, they are fixed be-
cause they are agreed upon. And the fact that, as

here, they are fixed at the fair going market price is

immaterial." United States v. Socomj-Vacuum Oil
Co., 310 U.S. 150, 222 (1940).
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In United States v. Socony Vacuum Oil Co., it was

held that price fixing can be accompUshed in many ways,

for example where

".
. . the means for price fixing are purchases or

sales of the commodity in a market operation or,

as here, purchases of a part of a supply of the com-
modity for the purpose of keeping it from having a

depressive effect on the markets ..." Id. at 224.

Thus, the members of ASCAP have in concerted action

agreed to offer only one form of license to broadcasters.

This form calls for only one uniform method of payment,

namely, on a selected uniform percentage of gross plus

a uniform sustaining fee. This is price fixing pure and

simple.

It has been stipulated, some stations desire and need

only special styles or catalogues of music programming

such as western, religious, "good music," classical and

"top 40" (R. 30, Fact 81, p. 14). ASCAP does not offer

licenses for special catalogues in order to satisfy these

needs (R. 30, Fact 82, p. 14). Instead, by the bulk form

of license ASCAP chooses to issue, broadcasters are re-

quired to subscribe to and pay for a catalogue of over

one million compositions containing much music which

is absolutely worthless to them. The vast portion of it

is outdated, much of it is of a style most stations cannot

use, most of it of inferior quality, and never had any

value whatsoever for radio use (R. 30, Fact 83, p. 14).

Lincoln M. Miller, assistant president, Queen City

Broadcasting Company, operator of KIRO, AM-FM and

TV station, testified without contradiction as follows:

"Q. So you believe that the blanket license you have
today from ASCAP is significantly cheaper than
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the cost would be to you then to take the kind

of hcense you discussed?

"A. It is cheaper than that, certainly not higher. It is

still—we are still paying for a lot of music we
can't possibly use." (Tr. 173)

In United States v. Masonite Corporation, 316 U.S. 265

(1942), the defendants, who were patent holders, used

cross-licensing agreements as the vehicle to pool their

patents. The patent holders established a community de-

vice to sell their patented products. The method used

was that each patent holder appointed the Masonite com-

pany to handle the sales of its products. As with ASCAP,

Masonite set the initial prices and terms of sale.

The court in Masonite struck down the patentees' joint-

selling device as a violation of the Sherman Act, saying:

"Control over prices thus becomes an actual or po-
tential brake on competition. This kind of market-

ing device thus actually or potentially throttles or

suppresses competing and non- infringing products

and tends to place a premium on the abandonment
of competition . . . the power of this kind of com-
bination to inflict the kind of public injury which
the Sherman Act condemns renders it illegal per se.

If it were sanctioned in this situation it would permit
the patentee to add to his domain at public expense
by obtaining command over a competitor. He would
then not only secure a reward for his invention, he
would enhance the value of his own trade position

by eliminating or impairing competition. That would
be no more permissible than a contract between a
copyright owner and one who has no copyright, or

a contract between two copyright owners or pat-

entees, to restrain the competitive distribution of the

copyrighted or patented articles in the open market."

United States v. Masonite Corporation, 316 U.S. at

281-282.
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The right to have the court set a reasonable fee under

Section IX of the consent decree is illusory. In the first

place, the Socony-Vacuum Oil Co. decision states:

".
. . the machinery employed by a combination

for price fixing is immaterial." United States v.

Socony-Vacuum Oil Co., 310 U.S. 150, at 223.

In the second place, it establishes an artificial method

of price determination alien to the free play of the

market place. By this device i^rices are not only stabi-

lized within the rigid framework of the blanket formula

ASCAP requires, but the actual fee imposed under these

contracts is immediately insulated from competitive forces.

Thus, copyright holders have neatly and effectively, under

the guise of court supervision, pegged their prices within

a given range and added the stabilizing influence of court

administration.

For would-be users, the right to petition the court for

reasonable fees is also illusory. The 1959 all-industry

radio committee negotiations leading to determination of

fees pursuant to paragraph IX of the decree took over

a year and a half to complete. It is economically impos-

sible for individual broadcasters to obtain a rate deter-

mination under paragraph IX. The legal fees alone would

be more than the license fees defendants would have to

pay for over a decade under the present forms of license.

Nor is appellant impressed with appellees' argument

that after the 1950 decree the individual members of

ASCAP have the right to license their music individually

and all that ASCAP has is a non-exclusive right. This

was no obstacle to Judge Nordbye or Judge Liebell:

"In passing, it may be noted that the consent de-

cree of 1941 permitting individual copyright owners



79

to issue individual licenses for performance rights

does not preclude a finding that ASCAP is in viola-

tion of the anti-trust laws in other respects." M.
Witmark & Sons v. Jensen, 80 F.Supp. 843, 849.

The Zenith Radio Corporation decision is particularly

appropriate to this argument. It opposes the trial court's

conclusion that offering to license individual copyrights

by individual owners (R. 37, Fact 25, p. 7; Fact 50, p.

15) and the fact that the license riglits ASCAP has are

non-exclusive justify the pooling device. (R. 37, Fact 21,

p. 6)

In the Zenith case, the plaintiff sued for infringements,

and defendant Zenith asserted that plaintiff was misusing

its patents in violation of public policy and the Sherman

Act, Sections 1 and 2, and it ".
. . therefore, came into this

court with unclean hands and is therefore barred from

receiving any relief ..." Hazeltine Research, Inc., v.

Zenith Radio Corporation, 239 F.Supp. at 69. As in the

present case, the plaintiff had through the years accu-

mulated a huge number of patents for licensing the elec-

tronics industry. Royalties were required to be paid on

the licensees' entire production, whether its products em-

ployed any or many of the plaintiff's patents. As in the

present case, the license was in effect a covenant not to

sue the licensee or its customers should the plaintiff deter-

mine there was an infringement. Id. at 69, 70. (Compare

the standard ASCAP licenses, Def . Ex. 9. ) During the

course of attempting to have Zenith sign a full package

license, the plaintiff offered several alternatives of less

than full packages but at unrealistic rates. Zenith refused

them all and was sued for infringement. (See various

offerings by the plaintiffs, Id. at 70-72. ) The court said of

the various alternatives:



80

"PlaintifFs offer to license its patents individually

but at royalty rates far in excess of the package rate

was never an alternative to its controlling policy to

grant defendant a license only under all its patents.

Rather, it was proposed by Hazeltine in the later

stages of its negotiations in the instant case to cloak

the harshness of the original demand by seemingly

meeting the request of defendant in that regard.

Although it may be said that the Hazeltine proposals

on the surface were offers to treat of individual

patents, the design was quite apparent—to force by
unlawful coercion the acceptance of unwanted pat-

ents. This constituted an illegal extension of the pat-

ent monopolies. Whatever may be the asserted reason

or attempted justification of Hazeltine, its efforts to

compel defendant to accept a package of patents in-

volved the use of one patent or group of patents as

a lever to compel the acceptance of a license under
others. Such a licensing scheme under applicable

decisions of the Supreme Court is illegal and con-

stitutes a misuse of the patents invoh'ed." Id. at 77.

Blind selling practices and block booking

There is absolutely no way for a broadcaster to know

at any given time whether a particular composition is in

the ASCAP repertory. ASCAP's pool of over a million

copyrights is far too vast for any individual broadcaster

to cope with. ASCAP's repertory changes literally from

minute to minute (R. 37, Fact 23, p. 7). Therefore, if a

broadcaster signs one of the two forms of ASCAP blanket

licenses he still doesn't have protection from infringe-

ment, which is the only value of the licenses. ^^ These

facts spell out a case of blind selling practices. These

practices were condemned in the Wif7ruirk and Alden-

16. If records were cleared at the source by recording companies
(which the ASCAP Membership Agieement prohibits, see argument later

in this brief), there would be no problem. This is the practice in the

movie industry, as a result of the Witmark and Alden-RnrhcUe cases, and
the subsequent amendment of the consent decree in 1950.
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Rochelle cases, about which cases enough has already

been stated.

The Witmark and Alden-Rochelle courts also found

ASCAP's members in violation of the Sherman Act for

block booking activities.

"By pooling their rights and pooling the license

fees derived therefrom, each in some way shares in

the copyrighted work of the others. This has all the

evils of 'block booking' which was analyzed and con-

demned in U. S. V. Paramount Pictures, D.C. 66 F.

Supp. 323 at pages 348-349, and in the opinion of the

U. S. Supreme Court Mav 3, 1948." Alden-Rochelle,
Inc., V. ASCAP, 80 F.Supp. at 895.

Appellees are still today pooling their rights and

nothing has changed since these decisions.

A more recent pronouncement condemning block book-

ing is the case of United States v. Loew's, Inc., 371 U.S.

38 ( 1962 ) . In the Loetv's case the United States brought

separate anti-trust actions against six major distributors

of copyrighted movie films for television exhibition, alleg-

ing that each defendant had engaged in block booking

in violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act. The com-

plaints asserted that the defendants had, in selling to

television stations, conditioned the Hcense or sale of one

or more feature films upon the acceptance by the station

of a package or block containing one or more unwanted

inferior films.

As in the present case, the appellees claimed they

offered Hcenses for individual films. In the Loew's case

the television stations had indeed requested licenses for

individual films. The court found the various offers to

license individual films were actually illusory. (Cf. the

Zenith Radio case, supra.

)
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This is the same situation that exists in the music in-

dustry. It would be a "useless and futile act" for appel-

lant to request a per piece hcense (No. 30, Fact A.F. 27,

p. 16). Making a request is not significant anyway, be-

cause, as noted in Alden-Rochelle, 80 F.Supp. at 893,

"Not a single theatre ever requested a 'per piece' license

from ASCAP."

Broadcasters on numerous occasions have requested

per piece licenses from ASCAP and the reply has been

silence (Def. Ex. A-15 to A-22, letters requesting per

piece licenses). The fact is that there is not a single per

piece license existing between any of the numerous ap-

pellees herein, or ASCAP, and any user of music in the

State of Washington (R. 30, Fact 21, 26, 28, pp. 5, 6),

and there aren't even any per program licenses (R. 30,

Fact 62, p. 11). Whenever ASCAP writes broadcasters, no

mention is made of the availability of per piece contracts

(Def. Ex. A-24, being several letters from ASCAP to

radio stations). More significantly, when ASCAP's and

these appellees' lawyer threatened to sue several broad-

casters in 1963, the demand was made that the station

sign blanket licenses and no mention was made of the

availability of per program or per piece licenses (Def.

Ex. A-43).

Tying agreements

It has been stipulated in this case that each musical

copyright is "unique" (No. 30, Agreed Fact 61, p. 11).

In the Loews case the court condemned tying agree-

ments per se because of the unique nature of copyrights.

"This case raises the recurring question of whether
specific tying arrangements violate Section 1 of the

i
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Sherman Act. This court has recognized that 'tying

agreements serve hardly any purpose beyond the

suppression of competition.' " United States v. Loews,
Inc., 371 U.S. 38, 44 (1962).

A showing of market dominance is not required.

"The standard of illegality is that the seller must
have 'sufficient economic power with respect to the

tying product to appreciably restrain free competition

in the market for the tied product . .
.' Northern

Pacific R. Co. v. United States, 356 U.S. 1, 6. Mar-
ket dominance—some power to control price and to

exclude competition—is by no means the only test

of whether the seller has the requisite economic
power. Even absent a showing of market dominance,

the crucial economic power may be inferred from
the tying product's desirability to consumers or from

uniqueness in its attributes." Id. at 45.^'

Note that the court stressed both "uniqueness" and the

product's "desirability to consumers."

"Since the requisite economic power may be found
on the basis of either uniqueness or consumer appeal,

and since market dominance in the present context

does not necessitate a demonstration of market power
in the sense of Section 2 of the Sherman Act, it

should seldom be necessary in a tie-in sale case to

embark upon a full-scale factual inquiry into the

scone of the relevant market for the tying product

and into the corollary problem of the seller's per-

centage share in that market. This is even more ob-

viously true when the tying product is patented or

copyrighted, in which case, as appears in greater

17. The Loews action was instituted under Section 1 of the Sherman
Act, because Section 2 was not needed. In the present case, however,

both would be applicable because ASCAP has market dominance. The
Loew's case involved only a few dozen films rather than over a million

copyrights like ASCAP—more than 50 per cent of all performances by
stations are compositions controlled by ASCAP (No. 37, Fact 18, p. 5),

music is essential to stations (Tr. 6) and without ASCAP music stations

would not be able to operate (Tr. 165, 205, 246, 273).
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detail below, sufBciency of economic power is pre-

sumed." Ibid, footnote 4.

"The requisite economic power is presumed when
the tying product is patented or copyrighted, Inter-

national Salt Co. V. United States, 332 U.S. 392;

United States v. Paramount Pictures, Inc., 334 U.S.

131. This principle grew out of a long line of patent

cases which had eventuated in the doctrine that a

patentee who utilized tying arrangements would be
denied all relief against infringements of his patent.

Motion Picture Patents Co. v. Universal Film Mfg.
Co., 243 U.S. 502; Carbice Corp. v. American Pat-

ents Dev. Corp., 283 U.S. 27; Leitch Mfg. Co. v.

Barber Co., 302 U.S. 458; Ethijl Gasoline Corp. v.

United States, 309 U.S. 436; Morton Salt Co. v.

G. S. Suppiger Co., 314 U.S. 488; Mercoid Corp. v.

Mid-Continent Investment Co., 320 U.S. 661. Ibid.

at 45 and 46.

In United States v. Paramount Pictures, Inc., 334 U.S.

131, 156-159, the principle of the patent cases was ap-

plied to copyrighted films which had been block booked

into movie theatres:
'

"It is said that reward to the author or aitist serves to

induce release to the public of the products of his

creative genius. But the reward does not serve its

public purpose if it is not related to the quality of

the copyright. Where a high quality fihn greatly

desired is licensed only if an inferior one is taken,

the latter borrows quality from the former and
strengthens its monopoly by drawing on the other.

The practice tends to equalize rather than differen-

tiate the reward for the individual copyrights. Even
where all the films included in the package are of

equal quality, the requirement that all be taken if

one is desired increases the market for some. Each
stands not on its own footing but in whole or in

part on the appeal which another film may have.

As the District Court said, the result is to add to the

monopoly of the copyright in violation of the prin-
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ciple of the patent cases involving tying clauses."

334 U.S. at 158.

The block booking practices of ASCAP completely

thwart any possibility that each composition should stand

on its own footing and command its own value in the

market place.

Appellees, by maintaining membership in ASCAP, frus-

trate the purpose of both the copyright laws and the anti-

trust laws. For example, the two forms of ASCAP blanket

hcenses offered in this state include a "sustaining fee."

This is a flat fee that is related to nothing. It is like a

poll tax, or a penalty, and all music—good and bad

—

shares in the charge.

Appellees even admitted in the pretrial order that:

"The performance rights to some music in ASCAP
repertory is vastly more valuable than the perform-
ance rights to other music in ASCAP's repertory, and
of all the millions of musical compositions copy-
righted a very few become hits or of any significant

value. This is also true of the performance rights to

music written by plaintiffs." ( No. 30, Fact 83, p. 14.

)

How can appellees justify the existence of ASCAP
practices, or even ASCAP, in view of this obvious viola-

tion—poor music sharing in the rewards which should

go to good music—good music subsidizing bad music?

After a running battle in the depositions on this point,

appellees finally conceded that it was impossible to even

tell how much of the ASCAP revenue was attributable

to any particular music, or from where the money came

regarding any particular music (R. 30, Fact 85, p. 14).

The argument that the so-called "Per Program" license

oflFers a meaningful alternative is rendered invalid by the
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Zenith Radio decision:

"Moreover, the reward demanded by plaintiff for a

license under less than the full package of patents

is in no way related to the quality of the patents

since the price is determined solely by the number
of patents chosen and most of the patents in the

package are characterized by Hazeltine itself as

'insignificant.' " Hazeltine Research, Inc., v. Zenith

Radio Corporation, 239 F.Supp. at 72.

By appellees' own admission,

".
. . of all the millions of musical compositions

copyrighted a very few become hits of any significant

value. This is also true of . . . music written by
plaintiffs." (No. 30, Fact 83, p. 14.) (Emphasis

added

)

The Loew's case demonstrates that particularly where

copyrights are concerned little latitude will be condoned:

"There may be rare circumstances in which the doc-

trine we have enunciated under Section 1 of the Sher-

man Act prohibiting tying arrangements involving

patented or copyrighted tying products is inapplica-

ble. However, we find it difficult to conceive of such

a case, and the present case is clearly not one. . . .

"Enforced block booking of films is a vice in both

the motion picture and television industries, and that

the sin is more serious ( in dollar amount ) in one than

the other does not expiate the guilt for either."

Loew's, Inc., supra, at 49 and 50.^^

18. The court disposed of one trial court's points and an argument

appellees make herein. Appellees contend that the individuals stand

ready to negotiate with the broadcasters (R. 37, Fact .50, p. 15). This

is nonsense as a practical matter. Appellees contend that, because of

the illusory possibility that someone might sometime try to locate some

of the over 8,000 members of ASCAP for separate licenses, their whole

colossal tying agreement is somehow cleansed:

"Appellants . . . make the additional argument that each of them

was found to have entered into such a small number of illegal con-

tracts as to make it improper to enter injunctive relief. Appellants

urge that their over-all sales policies were to allow selective pur-

chasing of films and that, in light of this, the fact that a few con-
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The Loews and Zenith Radio cases also dispose of the

argument that the ASCAP bulk licensing arrangement

is somehow necessary to the industry. ^^

".
. . tying arrangements, once found to exist in a

context of sufficient economic power, are illegal 'with-

out elaborate inquiry as to . . . the business excuse

for their use,' Northern Pacific R. Co. v. United

States, 356 U.S. 1, 5." Id. at 51 and 52. (See also,

Hazeltine Research, Inc., v. Zenith Radio Corpora-

tion, supra.)

Refusal to license performance rights with

recording rights

(Specification of Errors 2, 16, 17, 20-24, 20-25,

20-26, 20-28(c), 33, 34, 42-9)

Particular contractual devices to restrain

ASCAP's members have in force mutual restrictive agree-

ments making it impossible for other and new methods

tracts were found to be illegal does not justify the entering of in-

junctive relief. We disagree. Illegality having been properly found,

appellants cannot now complain that its incidence was too scattered

to warrant injunctive relief. The trial judge, exercising sound judg-

ment, has concluded that injunctive relief is necessary to prevent

further violations." Id. at 50.

The foregoing case makes the present case a fortiori. Whereas the

defendants in the Loews case had many legal contracts and only a few

illegal ones, the plaintiffs in relation to ASCAP have an immense tying

agreement and virtually no competitive licenses.

Other reasons making the present a fortiori are: (1) ASCAP does not

advise broadcasters that there are different licenses available to them,

nor do appellees or other members of ASCAP (Def. Ex. A-24). (2) In

Washington no other forms of licenses were filed with the Secretary of

State as being available to broadcasters (R. 37, Fact 49, p. 15). (3)

In the Lnew's case film salesmen vigorously competed among themselves

to sell their film lines, but ASCAP members never go into the field to

sell their product (Def. Ex. A-31a, pp. 60-62).

19. We frankly don't know how anyone would know this since as far

as broadcasters are concerned ASCAP preceded them and have never

offered anything else as an alternative. ASCAP started doing business

in 1914. By the time the broadcasting industry came on the scene

ASCAP's economic power and market control was already complete.

No alternatives could be tried or tested.
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of marketing music to develop. The trial court found the

following facts which were previously stipulated to by

the parties:

"Recording companies generally acquire only the

recording rights to musical compositions." (No. 37,

Fact 71, p. 19.)

"At the time of the alleged infringement and now,
there were and are no licenses in effect between
ASCAP or any plaintiff and any recording company
authorizing broadcasting stations to perform any mu-
sical composition publicly for profit." (No. 37, Fact

72, p. 19.)

"ASCAP has never offered such to recording com-
panies nor to defendants' knowledge has any such
license ever been requested." (No. 37, Fact 73,

p. 19.) ,

"None of the plaintiffs has ever offered such li-

censes to recording companies nor to defendants'

knowledge has any such license been requested."

(No. 37, Fact 74, p. 19.)

ASCAP and its members control the rights of public

performance of all musical compositions in ASCAP's rep-

ertory recorded with recording companies. This restrain-

ing feature, when applied to performance rights recorded

or synchronized with movie films, was struck down by

Judge Leibell in the Alden-Rochelle decree.

It is obvious why performance rights are not cleared

at the source. This would require ASCAP's members to

compete among themselves and bargain with recording

companies on prices for clearance of performance rights.

It was stipulated that composers and publishers actively

compete to have their music recorded by recording com-

panies and played by broadcasting companies (No. 30,

Fact 70, p. 12). However, though there is competition
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among ASCAP members to have their music recorded in

the first instance, there is no competition to sell perform-

ance rights because these are split off from the recording

rights and licensed in bulk. (See Appendix '"G" for testi-

mony of one witness which demonstrates the paradox of

radio stations being urged to play music on the one hand

and then being forced to pay for the favor.) Herman

Starr, president of one of the largest copyright owning

publishing houses in the world. Music Publishers Holding

Company, testified the members are not allowed to bar-

gain when it comes to performance rights and their prices.

(Def. Ex. A-3/a Deposition of Herman Starr, pp. 60-62.)

This refusal to bargain is accomplished by the ASCAP

pooling device. It is further augmented by tacit under-

standings among the members not to clear performing

rights when records are sold,^*' and by certain express con-

tractual arrangements described in the following pages.

Before describing these arrangements, an expression of

the requirements necessary to show conspiracy is appro-

priate. The Zenith Radio decision gives the most recent

expression:

"It is fundamental that an unlawful conspiracy may
be and often is formed without simultaneous actions

or agreement on the part of conspirators. Acceptance
of an invitation to participate in a plan, the neces-

sary consequence of which, if carried out, is to re-

20. During the trial Mr. Herman Finkelstein, General Counsel for

ASCAP since 1943, testified that it is his business to be informed on all

contracts negotiated and used in the music business, and that, accord-

ingly, he knows that no contracts exist or have ever been requested

which provide that a radio station would be authorized to perform

musical compositions by a recording company (Tr. 333, 334). This

is strong circumstantial evidence of a tacit understanding among mem-
bers not to issue such licenses to recording companies and that it is

Mr. Finkelstein's duty to keep track of these matters and to see that

none of ASCAP's members do so license recording companies.
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strain commerce, is sufficient to establish a conspir-

acy under the Sherman Act. Knowledge of a scheme
that illegally restrains trade and participation in the

plan without such knowledge is all that is required to

establish a conspiracy under the antitrust laws and
prior agreements need not be shown to have been
made between each and all of the conspirators in

order to establish a violation of the Sherman Act."

Hazeltine Rescant, Inc., v. Zenith Radio Corporation,

239 F.Supp. at 77.)

"The character and effect of a conspiracy are not

to be judged by dismembering it and viewing its sep-

arate parts but only by looking at it as a whole."

Id. at 78.

The uniform popular songwriters contract

The Uniform Popular Songwriters Contract is the stand-

ard form of agreement used between composers and pub-

lishers. It contains this restrictive provision:

"All performance rights are . . . subject to any
existing agreements between any of the parties here-

to and the American So'^iety of Composers, Authors

and Publishers." (Def. E.x. A-12, 1947 revised agree-

ment attached to Lew Brown-Elbee Production, Inc.,

contract, which has been stipulated as a standard

form of agreement used in the industry today and
by the appellees herein now.)

Standard form of recording contract

The standard clause found in agreements between

ASCAP's members and recording companies expressly

withholds performance rights thereby making it impos-

sible for broadcasters to obtain performance rights with

the purchase of records:

"This agreement is entered into with the under-

standing and agreement that nothing herein con-

tained shall be deemed to free the phonograph rec-
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ord manufactured pursuant to this license from fur-

ther contribution to the copyright in the event of its

being used for performance for profit." (See Def.

Ex. A-41 and A-42, Forms of Agreement used by
Chappell & Co., Inc., and Herman Starr's companies

with recording companies, and stipulated to be the

standard forms prevalent in the industry.)

Contracts with advertising agencies requiring

ASCAP licenses

Another contractual device used to restrain competi-

tion among ASCAP's members is found in licenses wdth

advertising agencies which record commercial radio jin-

gles using copyrighted music.^^

By insertion of the following clause in their agency

contracts, the members of ASCAP refuse to clear the per-

formance rights for broadcast and go one step farther.

They prohibit the use of the commercial on a radio sta-

tion unless the station has first obtained an ASCAP li-

cense:

"All or any part of said musical composition when
broadcast shall be broadcast only on radio and tele-

vision networks and local stations having appropriate

licenses therefor from the American Society of Com-
posers, Authors and Publishers (ASCAP) in the

United States, or the Composers, Authors and Pub-
lishers Association of Canada Limited (CAPAC), in

Canada. Broadcasts of all or any part of said musical

compositions over radio and television networks and
local stations not licensed by ASCAP in the United

States or CAPAC in Canada are subject to clearance

of the performing rights from ASCAP, CAPAC, or

21. Some of ASCAP's members, inckiding some of the plaintiffs here-

in, have received thousands of dollars from advertising agencies or other

commercial users for the right to use one musical composition as a radio

or television commercial (R. 30, Fact 57, page 2.3C). One advertising

agency paid almost $100,000 for the right to use one song published by
one of the plaintiffs as a commercial (R. 30, Fact 58, page 23C).
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us." (Def. Ex. 38. Agreement between Music Pub-
lishers Holding Corporation and J. Walter Thompson
Company, dated January 7, 1958, and stipulated to

be an example of the kind of agieements ASCAP
members generally use.

)

This contractual device has several restraining features.

It is an example of mutual agreement among ASCAP
publishers not to clear performance rights at the same

time the recording right is granted. Instead, the two are

split. This coerces a broadcaster to obtain an ASCAP
license if he wants the advertiser using the commercial

to use his station. An advertising agency which places

orders for time with broadcasting stations, by reason of

the agreements, cannot and will not buy time from a sta-

tion which does not have an ASCAP license.

A dramatic example of this coercion came to the appel-

lant's attention after the trial. Attached hereto in Ap-

pendix "I" is a letter from McCann-Erickson, Inc., the

agency handling the Humble Oil & Refining Company

account, refusing to place an order with a Washington

radio station rmless it has an ASCAP license. (Letter

dated February 14, 1962, from McCann-Erickson, Inc., to

Radio Station KWYZ. ) The same refusal was also sent to

one of the defendants after the trial date. (See Appendix

"I".) (Error for refusal to admit.)

The above contractual restraints are illegal under the

Sherman Act. As previously stated, this practice of split-

ting performance rights and recording rights was struck

down in the film industiy. In both the Witmark and

Alden-Rochelle cases the courts condemned the practice

of movie producers requiring exhibitors to have ASCAP
licenses before they could show films.
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In entering a judgment against the ASCAP members,

the court suggested the following solution:

"Undoubtedly, the simplest plan for the copyright

owners belonging to ASCAP would be for them to

issue both synchronization rights and performance

rights to the producers. This would provide a free

competitive market in the motion picture industry

for all copyright owners of music suitable for use in

sound films. That the cost of the performance license

would be passed on to the theatre owner is entirely

probable, but plaintiffs would not be using their

copyright privilege contrary to the public interest."

M. Witmark & Sons v. Jensen, 80 F.Supp. at 850.

As a result of this in the sequel Alden-Rochelle de-

cision Judge Leibell put the following in his decree:

".
. . Plaintiffs are entitled to injunctive relief under

title 15 U.S.C. § 26 (15 U.S.C.A. § 26), as follows:

"(e) Restraining ASCAP and its members from
conspiring with motion picture producers for the

purpose of including a clause in contracts issued by
producers to exhibitors directly or indirectly requir-

ing exhibitors to obtain a license from ASCAP as a

condition to the exhibition of licensed pictures."

Alden-Rochelle, Inc., v. ASCAP, 80 F.Supp. at 902.22

22. The decree as amended compelled ASCAP to issue to motion

picture prodnrcrs licenses for performance rights so that the films could

be exhibited b\' the theatre exhibitors anywhere in the United States

without obtaining a separate license fPara. V (C) of the consent decree

of 1950. Def. Ex. A-2). Thus, movie exhibitors today do not need

licenses from ASCAP for performance rights. The\' are cleared "at the

source"—through the producers. The exhibitors ultimately pay for the

performance rights in the cost of the film.

Similar to the Washington Copyright Protection Act, the consent

decree orders ASCAP to issue licenses for performance for profit to film

producers—at the source—"on a 'per film' basis." (Para. V (C) (3) of

the 19.50 consent decree. Def. Ex. A-2). In addition, the negotiations

on a "per film basis" are expressly forbidden from being negotiated

on an "industry-wide" basis (Para. IV (C) (3) of the 1950 consent de-

cree. Def. Ex. A-2).

The broadcasting industry, it is interesting to note, demanded clear-

ance at the source in the Shenandoah case, supra. The demand was

made that the consent decree required ASCAP to clear films for tele-
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ASCAP members also are guilty of giving those who

request performance rights with recordings the "run-

around" as the practice was characterized by Justice

Goldberg in the Loews case decided in 1962, and Zenith

Radio decided in 1965. For example, Mr. Starr testified

that when his publishing companies were asked to clear

music performing rights in a pre-recorded program for

later broadcast that if the potential licensee

".
. . insisted upon being given a price, he could

not afford this price, plus the various terms that

[they] would have to tie in with the price." (Def.

Ex. A-31(a) Deposition of Herman Starr, pp. 58-59.)

Appellees make it impossible for users to get clearance

the source by the old shell game.

The Effect of Competition

As shoMm previously, prices for musical copyrights in

the ASCAP pool are fixed and stabilized because: (1)

The ASCAP Board of Directors initially determines the

fee and the terms of the license (R. 30, Fact 24, p. 6)

(Def. Ex. A-31(g), p. 13); (2) Only one basic type of

license is offered or required to be offered (R. 30, Facts

22, 28, 43, 44, pp. 5, 6, 9); (3) The form of license per-

mits only one method of assessing fees—a percentage of

gross revenues plus a flat sustaining fee (R. 30, Fact 23,

p. 5, and Def. Ex. A-9); (4) ASCAP music is licensed only

on a bulk basis and there is only one price for all music,

regardless of its quality.

vision use as well as theatre use. ASCAP opposed it on the ground that

the broadcasters were not a party to the consent decree and have no
standing to make the request. The Supreme Court of the United States

upheld ASCAP, and held that only ASCAP itself, or the United States,

the two parties to the decree, can intervene in the terms of the consent

dei^ree. See Sam Fox Publishing Co. v. United States, 366 U. S. 683
(1961).
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The results of this artificial method of assessing fees

are that on every dollar a broadcaster receives from the

sale of his time, the copyright holder takes his tribute.

No single copyright holder has the muscle to force a

music user to pay on gross. It is only by placing the

control of a vast number of copyrights in a performance

rights society that the copyright holders have the power.

Let there be no mistake, the power still exists. This

was eloquently demonstrated in 1959 when ASCAP
brought tlie broadcasters to their knees by refusing to

issue any hcenses in the State of Washington. Tliis fact

is stipulated in the Pretrial Order:

"In 1959 ASCAP refused to offer licenses to any
broadcasters located in the State of Washington.
(No. 30, Fact 73, p. 13) (Emphasis added.)

The appellees are ignoring the fact that music is not

the only ingredient making up a broadcaster's product.

The broadcaster sells an intangible complex composed of

his announcers' voices, his disc jockeys' talent, and his

news staff's efficiency (Tr. 269). A broadcaster takes

great pains to see that his over-all station programming

has a certain sound (Tr. 171) or style to compete against

other stations seeking advertising revenues. The program

sold to the time buyer is a complex, imaginative compo-

site.^^ (Tr. 210, 305). No announcer can force a broadcast-

er to pay him tribute by requiring a percentage of gross

23. The testimony of Mr. James W. Wallace, President of KPQ, is

pertinent:

"I know exactly what music we play. We have a list of it.

"As to how I arrive at knowing what the music should be, I should

give you a background (here the witness lists his qualifications to

know his community) . . . and the,se things are all necessary for a

small-town radio station man to know what the people want.

"For one thing, almost 60 per cent of our income comes from

sources other than music . . . but still we are obligated under any
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sales. No newscaster or sportscaster can. No sales man-

ager can successfully demand "To have my services you

must pay me a percentage of your gross." Only the

music composer can exact such tribute and pirate man-

agement's imagination, the disc jockey's personality, the

newsman's skill and the sales manager's ideas.

Furthermore, this point is clear. Every witness called

by the defendants testified he could not successfully op-

erate his station without the music controlled by ASCAP
(Tr. 165, 205, 246, 273, 314). Appellees offered no evi-

dence otherwise.

Once a broadcaster has a blanket license encompassing

over a million copyrights, only a minute percentage of

which he can possibly use, he has no incentive to deal

vdth individual composers. Thus, unknown individual

songwriters are effectively screened from the market.

Those composers not members of ASCAP have no means

of selling their songs to broadcasters, the most important

means for popularizing music (Tr. 24, 25, 26, 169, 317-

319).

But for ASCAP's e.xistence, the individual copyright

owner would be required to find another and lawful

method to market his music and to do so he would have

contract offered us by ASCAP to pay on the total amount and not

on that portion of the music used." (Tr. 210-211).

One witness testified that on his station only 44 per cent of the station's

revenues come from programs where music is involved (Tr. 225). He
further stated:

"Our principal revenue comes from news, sports, politics and
programs and announcements that pay a premium rate to be adja-

cent to news." (Tr. 226).

Furthermore, it was stipulated that broadcasters must offer di\'erse

programming. If they broadcast only music, the Federal Communica-
tions Commission could question their right to operate (Tr. 16-17).
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to price it also.^^ The free play of competition would

provide a solution as happened when Judge Leibell freed

motion picture exhibitors from ASCAP's restrictive prac-

tices and required licensing at the source. The same solu-

tion would come if recordings were cleared at the source.

As previously pointed out, stipulation and testimony

in the trial established that composers are anxious to have

stations play their music, but there is no individual bar-

gaining or negotiating between broadcasters and com-

posers (Tr. 24, 25, 26, 169). Herman Starr, president of

Music Publishers' Holding Corporation, the holding com-

pany owning 100% of the stock of several of the appel-

lees herein and a member of the Board of Directors of

ASCAP for 25 years, testified not only is there no com-

petition among the ASCAP members, but, indeed, their

employees are forbidden to talk price because ASCAP
is the only one allowed to do so.

"Q. Will you answer the question, please?

"A. They have nothing to do with price.

"Q. That is fixed by the ASCAP license, isn't it?

"A. Yes, it is not within their scope to talk price. These
are people who go out to exploit music. They are

not salesmen." (Def. Ex. A-312, Dep. of Herman
Starr, pp. 60-62)

Appellees and the trial court relied heavily upon the

24. Testimony of Mr. Lincoln Miller, Assistant President, KIRO
AM-FM-TV:

"We try to adjust what we call the sound because it is different

from other stations so we might want to play all western or all reli-

gious, so in the case of our station (KIRO, Seattle) we try to balance

with a little bit of everything, but if we knew what the price tags

were, this could well influence the kind of music we play and bal-

ance with the kind of music we play. It would certainly influence

our decision because the economics would be right in front of us.

We would be free to determine." (Tr. 171, 172).
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stipulated fact that it would be commercially impossible

for broadcasters to negotiate with each individual copy-

right owner for each composition played (No. 30, Fact

56, p. 10; No. 37, Fact 25, p 37; No. 25, Memo. Opinion,

pp. 5-6). Yet, appellees offered no evidence that other

marketing methods such as clearance at the source on

records are impossible or for that matter impractical.

Broadcasters testified that if records were marked and

the performing rights cleared with the recording rights,

it would be a simple matter for them to operate and pay

performance rights fees with the purchase of records, and

they would welcome the opportunity to do so. (See Ap-

pendix "H" at pp. 284, 306 for text of testimony. ) Music

received from networks is cleared at the source, as is

background music and music on motion picture films

(No. 30, Fact 59, p. 11). This demonstrates that hcensing

at the source is workable if only given a chance. ^^

Although the trial court apparently chose to ignore it,

several experienced broadcasters testified that hcenses

using a fee schedule based upon per piece rates would

be workable so long as price lists were available ( Tr. 170-

171, 210-211, 266, 268-269, 284, 303-307). (See text in

Appendix "H.")

Monopolization— Violation of Section 2

The appellant next calls the court's attention to appel-

lees' violation of Section 2 of the Sherman Act. Testi-

mony shows that ASCAP controls almost all the copy-

25. That this licensing at the source works is shown by European
practice of having the recording company hcensee pay fees to the copy-

right owner in ratio of the sales of the copyright owner's records to the

total sales of records by the recording company. Shemel and Krasilovsky,

The Business of Miisic, 22 (1964).
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righted show tunes in the country. Show tunes or pop-

ular standards, the uncontroverted testimony shows, are

the bread and butter of the defendants' programming.

Without them defendants will die. Thus ASCAP has

effectively monopolized the show tune market, not to

mention the general performance rights market. The act

of monopolization is condemned by Section 2. See Amer-

ican Tobacco Co. v. United States, 328 U.S. 781 (1946);

United States v. Aluminum Co. of America, 148 F.2d 416

(2d Cir. 1945); United States v. United Shoe Mach.

Corp., 110 F.Supp. 295 (D. Mass. 1953), Aff'd, 347 U.S.

521 (1954).

Section 2 requires the courts to move against two acts,

namely, an attempt by a single person (ASCAP) and

conspiracies by two or more persons (the members) to

monopolize. More than 50% of all performances of copy-

righted music—not just show tunes—by broadcasting

stations in the United States are licensed by ASCAP and

are performances of compositions in which the copyrights

are held by members of ASCAP (R. 37, Fact 18, p. 5).

Therefore, ASCAP has violated Section 2 by its monop-

olization of music licenses and its members have violated

the section by conspiring to monopolize. Hazeltine Re-

search, Inc., V. Zenith Radio Corp., 239 F.Supp. 51

(1965).

Misuse of the Copyris;ht Privilege Constitutes a

Defense to Infringement Actions

(Specification of Errors 23, 25, 26, 29, 30, 35, 36,

37,40,41,42,44,45,47,51)

Appellees contend that appellant's violations of the

Washington law and the federal antitrust laws are not
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defenses to infringement suits; appellant contends that

they are.

Appellees' contention is based upon two grounds

—

federal supremacy and that the doctrine of unclean hands

is inapphcable.

The Effect of Violation of State Statutes

As previously shown, the United States Supreme Court

held that states have the power to regulate combinations

of copyright owners notwithstanding the fact that copy-

rights flow from federal power. Federal bestowal of

privileges does not mean federal bestowal of immunity

from state law or bestowal of the right to misuse a

privilege.

The Supreme Court said that statutes like Washington's

were ".
. . aimed at the power exercised by combinations

of copyright owners over the use of musical compositions

for profit." Buck v. Gallagher, 307 U.S. at 99. The court,

in dealing with the question of supremacy of federal

copyright laws over the state laws, held in a case involv-

ing a Florida statute like Washington's:

"We find nothing in the copyright laws which
purports to grant to copyright owners the privilege

of combining in violation of otherwise valid state or

federal laws . .
." Watson v. Buck, 313 U.S. at 404.

"It is enough for us to say in this case that the

phase of Florida's law prohibiting activities of those

unlawful combinations described in Sec. 1 of the

1937 Act does not contravene the copyright laws

or the federal constitution ..." Id. at 405.

This disposes of the appellees' contention of federal

supremacy and that the Washington law is unconstitu-

tional.

i
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Appellees urge that appellants, by resorting to the

state statute as a defense, seek to deprive the appellees

of their rights. The Washington Act does not prohibit

the bringing of federal suits for infringement. The act only

provides the copyright holders who choose to pool their

interests and do business in Washington must license on

a per piece basis in accordance with Washington laws.

The Supreme Court suggests a course for those who com-

plain about losing their patent rights to infringers:

"Equity may rightly withhold its assistance from
such a use of the patent by declining to entertain

a suit for infringement, and should do so at least

until it is made to appear that the improper practice

has been abandoned." Morton Salt Co. v. G. S. Sup-
piger Co., 314 U.S. 488, 493 (1942).

Whether the Washington legislature's prohibitions

against pooling, and issuing blanket licenses and requir-

ing per piece licenses is considered by appellees or the

District Court as workable, practicable, or fair is beside

the point. (See Argument, supra.) It is not the prerog-

ative of the music peddlers to tell the Washington leg-

islature or Washington courts what is right, just, fair or

reasonable. The copyright holders and the trial court

are mistaken if they expect their subjective opinions

of what is fair to supersede the Washington lawmakers'

determinations.

The same can be said for the trial court's opinion that

individual licensing is impossible because this would

hinder the copyright owners in policing their rights and

increase the cost of their administration (R. 35, 37, Fact

25, p. 5). The United States Supreme Court settled this

by the doctrine that expediency is no excuse. (See Argu-

ment, supra, and several cases previously cited.) The
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following pronouncement clearly shows the error in the

trial court's reasoning:

"Nor is it within our province in determining whether
or not this phase of the state statute comes into col-

lision with the Federal Constitution or laws passed
pursuant thereto, to scrutinize the act in order to

determine whether we believe it to be fair or unfair,

conducive to good or evil for the people of Florida,

or capable of protecting or defeating the public in-

terest of the state. These questions were for the leg-

islature of Florida and it has decided them." Watson
V. Buck, 313 U.S. at 403.

In Leo Feist v. Young, 138 F.2d 972 (7th Cir. 1943),

a Wisconsin statute was urged as a defense to copyright

infringement suits. The court held that violation of the

statutes would not constitute a defense because the Wis-

consin statute was a licensing statute ".
. . not relevant

or material to the issue presented by the complaint."

Leo Feist v. Young, 138 F.2d at 976.

The Wisconsin statute did not involve the same public

interest considerations as the Washington Act. It was

not an antitrust statute as is Washington's. Furthermore,

and very significantly, the Wisconsin statute did not make

it is a crime for a user of music to deal with the plaintiffs. ^^

The Feist court stated that, had the Wisconsin statute

been one protecting the public interest, as are the Wash-

ington statute and the federal antitrust laws, then the

public interest must prevail over the interests of indi-

vidual copyright holders:

"In reaching our conclusion we have not over-

looked the fact that the Supreme Court has recently

26. In Washington, RCW 19.24.100 and RCW 19.24.290 make it a

criminal offen.se punishable by fine and imprisonment for anyone to sign

blanket licenses or to deal with any violator of the act. The Wisconsin
statute has no counterpart.
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stated that courts of equity may appropriately with-

hold their aid where the plaintiflF is using the right

asserted contrary to the public interest. Morton Salt

Co. V. Suppiger, 314 U.S. 488, 492, 62 S. Ct. 402,

86 L.Ed. 363, or many cases which hold that equity
will not aid a law violator, or the fact that the maxim
is applied, not to favor a defendant, but because
of the interest of the public. But in most of these

authorities the plaintiff was seeking to extend the
scope of his lawful patent monopoly beyond the

scope of the grant or was seeking equity's aid

against the very statute which he had violated. Thus
the illegal action, which warranted the application of

the clean hands doctrine to preclude relief, was in-

extricably intermingled and connected with the cause
of action or at least directly related to it, whereas
here the violation of the Wisconsin statute was col-

lateral to the cause of action and certainly not di-

rectlv related to it." Leo Feist v. Young, 138 F.2d
at 976.

Appellees' misconduct is related to the appellant's, in-

extricably intermingled and connected to the causes of

action for infringements, and directly connected with

the issues being litigated.

ASCAP and its members are violating the Washington

Act by issuing blanket licenses. The very activities which

the act condemns are the very reasons why the appellant

is placed in the position of infringing. If the appellees

were not violating the act, namely, issuing blanket li-

censes, the appellant could lawfully do business with

them. It was clearly established by the testimony that

stations must have ASCAP music to operate and stay in

business. Appellant and all users of music in Washington

are on the horns of a dilemma. If they are forced to

take ASCAP's illegal blanket licenses, they will be violat-

ing Washington law. If they play music without an
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ASCAP license, they will be sued for infringement. Al-

though appellant must have ASCAP music to stay in

business, there is no lawful or practical means offered to

it to have the music.^'

Their only alternative, therefore, is to close their sta-

tions and go out of business:

"The injury to Zenith's business was occasioned by
the necessity that defendant make a choice among
alternatives each of which had an adverse economic
effect on its business. It was forced either to cease

manufacturing and selling its television receivers,

pay tribute with consequent increase in its costs or

incur the expenses incident to the defense of pro-

tracted patent litigation. Although defendant's choice

determined the nature and amount of the resulting

damages, it was the necessity of having to choose
that occasioned injuiy." HazeJtine Research, Inc. v.

Zenith Radio Corporation, 239 F.Supp. at 72.

The Effect of Misusing Copyrights

In ruling that misuse of copyrights and patents renders

the right granted unenforceable, the courts are applying

old and tested equity principles. It does not matter really

whether the abuses flow from violations of specific stat-

utes such as federal antitrust laws. The principles applied

are principles of basic fairness. One should not be al-

lowed to forge a privilege beneficently bestowed into a

tool to exploit others and foster one's own schemes in

derogation of the rights of others. When patents or

copyrights are being used to foster monopoly, rather than

reward incentive and provide for the public good, courts

invariably refuse their aid:

"An illegal combination of copyrights and a pool-

27. It has been stipulated that it is impractical for defendants to deal

with the thousands of individual copyright owners.

I
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ing of the proceeds derived from the hcensing of the

copyrights through the illegal combination, renders

unenforceable the rights granted under the Copyright
Act, at least while the illegal combination continues.

See Morton Salt Co. v. G. S. Suppiger Co., 314 U.S.

488, 62 S.Ct. 402, 86 L.Ed. 363; B. B. Chemical Co.

V. Ellis, 314 U.S. 495, 62 S.Ct. 406, 86 L.Ed. 367, and
United States v. Line Material Co., 333 U.S. 287,

at Page 310, 68 S.Ct. 550. . .
." Alden-Rochelle, Inc.

V. ASCAP, 80 F.Supp. at 904.

The Witmark case is indistinguishable from the present

case. The court could not have been more specific in

clearly holding that unclean hands and abuse of copyright

laws are defenses to infringement actions.

"One who unlawfully exceeds his copyright monopoly
and violates the antitrust laws is not outside the pale

of the law, but where the Court's aid is requested,

as noted herein, and the granting thereof would tend
to serve the plaintiffs in their plan and scheme with
other members of ASCAP to extend their copyrights

in a monopolistic control beyond their proper scope,

it should be denied." M. Witmark & Sons v. Jensen,

80 F.Supp. at 850.

A leading case is the Mercoid case which unequivocally

teaches that patent abuses are a defense to an infringe-

ment action:

"In those cases both dire-^t and contributory in-

fringement suits were disallowed on a showing that

the owner of the patent was using it 'as the effective

means of restraining competition with its sale of an
unpatented article.' " Mercoid Corporation v. Mid-
Continent Investment Co., 320 U.S. 661, 665 (1944).

"It is sufficient to say that in whatever posture the
issue may be tendered courts of equity will with-

hold relief where the patentee and those claiming
under him are using the patent privilege contrary

to the public interest. " Id. at 669.
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To the same effect see International Salt Co., Inc. v.

United States, 332 U.S. 392, 401 (1947):

"In an equity suit, the end to be served is not

punishment of transgression, nor is it merely to end
specific illegal practices. A public interest served by
such civil suits is that they effectively pry open to

competition a market that has been closed by de-
fendants' illegal restraints."

The same principles are applicable to copyright actions

as they are to actions involving patents:

"Since one of the objectives of the patent laws is

to reward uniqueness, the principle of these cases

was carried over into antitrust law on the theory that

the existence of a valid patent on the tying product,

without more establishes a distinctiveness sufficient

to conclude that any tying arrangement involving the

patented product would have anti-competitive conse-
quences. E.g., International Salt Co. v. United States,

332 U.S. 392. In United States v. Paramount Pictures,

Inc., 334 U.S. 131, 156-159, the principle of the

patent cases was aoplied to copyrighted feature films

which had been block booked into movie theaters."

United States v. Loew's, Inc., 371 U.S. at 46.

The case of Kobe, Inc. v. Dempsetj Pump Co., 198 F.2d

416 (10th Cir. 1952) cert, denied 344 U.S. 837 (1952),

is very much in point. In this case the plaintiff in an in-

fringement suit was found to have monopolized the rod-

less oil pump industry by buying up all present and fu-

ture patents in the field and extracting covenants not to

compete from sellers. (Much like ASCAP has "bought"

all the performance rights of its members and extracted

covenants they will not license through anyone else (R.

30, Fact 68, p. 12), and with the understanding they will

not compete). In affirming the trial court's treble damage

judgment in favor of the defendant and its refusal to
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grant relief to the plaintiff because of patent misuse, the

court stated, per Pickett, C. J.:

"It is said that to allow recovery of the damages
resulting from the infringement action would be a

denial of free access to the courts. We fully recognize

that free and unrestricted access to the courts should
not be denied or imperiled in any manner. At the

same time we must not permit the courts to be a ve-

hicle for maintaining and carrying out an unlawful
monopoly which has for its purpose the elimination

and prevention of competition." Kobe Inc. v. Demp-
sey Pump Co., 198 F.2d at 424.

Again in the recent Zenith Radio case, the court

granted the defendant a defense to infringement suits

and allowed counterclaimed damages of several mil-

hon dollars where it was shown the plaintiff had misused

its patents and violated the antitrust laws. Relief and

damages were awarded on the traditional grounds that

the plaintiff came into ".
. . court with unclean hands and

is therefore barred from receiving any relief. . .
." Hazel-

tine Research, Inc. v. Zenith Radio Corporation, 239 F.

Supp. 51, 69 (1965).

There is another factor that should be called to the

court's attention. It is not necessary for the appellant to

show that the appellees have violated the antitrust laws

for the court to grant appellant a defense. This distinction

can be seen in studying differences between the Mercoid

and the Morton Salt cases.

In Mercoid the Supreme Court expressed the mandate

that one who misuses his patent privilege in violation of

the antitrust laws must by the nature of his abuse of

the patent privilege lose his right to protect that privilege

by suit. Whereas in Morton Salt, there was no finding



108

that the patentee had violated the antitrust laws. Never-

theless the court held:

"It is unnecessary to decide whether respondent

has violated the Clayton Act, for we conclude that

in any event the maintenance of the present suit to

restrain petitioner's manufacture or sale of the alleged

infringing machines is contrary to public policy and
that the district court rightly dismissed the complaint

for want of equity." Morton Salt Co. v. Suppiger, 314
U.S. at 494. (See the discussion of these cases in

Kintner, An Antitrust Primer, 86-87 (1964).

The Relative Culpability of the Parties

Specification of Errors 3, 5, 6, 7, 13, 14, 21, 22

Without citing any authority, the appellees, during the

trial and by memoranda, urged that although the activities

of the copyright holders may have been less than la\vful,

the real culprits were the broadcasters. The trial court

apparently accepted this argument. It ruled in its written

opinion that notwithstanding the appellees may have been

guilty of violating state or federal antitrust laws, their

violations were minimal compared with the defendants'

conduct (R. 35, Mem. Opin. p. 6; R. 37, Concl. 19, p. 24).

The court's decision was made without citing a single case

for its position. Whereas, appellant in its Post-Trial Memo-

randum ( R. 33 ) cited much authority contrary to the ap-

pellees' assertion and the trial court's apparent decision. ^^

Appellant has been unable to find any authority for the

court's determination that copyright infringement is more

28. It is interesting to note that the appellant, by written memoran-
dum, cited many cases showing that conduct like that of the ASCAP and
its members was violative of the anti-trust laws and such abuses were
defenses to infringement actions. The appellees in their memoranda cited

no cases to the contrary, and the court cited none in its opinion. Yet,

the trial court still found against the appellant on these issues.

4
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blameworthy than copyright abuse and, therefore, the in-

fringer must give ground to the abuser. On the contrary,

all the cases cited above by the appellant are just the

opposite.

The only assumption appellant can make is that the

trial court made a subjective determination all on its own.

Appellant is almost helpless to argue the matter because

the trial court was silent in its opinion on both legal

grounds and on its personal convictions for the deter-

mination. It would appear from lack of information that

the decision was almost capricious and arbitrary.

In any event, the court's weighing of the relative cul-

pability of the parties before determining whether the ap-

pellees' misconduct is a defense is in error. The courts do

not agree with the trial couit on this point. There has

been no deviation in the decisions from the traditional

concept recently enunciated by the Supreme Court:

"This principle grew out of a long line of patent
cases which had eventuated in the doctrine that a
patentee who utilized tying arrangements would be
denied all relief against infringements of his patent."

(Citations omitted.) United States v. Loews, Inc.

371 U.S. at 46.

The doctrine that abuses of copyright or patent privi-

leges is a defense to an infringement suit could only have

arisen after infringement had taken place. Without in-

fringement, the principle would never have evolved.

The Witmark case was an infringement case, and the

court said:

"One who unlawfully exceeds his copyright mo-
nopoly and violates the antitrust laws is not outside

the pale of the law, but where the Court's aid is



110

requested, as noted herein, and the granting there-

of would tend to serve the plaintiflFs in their plan

and scheme with other members of ASCAP to extend

their copyrights in a monopolistic control beyond
their proper scope, it should be denied." M. Witmark
& Sons V. Jensen, 80 F.Supp. at 850.

The infringer's wrongdoing was recognized in the land-

mark Mercoid case by the Supreme Court:

"And we may assume that Mercoid did not act

innocently." Mercoid Corporation v. Mid-Continent
Investment Co., 320 U.S. 661, 664 (1944).

Justice Jackson stated in the case:

"It is suggested that such a patent should protect

the patentee at least against one who knowingly and
intentionally builds a device for use in the combina-
tion and vends it for that purpose. That is what ap-

pears to have been done here. As to ethics, the parties

seem to me as much on a parity as the pot and the

kettle . . . The less legal rights depend on someone's
state of mind, the better." Id. at 679-680.

Of course, much of this is beside the point, as is ap-

pellees' attempt to excuse their own illegal conduct by

calling the defendants more blameworthy. The appellees

and the trial court confuse the relative conduct of the

parties with the substantive reason for denying the copy-

right holder relief. The paramount policy is the protec-

tion of the public against abuses of the copyright mo-

nopoly and from enabling copyright owners to ".
. . carve

out exceptions to the antitiiist laws which Congress has

not sanctioned." Mercoid Corporation v. Mid-Continent

Investment Co., 320 U.S. at 667.

"It is the public interest which is dominant in the

patent system ... It is the protection of the public in

a system of free enterprise which alike nullifies a
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patent where any part of it is invalid . . . and denies

to the patentee after issuance the power to use it in

such a way as to acquire a monopoly which is not

plainly within the terms of the grant." Id. at 665-666.

Again the Supreme Court lays out the rule:

"It is the adverse effect upon the public interest

of a successful infringement suit in conjunction with

the patentee's course of conduct which disqualified

him to maintain the suit, regardless of whether the

particular defendant has suffered from the misuse of

the patent . . . The patentee, like these other holders

of an exclusive privilege granted in the furtherance of

a public policy, may not claim protection of this grant

by the courts where it is being used to subvert that

policv." Morton Salt Co. v. Suppiger, 314 U.S. 488,

494 (1944).

"Maintenance and enlargement of the attempted

monopoly of the unpatented article are dependent to

some extent upon persuading the public of the valid-

ity of the patent, which the infringement suit is

intended to establish. Equity may rightly with-

hold its assistance from such a use of the patent

by declining to entertain a suit for infringement, and
should do so at least until it is made to appear that

the improper practice has been abandoned and that

the consequences of the misuse of the patent have

been dissipated." Id. at 493.

As a most recent writer puts it:

"The doctrine of misuse is grounded on a 'public

policy' and may operate on equitable grounds to

denv relief in a private suit for patent infringement."

Kintner at 86.

Another pomt that the Supreme Court is making is that

those injured by abuses of patents or copyrights should

not be less protected by the antitrust laws than those in-

jured by other violations. The antitrust laws were enacted

by Congress to afford individuals like the broadcasters
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protection against just such combined abuses as these

appellees and the other members of ASCAP are practicing.

Indeed, the broadcasters testified that they have stood

ready and willing to deal with the appellees and pay for

performing rights if they just had the simple right to

bargain as they do for other raw materials going into

their product, or if they had the right to purchase per-

forming rights with the purchase of records as the movie

producers have. (See testimony in Appendix "H.")

If these appellees and the other members of ASCAP
had not in the first instance combined their individual

copyrights to gain tremendous economic power through

control of over a million copyrights, the appellant would

not be in court today, and would not be facing the bleak

alternatives of breaking the law or quitting business. The

appellees by the nature of their infringement actions are

the first to ask this court for equitable relief. Were the

injunction to be granted, equity would not only be aiding

a lawbreaker, but would also coerce appellant to either

violate the law or to forsake his enterprise:

"Respondents ask the equity court for an injunction

against infringement by petitioner of the patent in

question and for an accounting. Should such a decree
be entered, the court would be placing its imprimatur
on a scheme which involves a misuse of the patent

privilege and a violation of the antitrust laws. It would
aid in the consummation of a conspiracy to expand
a patent beyond its legitimate scope." Mercoid v.

Mid-Continent Invest. Co., 320 U.S. at 670.

Again we see that public interest considerations are

paramount and not the relative interest of private litigates

or the relative nature of their deeds. ( See also the Zenith

Radio case, supra, where the infringer deliberately re-
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fused a bulk license and several alternative licenses and

the court correctly held for the infringer and against the

patent holder.)

As previously noted the trial court's Findings of Fact

and Conclusions of Law are given little weight in this

type of proceeding. It is so fundamental as not to need

citation that the trial court's Findings of Fact must be

based on evidence to support it unless stipulated. 5

MOORE'S FEDERAL PRACTICE 2609. There is not

one word in the entire record relating to appellant, K-91,

Inc., being in any way more culpable. Although the presi-

dent of appellant, Mr. Nelskog, was present in court

during the entire trial, appellees chose not to call him as

a witness, nor anyone else from K-91, Inc. Although Rogan

Jones was cross-examined concerning his refusal to license

under ASCAP's methods, that is completely immaterial to

this particular appellant. Mr. Jones was hardly the agent

for K-91, Inc. These cases were separate cases consoli-

dated for trial. The only evidence regarding K-91, Inc.'s

refusal to license was stipulated:

"Mr. Ronald Mubphy: Mr. Jones and Mr. Nelskog

and Mr. Wallace would testify for their stations that

if the contracts which plaintiffs offer through ASCAP
and by ASCAP were legal in this state and were
legal under federal law, they would be prepared to

do business with them and would sign the contracts.

"The Court: They will stipulate that they would
so testify.

"Mr. Topkis: We want to cross-examine a little

bit on that. Your Honor.

"The Court: Very well." (Tr. 30)

No such cross-examination ever took place concerning

appellant. The entire record as far as this appellant is



114

concerned is that it was willing to license if the licenses

were legal (Cf. Zenith Radio case, 239 F.Supp. 51 (1965)).

Yet the trial court found appellant failed to take a

license only to avoid paying license fees. Specification of

Error 3. There was no evidence to this eflFect.

The trial court also found appellant broadcast appellees'

compositions for ten years on a regular basis. Specification

of Error 6. There is no evidence to this effect. There is

no evidence that K-91, Inc. was even in existence for ten

years.

Again, there was no evidence as the court found in

appellant's Specification of Error 14 that K-91, Inc. failed

to take a license only because it wanted to avoid paying

license fees. Not only does the only evidence demonstrate

K-91, Inc. would license if the licenses were legal, but

in fact the defendants did pay fees that went to the ap-

pellees through networks (R. 30, Pre-Trial Order, Ad-

missions Nos. 1 and 2; Tr. 248).

Again, the trial court found that K-91, Inc., which has

not been in existence for ten years, committed numerous

other infringements of plaintiffs' copyrighted compositions

during the last ten years. Specification of Error 22.

In short, this case was tried primarily on the issue of

appellees' conduct. The trial court recognized at least

"minimal" violations of the federal antitrust laws on the

part of the appellees (R. 35, Mem. Op., p. 6), but then

found all defendants to have been the real culprits. There

was not one word in the entire record that K-91, Inc.

did anything even suggesting it more blameworthy, or

that it even existed for ten years—which it didn't. As

previously set forth, the cases demonstrate that in patent
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and copyright infringement cases the issue isn't whether

or not the defendant infringed. That is always conceded.

The issue is whether the plaintiff has so abused his copy-

rights as to preclude recovery from the infringer who has

in all of these cases refused to be a party to an illegal

arrangement and taken the only available alternative

—

infringement.

The Effect of the Consent Decree

Specification of Errors 43, 46 and 47

We have discussed the pertinent cases at length herein

and will not repeat them except in the briefest manner.

For instance, we have already seen that the consent de-

cree was in eflFect at the time of the Alden-Rochelle and

Wit7nark cases. In both cases, the courts gave due recog-

nition to the fact that ASCAP and its members were sub-

ject to a consent decree and that the perfonnance rights

assigned to ASCAP were granted on a non-exclusive basis

because of the consent decree. Both courts still found

ASCAP's members in violation of the antitrust laws. The

court in Alden-Rochelle issued injunctions that went far

beyond the boundaries of the consent decree.

Appellant readily admits that the consent decree is of

considerable importance to this litigation—but only be-

cause it aflFects the activities of ASCAP. The mere fact

that it is court-approved does not make it binding on

anyone other than the parties to the decree, which are

the United States and ASCAP.

It has been stipulated that no broadcaster, including

appellant herein, was a party to the action brought by

the United States against ASCAP that terminated in the

consent decree (R. 30, Fact 51, p. 10). Nor were any of
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the defendants, including appellant, consulted by the

United States concerning said action and decree (R. 30,

Fact 52, p. 10). Obviously, appellant was not consulted

by ASCAP or a representative of ASCAP (R. 30, Fact 53,

p. 10).

Not even the ASCAP members themselves can in-

tervene in the terms of the consent decree. The Fox Pub-

lishing case flatly ruled this to be the case when one of

ASCAP's disenchanted members attempted to have his

say about the terms of the consent decree.

"We regard it as fully settled that a person whose
private interests coincide with the public interest in

government antitrust litigation is nonetheless not

bound by the eventuality of such litigation, and hence
may not, as of right, intervene in it. In United States

V. Borden Co., 347 U.S. 514, 98 L.Ed. 903, 74 S.Ct.

703, it was ruled that it was an abuse of discretion

for the District Court to refuse the Government an
injunction against certain acts held violative of the

antitrust laws, even though the same acts had already

been enjoined in a private suit. It was there stated

in the clearest terms that 'private and public actions

were designed to be cumulative, not mutually exclu-

sive' {Id. 347 U.S. at 518), and, quoting from United
States V. Bendir Home Appliances, Inc. (D.C., N.Y.

)

10 F.R.D. 73, 77 '.
. . The scheme of the statute is

sharply to distinguish between Government suits,

either criminal or civil, and private suits for injunctive

relief or for treble damages. Difi^erent policy consid-

erations govern each of these. They may proceed si-

multaneously or in disregard of each other.' [Citation

omitted.] I

"This principle is certainly broad enough to make
it clear that just as the Government is not bound by
private antitrust litigation to which it is a stranger,

so private parties, similarly situated, are not bound
by government litigation." [Citations omitted.] Sam
Fox Publishing Co. v. United States, 366 U.S. at 689,

690.
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When the broadcasters requested clearance at the source

Hke that enjoyed by movie exhibitors under the terms of

the consent decree in the Shenandoah proceedings, Judge

Ryan held that since they were not parties to the decree

they could not seek to modify it and had nothing to say

about it:

"Petitioners were not parties to the judgment; they

have petitioned only as beneficiaries under it and
they may not under cover of the protection from dis-

crimination afforded them under its provisions in-

directly effect an amendment to that judgment so as

to wrest from ASCAP a type of license it is now un-

der no judicial compulsion to grant. " In the Matter

of the Application of Shenandoah Valley Broadcast-,

ing Inc. et al., Petitioners, For the Determination of

Reasonable License Fees, United States District

Court, Southern District of New York, Civil 13-95.

The illegal conduct of ASCAP and its members has

gone unheeded since the rulings of Judge Nordbye in the

Witmark decision. Just as the 1941 decree did not excuse

ASCAP's unlawful activities in 1950, the 1950 decree does

not excuse such conduct in 1965, nor does it curtail the

rights of third persons to challenge the unlawful activities.

".
. . the antitrust consent decree is not to be viewed

solely as a contract resulting from an unrestricted

bargaining process between the government and the

defendants. Rather, it is an agreement for a volun-

tary settlement of antitrust issues in which the scope

and content of the provisions therein can rise no

higher than their source in the legislative objectives

and prohibitions of the standards embodied by Con-
gress in its national antitrust policy ... It follows,

therefore, that neither antitrust officials nor a court

of equity has authority under law to induce or accept

provisions in consent decrees unless they are related

to the prevention or correction of violations of the

antitrust laws within the congressional objectives of
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that legislation. . .
." Oppenheim, Federal Antitrust

Legislation: Guideposts to a Revised National Anti-

trust Policy, 50 Mich. L.Rev. 1139 at 1230, 1234

(1952).

Price fixing under a consent decree is still price fixing

by any other name. Monopolization under a consent de-

cree is still monopolization. Pooling copyrights and sharing

fees under a decree are still activities and agreements in

restraint of trade. No decree can cut-oflF or curtail the

rights of third parties under Section 4 of the Clayton Act

(15 U.S.C.A. §15).

As the Fox Publishing case pointed out, private liti-

gants are not bound by the acts of Government to which

they are strangers. Nor can the Department of Justice

bind the legislature of the State of Washington. Although

the present arrangements found in the consent decree may

satisfy state and federal law enforcement officials and the

trial court, that does not mean they satisfy the laws passed

by the Washington State Legislature, or by Congress.

The Justice Department may determine when and how

to act to protect the public, but the Justice Department

is not infallible by any means—^witness the difference in

the 1941 decree and the 1950 decree—and the department

certainly does not have the power to determine when

and how private parties may assert their rights under

Section 4 of the Clayton Act.

The Second Circuit recently had the opportunity to

pass upon the application of the 1950 consent decree in

United States v. American Societtj of Composers, Authors

and Publishers, 331 F.2d 117 (2 Cir. 1964). In affirming

Judge Ryan's ruling that broadcasters cannot intervene

in the consent decree, that does not prevent them from
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asserting their own rights in private antitrust litigation,

such as this case is:

"If appellants' position in fact has the merit under

the antitrust laws which they assert, they have ef-

fective remedies available, either by persuading the

Department of Justice to apply under Section XVII
for a modification of the Judgment, or by a private

suit which our ruling here in no tvaij affects." United

States V. American Society of Composers, Authors and
Publishers, at 124. (Emphasis added.)

The Power of the Court

More important than damages and attorneys' fees the

appellant asks the court to issue injunctions. The specific

requests are set forth in the pretrial order as "Defend-

ants' Contentions of Law," No. 8 (R. 30, pp. 29-30), and

in Appendix "E" of this brief.

Not only should the court follow the unswerving line

of authorities and hold that appellees' activities render

their performance rights unenforceable, but the court

should compel remedial measures. Confronted with similar

copyright misuse, the trial judge in Alden-Rochelle, Inc.

V. ASCAP, supra, issued injunctions prohibiting contin-

ued wrongdoing. The court went to the heart of the

problem in the second Alden-Rochelle opinion dealing

with the decree. Alden-Rochelle, Inc. v. ASCAP, 80 F.

Supp. 900 (1948). Quoting from the Supreme Court,

Judge Leibell said:

" If the alleged combination is shown to exist, the

decree which can be entered will be no idle or futile

gesture. *" " * It will supply an effective remedy with-

out which there can be only an endless effort to rectify

the continuous injury inflicted by the unlawful com-
bination. The threatened injurv is clear.' " Alden-

Rochelle, Inc. V. ASCAP, 80 F.Supp. at 903, quoting
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Georgia v. Pennsylvania R.R., 324 U.S. at 462.

In Bigelow v. RKO Radio Pictures, 162 F.2d 520, at

page 524, the Circuit Court of Appeals, Seventh Circuit,

said:

".
. . the decree may very properly be used to de-

stroy the conspiracy root, branch, and all its evil

fruits. ..."

Thus, in Alden-Rochelle, Judge Leibell wrote a mean-

ingful decree compelling ASCAP and its members to,

among other remedies, license performing rights with

motion picture recording rights, and actually prohibited

ASCAP and its members from suing theater exhibitors

for infringement of performance rights. There is no sub-

stantive diflFerence between a musical recording and a

motion picture recording, nor is there a substantive dif-

ference between a radio station's use of a record and a

theater's use of a film. If there are, let the appellees come

forth with their brief and show us.^^

More authority for the courts' power to write far-reach-

ing and effective decrees is cited below:

"The generality of the standards of the antitrust

laws creates a broad range of discretion with respect

to the content of provisions incorporated in consent

decrees. It is clear that provisions may go beyond the

prohibition of conduct previously adjudged by the

courts as antitnist violations and embrace relief that

may be reasonably anticipated after litigation. As in

other equity decrees, a consent decree may enjoin

not only the precise transactions or conduct com-
plained against but also activities subject to abuses

29. It is interesting to note that to this day television stations using

the same films as moving picture theatres still must have ASCAP license

to broadcast the films. Judge Leibell's decision did not include films used

on television because television did not become an important factor until

after 1948.
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similar to those specified in the comx^laint." OPPEN-
HEIM, FEDERAL ANTITRUST LAWS, p. 1065

(2d Ed. 1959).
« O « O

" Tn the antitrust field the courts have been accord-

ed, by common consent, an authority they have in

no other branch of enacted law.' " VAN CISE, UN-
DERSTANDING THE ANTITRUST LAWS, p. 17

(1963).

This court has the power to pry from ASCAP the per-

formance rights of over a million compositions and release

them to users on a competitive basis; to reward those

composers deserving of reward; and to free valuable music

from subsidizing unused, unwanted and mediocre music.

This court can and should compel compulsory licensing.

"Compulsoiy licensing and sale of patented devices

are recognized remedies. They would seem particu-

larly appropriate where, as here, a penchant for abuses

of patent rights is demonstrated." Besser Manufactur-

ing Co. V. United States, 343 U.S. 444, 449 (1952).

The court can even enjoin acts which would otherwise

be permissible if it were not for the vast block booking

arrangements perpetrated by ASCAP's members. This is

the rule of the Loeiv's case in which film companies block

booked copyrighted films. In the Loeiv's case the Supreme

Court even added more to the injunctions demanded by

the trial court.

"Some of the practices which the Government seeks

to have enjoined with its requested modifications are

acts which may be entirely proper when viewed alone.

To ensure, however, that relief is effectual, otherwise

permissible practices connected with the acts found
to be illegal must sometimes be enjoined. (Citations

omitted.) When the Government has won the law-

suit, it is entitled to win the cause as well." United
States V. Loews, Inc., 371 U.S. at 53 (1962).
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CONCLUSION

This has been a long and complicated lawsuit involv-

ing many facts and many issues. The appellant respect-

fully beseeches the court to cut away the chaff and go

to the heart of the matter. This means the court should

apply the established and traditional equitable principles

laid down by the courts without deviation since the ad-

vent of patents and copyrights in this nation, and reverse

the judgment, and grant the injunctive relief, attorneys'

fees and costs sought by the appellant.

Respectfully submitted,

Ronald A. Murphy
Attorney for Appellant

K-91, Inc.

CERTinCATE OF COMPLIANCE
|

I certify that, in connection with the preparation of

this brief, I have examined Rules 18 and 19 of the United

States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, and that,

in my opinion, the foregoing brief is in full comphance

with those rules.

Ronald A. Murphy
Attorney for Appellant
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APPENDICES

APPENDIX "A"

Facts Stipulated in the Pretrial Order
But Omitted from the Findings

(Specification of Error No. 18)

18-1. Although certain defendants did not pay royalties

directly to ASCAP or the plaintiffs, they did pay royalties

to plaintiffs by paying fees to networks which passed

them on to plaintiffs. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 9, p. 3.)

18-2. The ASCAP repertory includes more than a mil-

lion musical compositions. The exact number constantly

changes. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 13, p. 3.)

18-3. ASCAP at all times pertinent, except for a period

of time in and around 1959, was and now is engaged in

issuing licenses for performances of works in its reper-

tory to broadcasters located in the State of Washington.

Such licenses are mailed by ASCAP from New York City,

signed by broadcasters in the State of Washington, thence

returned and signed by ASCAP in New York City. ( R. 30,

Agreed Fact 19, p. 5.

)

18-4. At all times pertinent hereto, each of the plain-

tiffs has been paid and received and will continue to

be paid and receive royalty compensation and other con-

sideration from ASCAP, some of which money is from

broadcasters in the State of Washington. (R. 30, Agreed

Fact 20, p. 5.

)

18-5. At all times pertinent hereto, liroadcasting sta-

tions were the only users of music located in the State

of Washington from whom ASCAP collected fees. Plain-

tiffs collected no fees from any other user located in the
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State of Washington. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 21, p. 5.)

18-6. ASCAP licenses broadcasting stations on behalf

of its members under only two types of licenses, one of

which is called "blanket" and the other "per program."

(R. 30, Agreed Fact 22, p. 5.)

18-7. The aflFairs of ASCAP are managed by its Board

of Directors, the members of which are elected by the

members of ASCAP. The fee to be quoted for any license

of the ASCAP repertory is initially determined by the

Board of Directors, as distinguished from its members.

If a user and ASCAP are unable to agree upon the initial

fee or negotiate a fee it may be determined as provided

in the Amended Final Judgment of March 14, 1950.

(R. 30, Agreed Fact 24, p. 6.)

18-8. The filings (dated July 21, 1961, and August 7,

1962), made by ASCAP with the Secretary of State of the

State of Washington, set forth the only forms of licenses

which then were and are made available by ASCAP to

users in Washington. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 25, p. 6.)

18-9. In the last ten years, neither ASCAP nor any

plaintiff has entered into any license agreement with

any broadcaster located in the State of Washington on

anv other basis than the forms refeiTed to in paragraph

23 and similar prior forms. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 26, p. 6.)

18-10. If called, plaintiffs would testify that all plain-

tiffs have at all times in the last ten years been ready

to negotiate with any broadcaster for a license to per-

form any of plaintiffs' copyrighted musical compositions

in the State of Washington on any mutually agreeable

basis, including a "per piece rate." If called, defendants

and other broadcasters would testify that the defendants

I
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did not ask for per piece licenses from the individual

plaintiflFs, because to do so would have been a useless

and futile act. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 27, p. 16.)

18-11. At all times here pertinent, plaintiffs have

received royalties for the publication of their copyrighted

musical compositions which are usually paid according

to the number of sales of individual sheet music or rec-

ords. In addition to any royalties so received, plaintiflFs

also received for the public performance for profit of

their copyrighted musical compositions royalties which

are paid in accordance with the ASCAP Articles of Asso-

ciation and Membership Agreement as amended by and

according to the provisions of the 1950 and 1960 decrees.

(R. 30, Agreed Fact 29, p. 7.)

18-12. ASCAP oflFers licenses in Washington to users

of music where fees are charged for performance of spe-

cific compositions. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 43, p. 9.)

18-13. Such licenses are not offered to broadcasting

stations located in Washington. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 44,

p. 9.)

18-14. Music is a necessity to the broadcasting in-

dustry in the State of Washington and throughout the

United States. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 45, p. 9.)

18-15. The income of any composer, author or pub-

lisher of popular music depends primarily on the public

performance of such music by broadcasting stations. (R.

30, Agreed Fact 46, p. 9.)

18-16. Very few commercial radio broadcast stations

can exist today without access to commercial use of copy-

righted music. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 47, p. 9.)
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18-17. Three music licensing organizations in the

United States hcense the non-dramatic performing rights

of substantially all of the copyrighted musical works in

the United States today. ASCAP is one of these organiza-

tions and more than 50% of all performances of copy-

righted music by broadcasting stations in the United

States are licensed by ASCAP and are performances of

compositions in which the copyrights are held by mem-

bers of ASCAP. More than 87% of ASCAP's total rev-

enue is derived from license fees paid by broadcasting

stations and networks, and less than 13% from all other

uses of music combined. In the State of Washington

100% of ASCAP's collections comes from broadcasters.

(R. 30, Agreed Fact 48, p. 9.)

18-18. ASCAP's total revenue in 1962 was $34,841,-

010.94. Revenue from radio and television stations and

networks was $30,557,084.30 in 1962, and revenue from

all other licenses was $4,283,926.62. (R. 30, Agreed Fact

49, p. 9.)

18-19. No broadcaster, including defendants herein,

was a party to the anti-trust action brought by the United

States of America, entitled "United States of America v.

American Society of Composers, Authors and Publishers,"

Civil Action No. 13-95 (United States District Court for

the Southern District of New York). (R. 30, Agreed Fact

50, pp. 9-10.)

18-20. None of the defendants herein, including de-

fendant Rogan Jones, was a party to the action entitled

"United States of America v. American Society of Com-

posers, Authors and Publishers," Civil Action No. 13-95

(United States District Court for the Southern District
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of New York), in which the Amended Final Judgment

was entered on March 14, 1950. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 51,

p. 10.)

18-21. Defendant was not consulted by an agent of

the United States concerning said legal proceedings prior

or subsequent to the said Amended Final Judgment.

(R. 30, Agreed Fact 52, p. 10.)

18-22. Defendant was not consulted by an agent or

representative of ASCAP concerning said legal proceed-

ings prior to said Amended Final Judgment. (R. 30,

Agreed Fact 53, p. 10.)

18-23. Some of plaintiffs, and other members of

ASCAP, are subsidiaries of or otherwise affiliated with

various record companies. ( R. 30, Agreed Fact 54, p. 10.

)

18-24. It would be commercially, practicably and vir-

tually impossible for defendant and almost all other

broadcasters to acquire a separate license for each per-

formance broadcast over commercial stations. It would

be commercially, practicably and virtually impossible for

plaintiffs and other composers, authors and publishers to

issue a separate license for each performance broadcast

over broadcasting stations or to have the payment for

such performances on the basis of each individual use.

(R. 30, Agreed Fact 50, pp. 10-11.)

18-25. There are approximately 5,469 stations licensed

by the FCC and broadcasting in the United States today,

the overwhelming majority being commercial broad-

casters, with comparatively very few educational broad-

casting stations. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 54, p. 11.)

18-26. Movie producers do not acquire the perform-

ance rights or any other rights from ASCAP. Performance
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for profit rights are generally acquired by networks for

their affiliated stations and by background music users

for their subscribers, and by movie producers for their

movie exhibitors. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 59, p. 11.)

18-27. There are in existence virtually no licenses for

the performance rights to music in ASCAP's repertory

between individual broadcasters and plaintiffs and other

members of ASCAP in which the broadcaster agrees to

pay for such performance rights. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 60,

p. 11.)

18-28. Each musical copyright is unique ( R. 30, Agreed

Fact 61, p. 11.)

18-29. ASCAP makes per program licenses available

to all broadcasters; fewer than 60 to 100 broadcasters

in the United States elect that form of agreement. At

the time of the alleged infringement and now, none elect

that foi-m in Washington. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 62, p. 11.)

18-35. At the time of the alleged infringement and now,

there were and are no licenses in effect between any

plaintiff, or to the knowledge of these plaintiffs any other

ASCAP member, and any recording company authoriz-

ing any broadcasting station to perform publicly for profit

any musical composition. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 63, p. 11.)

18-36. Plaintiffs do not permit any other music licens-

ing organization such as Broadcast Music Inc., or SESAC,

Inc., to license the performance of the compositions al-

leged infringed. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 67, p. 12.)

18-37. Plaintiffs do not permit any other such licensing

organizations to license the performance of any of plain-

tiffs' musical compositions. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 68, p. 12.)
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18-38. None of the plaintifiFs has ever entered into any

blanket license with any user in the State of Washington

relating to plaintifiFs' musical compositions other than

through ASCAP and by ASCAP licenses; to defendants'

knowledge plaintiffs have received no request from any

broadcaster in the State of Washington other than those

made through ASCAP for a blanket license relating to

plaintiffs' musical compositions. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 69,

p. 12.)

18-39. Composers and publishers actively compete to

have their music recorded by recording companies and

played by broadcasting stations. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 53,

p. 12.)

18-40. In 1959 ASCAP refused to offer licenses to any

broadcasters located in the State of Washington. There-

after, on November 20, 1959, the owners of many sta-

tions in the state petitioned the United States District

Court for the Southern District of New York to issue an

order directing ASCAP to issue licenses. (R. 30, Agreed

Fact 73, p. 13.)

18-41. On November 20, 1959, the said court issued

an agreed order directing ASCAP to issue licenses to the

petitioners. Such order (see Exhibit 1 annexed hereto)

was issued upon stipulation and agreement of the parties.

(R. 30, Agreed Fact 74, p. 13.)

18-42. Defendant and the other broadcasting stations

cannot obtain licenses to broadcast any of the composi-

tions contained in ASCAP's repertory except from ASCAP
or from each individual member of ASCAP or any other

person who has obtained the necessary rights from

ASCAP or from the members in interest. (R. 30, Agreed

Fact 79, p. 14.

)
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18-43. Defendant and the other broadcasting stations

cannot obtain Hcenses to broadcast any of the composi-

tions, the performance rights to which are held by plain-

tiffs, from anyone other than ASCAP or plaintiffs or from

each individual member of ASCAP or any other person

who has obtained the necessary rights from ASCAP

or from the members in interest. (R. 30, Agreed Fact

80, p. 14.)

18-44. Some stations, including some located in Wash-

ington, desire certain special styles or kinds of music

programming, such as western, religious, "good music,"

classical and "top 40." (R. 30, Agreed Fact 81, p. 14.)

18-45. ASCAP does not offer licenses to broadcasters

for special catalogues of music such as western, religious,

"good music," classical, "top 40." (R. 30, Agreed Fact 82,

p. 14.)

18-46. The performance rights to some music in

ASCAP's repertory is vastly more valuable than the per-

formance rights to other music in ASCAP's repertory,

and of all the millions of musical compositions copy-

righted very few become hits or of any significant value.

This is also true of the performance rights to music written

by the plaintiffs. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 83, p. 14.)

18-47. The revenue distributed by ASCAP, pursuant

to the consent decree, to its members from performance

rights fees cannot be segregated to determine how much

money is distributed for any particular composition. (R.

30, Agreed Fact 84, p. 14.)

18-48. ASCAP distributions, pursuant to the consent

decree, cannot be allocated to a particular state or area
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or to a particular composition. (R. 30, Agreed Fact 84,

p. 14.)

18-49. SESAC and BMI license users other than broad-

casters in the State of Washington. (R. 30, Agreed Fact

86, p. 14.)

18-50. Under the terms of the apphcation for member-

ship and a member's contract with ASCAP, all of his or

its compositions hsted in the application for membership

or written, composed or published during the term of his

or its membership, become part of the ASCAP repertory.

(R. 30, Agreed Fact 87, p. 14.)
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APPENDIX "B'
I

Facts Admitted in the Pretrial Order
But Omitted from the Findings

( Specification of Error No. 19

)

|

19-1. At all times herein pertinent, certain defendants

paid sums to networks which networks paid fees to

ASCAP for network licenses for network (but not local)

programs. (R. No. 1, p. 1.)

19-2. Said fees were ultimately distiibuted to the plain-

tiffs. (R. No. 2.)

19-3. Immediately after defendant Wescoast Broad-

1

casting Co., Inc., refused to enter into agreements on

the same terms as had been entered into with other de-

fendants, Wescoast was sued for an additional twenty-

eight infringements on which statutory damages would

be not less than $7,000 and not more than $140,000, plus

costs and reasonable attorneys' fees in such amount as

the court deems proper. (R. No. 26, p. 6.)

19-4. Each of the plaintiffs and the other members of

ASCAP share in the royalties and fees for performance

of music composed, published and owned by other mem-

bers of ASCAP. (R. No. 29, p. 7.)

19-5. Some of the plaintiffs had no knowledge of the

alleged infringements or that any action was being filed.

(R. No. 30, p. 7.)

19-6. Not all phonograph records are marked as to the

name of the licensing organizations that license the music

contained on the record. (R. No. 32, p. 8.)

19-7. Some of the ASCAP's members, including some

of the plaintiffs herein, have received thousands of dol-
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lars from advertising agencies or other commercial users

for the right to use one musical composition as a radio

or television commercial. (R. No. 34, p. 8.)

19-8. One advertising agency paid almost $100,000 for

the right to use one song published by one of the plain-

tiffs as a radio or television commercial. ( R. No. 36, p. 8.

)
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APPENDIX "C"

Defendants' Contentions of Fact

( Specification of Error No. 20

)

20-1. The plaintiffs, ASCAP, and the other members

of ASCAP, at all times pertinent hereto:

(a) Are two or more persons holding or claiming sep-

arate copyrighted works, under the copyright laws

of the United States, and |

(b) Have banded together and pooled their interests

for the purpose of fixing prices on the use of

said copyrighted works, and

(c) Have pooled their separate interests and con-

spired, federated and joined together for the pur-

pose of collecting fees in this state, and

(d) Have issued blanket licenses in this state, for the

right to commercially use or perform publicly their

separate copyrighted works, and

(e) Have not issued licenses to broadcasters or de-

fendants on rates assessed on a per piece system
of usage.

20-2. ASCAP licenses broadcasting stations on behalf

of its members under only two types of licenses, one of

which is called "Blanket" and the other "Per Program."

Both the per program license and the blanket license are

blanket licenses, that is, the user has the right to use

everything in the repertory without getting any special

permission. ASCAP does not offer broadcasters any other

kind of license.

20-3. At all times pertinent hereto, neither ASCAP nor

any of the plaintiffs has ever offered licenses to broad-

casting stations in the State of Washington where fees

are charged according to the number of performances

I
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broadcast, i.e., on a basis of so much money per perform-

ance for profit.

20-4. ASCAP does not now offer to broadcasting sta-

tions licenses based upon a per piece rate as described

in RCW 19.24, et seq.

20-5. Plaintiffs individually do not now oflFer such

licenses.

20-6. PlaintiflFs individually did not offer such licenses

at the time of the alleged infringement.

20-7. Neither ASCAP nor plaintiffs has ever issued

such a license to broadcasting stations in the State of

Washington, and no such licenses are in use in Wash-

ington.

20-8. The fees provided for in ASCAP's blanket and

per program licenses offered broadcasting stations in

Washington have no relation to the amount of ASCAP's

music that is played on a broadcasting station.

20-9. The filings (dated July 21, 1961, and August 7,

1962) made by ASCAP with the Secretary of State of the

State of Washington do not include any licenses for

broadcasting stations based upon a per piece system of

usage, and list the only licenses available to them as

blanket type licenses.

20-11. None of the plaintiffs has ever filed a copy of

any per piece license for use by broadcasting stations as

described in RCW 19.24, et seq., with the Secretary of

State.

20-12. The ASCAP membership contract contains the

following terms which have not been modified by the

consent decree:
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(a) "The Society agrees, during the term hereof, in

good faith to use its best endeavors to promote and
carry out the objects for which it was organized, and
to hold and apply all royalties, profits, benefits and
advantages arising from the exploitation of the rights

assigned to it by its several members, including the

Owner, to the uses and purposes as provided in its

Articles of Association (to which reference is hereby
made), as now in force or as hereafter amended.

(b) "The Owner hereby irrevocably, during the term
hereof, authorizes, empowers and vests in the Society

the right to enforce and protect such rights of public

performance under any and all copyrights, whether
standing in the name of the Owner and /or others,

in any and all works copyrighted by the Owner,
and/or by others, to prevent the infringement there-

of, to litigate, collect and receipt for damages arising

from infringement, and in its sole judgment to join

the Oicner and /or others in whose names the copy-

right may stand, as parties plaintiff or defendants in

suits or proceedings; to bring suit in the name of

the Oioner and /or in the name of the Society, or

others in whose name the copyright may stand, or

otherwise, and to release, compromise, or refer to

arbitration any actions, in the same manner and to

the same extent and to all intents and purposes as

the Owner might or could do, had this instrument

not been made.

(c) "The Owner hereby makes, constitutes and ap-

points the Society, or its successor, the Owner s true

and lawful attorney, irrevocably during the term
hereof, and in the name of the Society or its suc-

cessor, or in the name of the Otvner, or otherwise to

do all acts, take all proceedings, execute, acknowl-
edge and deliver any and all instruments, papers,

documents, process and pleadings that may be nec-

essary, proper or expedient to restrain infringements

and recover damages in respect to or for the in-

fringement or other violation of the rights of public

performance in such works, and to discontinue, com-
promise or refer to arbitration any such proceedings

or actions, or to make any other disposition of the
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differences in relation to the premises." (Agreement,
ibid. )

20-13. ASCAP has authority to settle these actions.

20-14. ASCAP, tlirough its agents and legal represen-

tatives, has at all times pertinent hereto threatened broad-

casting stations, including defendant, with suits for in-

fringement of copyrighted musical compositions claimed

by its members unless such stations sign one of the two

types of blanket licenses.

20-15. ASCAP, through its agents and representatives,

continues to make such threats.

20-16. ASCAP threatens to see that more suits for

alleged infringements of copyrighted musical composi-

tion claimed by its members are filed against defendant

and other broadcasting stations in Washington

20-17. Several broadcasting station defendants have

recently negotiated settlements of their suits. Immedi-

ately thereafter, plaintiffs herein and ASCAP threatened

to sue other stations unless they also settled.

20-18. Immediately after defendant Wescoast Broad-

casting Co., Inc., refused to settle on the same terms as

several other defendants had, Wescoast was sued for an

additional twenty -eight infringements, amounting to

$7,000.00 plus costs and attorneys' fees.

20-19. Several small radio stations recently sued by

ASCAP have had to settle by signing ASCAP blanket

licenses and pay the fees required thereunder because

of the tremendous costs of litigation and threats of fur-

ther prosecution.

20-20. Each of the plaintiffs, together with ASCAP,



I

16

realized the hardship and costs of htigation and relies

upon this fact as a means to intimidate and coerce sta-

tions into signing blanket licenses.

20-21. Each of the plaintiffs, with ASCAP, sued the

defendant and other defendants in a concerted campaign

to force defendant to sign a blanket-type license.

24-22. At all times pertinent, each of the plaintiffs and

ASCAP has:

(a) Attemped to use the federal courts as innocent
instrumentalities in the furtherance of a system-

atic campaign and scheme designed to illegally

fix prices for the commercial use of copyrighted

works in Washington, and

(b) Used extortionate means and terrorizing practices

based on threats of suits, and

(c) Abused both state and federal process.

20-23. The only licenses offered by ASCAP to radio

and television stations in the State of Washington require

that defendant subscribe to all of the music in ASCAP's

repertory, including the music of many composers and

publishers not a party to this action, whether defendants

desire the right to play that music or not and regardless

of whether defendants have played the music or ever

will play it.

20-24. So long as he remains a member, the member

may not assign or license the performance rights to

recording companies.

26-25. ASCAP is the only one who can license record-

ing companies. |

20-26. No one has asked for licenses for recording

companies authorizing broadcasting stations to perform
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musical compositions publicly for profit, because to do

so would have been useless and futile.

20-27. Broadcasters in the State of Washington have

not asked individual plaintiffs for licenses, because to do

so would have been useless and futile.

20-28. The plaintiffs, together, and with ASCAP and

the other members of ASCAP, at all times pertinent, and

now:

(a) Engage in and are parties to a combination, con-

spiracy and contracts, agreements and understandings

among themselves in unreasonable restraint of interstate

trade and commerce in music performance rights;

(b) Fix, stabilize, regulate and affect the price of

music and performance rights thereto, and establish and

maintain uniform and non-competitive prices for such

rights;

(c) Prohibit broadcasters from obtaining performance

rights to music on records with the purchase or other

acquisition of records, i.e., clearance at the source;

(d) Pool performance rights to music among them-

selves:

(e) Share in the royalties and fees for performance of

music composed, published and owned by other members

of ASCAP;

(f) Violate the provisions of the amended consent

judgment entered in the United States District Court

referred to above, by preventing them from having a gen-

uine economic and competitive choice between ASCAP

and individual member licenses and between blanket

and per program licenses;
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(g) Coerce and compel defendant and other broad-

casters, in order to continue in business, to acquire from

ASCAP one of two types of blanket licenses for the per-

formance rights to all the copyrighted musical composi-

tions in the ASCAP repertory, whether defendants and

other broadcasters have need for or actually use the same

or not;

(h) Coerce broadcasters to accept blind selling prac-

tices; '

(i) Condition the license of the rights of performance

for profit of usable or desirable music on the license of

their entire repertory which contains unwanted, unusable

and undesirable music;

(j) Make the so-called right to deal with individual

members of ASCAP, illusory because of the thousands

of ASCAP members, the hundreds of thousands of com-

positions involved, the rapidity at which music is com-

posed, published and popularized, the immediacies of

everyday broadcasting, and the charges demanded;

(k) Restrain competition among themselves in the per-

formance rights market place and stifle the ability of non-

members to market their music by practices of pooling

rights, price fixing, block booking, sharing fees and deal-

ing almost exclusively through ASCAP.

(1) Restrict incentive for ijoung and/or new composers

or writers;

(m) Tie the sale and purchase of poor music to good

music and thereby artificially equalize the reward to

members and prevent remuneration from being related

to quality;
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(n) Discriminate against broadcasters who must com-

pete with other users of music such as motion picture

theaters, recreation centers, symphonies and background

music disseminators by faikire to Hcense them, failure to

enforce copyrights, charging disproportionate fees and

granting them clearance at the source.

(o) Stifle the flow of music to the public and the in-

centive of would-be composers and authors to create new

music for the enlightenment and enjoyment of the pubhc.

20-29. A substantial portion of the license fees for per-

formance rights licensed to broadcasters represents the

cost of unused music.

20-30. All defendants have at all times here pertinent

been ready to negotiate and pay fees for the performance

of plaintiffs' or other copyright holders' copyrighted

works where the right to perform has been previously

acquired at the source as is the practice with networks,

jingles and transcribed programs.

20-31. All defendants have at all times pertinent been

ready to negotiate and pay fees for the right to perform

copyrighted works on records where such right has been

cleared for perforaiance by broadcasting stations.

20-32. All defendants have at all times here pertinent

been ready to negotiate and pay fees for the right to per-

form copyrighted music when fees are charged on the

basis of so much money per time a piece of music is

played.

20-33. Broadcasting stations compete with other broad-

casting stations and other entertainment businesses such

as nightclubs, restaurants, theaters, bowling alleys, sym-
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phonis and motion picture theaters for the pubHc's time

and attention.

20-34. Performance rights for music on motion picture

films, some jingles, transcribed programs and television

programs are negotiated on an individual basis.

20-35. Some stations, including the defendants herein,

do not desire to broadcast all types, kinds or styles of

music available.

20-36. It would be impossible for the defendants to

operate their radio stations without music licensed by

ASCAP.

20-37. The dissemination and commercial use of music

when performed publicly and broadcast by radio and

television stations is a business affected with the public

interest. Music is a commodity of general business neces-

sity and use throughout the United States.

20-38. Broadcast stations supply a necessity and their

business affects the public interest.

20-39. Radio stations affiliated with networks, other

than those originating networks broadcasting, have no

control over the selection of the musical compositions

which are performed on the network and received by

the affiliate.

20-40. Broadcasting is the principal medium through

which individual musical compositions are transmitted to

the ear of the public.

20-41. Blanket licenses destroy the incentive of broad-

casting stations and individual composers and authors to

bargain among themselves for performance rights and

destroy the incentive of broadcasters to perform the

I



21

music of composers and authors not members of the

blanket hcensing organization.

20-42. The "Blanket" and "Per Program" hcenses of-

fered by ASCAP both require payment charged upon

income received by broadcasters for time devoted to the

broadcasting of matters such as news, lectures, discussion,

pubhc events and sporting events, which employ none of

the copyrighted music of the plaintiffs or members of

ASCAP, or any music whatsoever.

20-43. The Federal Communication Commission re-

quires broadcasters to devote time to public events, pub-

lic issues and service, sporting events, discussion and

matters of current community interest which do not nor-

mally employ the use of music.



22

APPENDIX "D"

Specific Violations of the Federal Antitrust Lawa
Contended by Appellant in the Pretrial Order

(Specification of Error No. 42)

42-1. Unlawfully extending the copyright laws.

42-2. Acquiring a monopoly on the separate monopo- "

lies granted by the United States copyright laws in

derogation of such laws and the anti-trust laws.

i
43-3. Combining, conspiring and agreeing to restrain

trade or commerce in music, including the performance

rights of music, among the several states.

42-4. PooUng copyrights and fixing prices therefore,

and claiming rights under and entering into contracts,

agreements and undestandings among themselves, with

ASCAP and the other members of ASCAP, other persons

and organizations having or controlling music and rights

connected therewith, which restrict the use of music and

rights connected therewith.

42-5. Refusing to issue to defendants and other broad-

casters licenses based at a fee or rate which is assessed

on actual use or number of performances or licenses

for special catalogues of music such as western, reli-

gious, concert, as distinguished from existing blanket

type licenses.

42-6. Conditioning the license of performance for prof-

its rights of useable or desirable music on the license

of their entire repertory which contains unwanted, un-

useable and undesirable music.

42-7. Discriminating against defendants and other com-

I
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mercial users of music as to types of licenses offered,

prices charged, methods of collection, and means of

enforcement.

42-8. Issuing blanket licenses in the State of Wash-

ington which violate said state's laws.

42-9. Prohibiting broadcasters from obtaining perform-

ance rights to music on records with the purchase or

other acquisition of the records.

42-10. Refusing in concert with other music copyright

owners to issue music performance licenses which exclude

pre-recorded material which has been cleared at the source

for public performance.
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APPENDIX "E"

Specific Injunctive Measures Sought by Appellant
in the Pretrial Order

(Specification of Error No. 43)

43-1. Combining or conspiring or agreeing to restrain

trade or commerce in music, including the performance

rights of music, among the several states.

43-2. Claiming any rights under or entering into any

contract, agreement or understanding among themselves,

with ASCAP or the other members of ASCAP or other

persons or organizations having or controlling music or

rights connected therewith which restrict the use of music

or rights connected therewith.

43-3. Refusing to issue to defendants or other broad-

casters licenses of specialty catalogues or licenses based

on a system of usage at a fee or rate which is assessed

on actual use or number of performances and as distin-

guished from existing blanket license rates based on mu-

sic never used, and which fee or rate is economically

fair, practical and reasonable.

43-4. Block booking.

43-5. Discriminating among defendants and other com-

mercial users of music as to types of licenses offered,

prices charged, methods of collection, and means of

enforcement.

43-6. Issuing blanket licenses in the State of Washing-

ton which violate said state's laws.

43-7. Suing for infringment of plaintiffs' copyrighted

works until such time as plaintiffs comply with all pro-

visions the court may order, adjudge and decree, and
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until such times as plaintiflFs comply in all respects with

the laws of the State of Washington, the Federal anti-

trust laws and the Federal copyright laws.

43-8. Prohibiting record companies from obtaining

performance rights so as to enable broadcasters to per-

form music on recordings without obtaining a separate

performance rights hcense.

43-9. Refusing in concert with other music copyright

holders to issue music performance licenses which exclude

pre-recorded material which has been cleared at the source

for public performance.
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APPENDIX "F"

Statutes Involved

The Copijright Law

Section 1 of the Copyright Law, 17 U.S.C. Sec. 1 pro-

vides in pertinent part:

"Sec. 1. Exclusive rights as to copyrighted works

"Any person entitled thereto, upon complying with

the provisions of this title, shall have the exclusive

right: " ' "

« o o

"(e) To perform copyrighted work publicly for

profit if it be a musical composition; . .

."

Section 101 of the Copyright Law, 17 U.S.C. Sec. 101,

provides in pertinent part:

"Sec. 101. Infringement

"If any person shall infringe the copyright in any
work protected under the copyright laws of the

United States such person shall be liable:

"(a) Injunction.—To an injunction restraining such

infringement;

"h" Damages and profits; amount; other remedies.

—To pay to the copyright proprietor such damages
as the copyright proprietor may have oflFered due
to the infringement, " ° ° or in lieu of actual dam-
ages and profits, such damages as to the court shall

appear to be just, and in assessing such damages
the court may, in its discretion, allow the amounts
as hereinafter stated, * ° " and such damages shall

in no . . . case exceed the sum of $5,000 nor be less

than the sum of $250, and shall not be regarded as

a penalty."

Section 116 of the Copyright Law, 17 U.S.C. Sec. 116,

provides:
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Sec. 116. Costs, attorney's fees

"In all actions, suits, or proceedings under this

title, e.xcept when brought by or against the United
States or any officer thereof, full costs shall be al-

lowed, and the court may award to the prevailing

party a reasonable attorney's fee as part of the cost."

T)\e Sherman Act

Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. Sec. 1, pro-

vides in pertinent part:

"Every contract, combination in the form of trust

or otherwise, or conspiracy, in restraint of trade or

commerce among the several States, or with foreign

nations, is declared to be illegal ..."

Section 2 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. Sec. 2, pro-

vides in pertinent part:

"Every person who shall monopolize or attempt

to monopolize, or combine or conspire with any
other person or persons, to monopolize any part of

the trade or commerce among the several States, or

with foreign nations, shall be guilty of a misde-

meanor."

Section 3 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 14 provides,

in pertinent part:

"That it shall be unlawful for any person engaged
in commerce, in the course of such commerce, to

lease or make a sale or contract for sale of goods,

wares, merchandise, machinerv, supplies or other

commodities, whether patented or unpatented, for

use, consumption, or resale within the United States

or any Territory thereof or the District of Columbia
or anv insular possession or other place under the

jurisdiction of the United States, or fix a price

charged therefor, or discount from, or rebate upon,

such price, on the condition, agreement or under-

standing that the lessee or purchaser thereof shall

not use or deal in the goods, wares, merchandise.
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machinery, supplies or other commodities of a com-
petitor or competitors of the lessor or seller, where
the effect of such lease, sale, or contract for sale or

such condition, agreement or understanding may be
to substantially lessen competition or tend to create

a monopoly in any line of commerce."

Section 4 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 15, provides,

in pertinent part:

"That any person who shall be injured in his busi-

ness or property by reason of anything forbidden in

the antitrust laws may sue therefor in any district

court of the United States, in the district in which
the defendant resides or is found or has an agent,

without respect to the amount in controversy, and
shall recover threefold the damages by him sus-

tained, and the cost of suit, including a reasonable

attorney's fees."

Section 16 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. Sec. 26, pro-

vides, in pertinent part:

"Any person, firm, corporation, or association shall

be entitled to sue and have injunctive relief, in any
court of the United States having jurisdiction over

the parties, against threatened loss of damage by a

violation of the antitrust laws, including Sections 13,

14, 18 and 19 of this title, when and under the same
conditions and principles as injunctive relief against

threatened conduct that wall cause loss or damage
is granted by courts of equity, under the rules gov-

erning such proceedings, and upon the execution of

proper bond against damages for an injunction im-

providently granted and a showing that the danger
of irreparable loss or damage is immediate. .

."

Washin^on Statutes

RCW 19.24.020, provides, in pertinent part:

"It shall be unlawful for two or more persons hold-

ing or claiming separate copyrighted works under
the copyright laws of the United States, either with-
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in or without the state, to band together, or to pool

their interests for the purpose of fixing the prices

on the use of said copyrighted works, or to pool

their separate interests or to conspire, federate or

join together for the purpose of collecting fees in this

state, or to issue blanket licenses in this state, for

the right to commercially use or perform publicly

their separate copyrighter works: Provided, however,
such persons may join together if they issue licenses

on rates assesed on a per piece system of usage:

Provided, further. This act shall not apply to any
one individual author or composer holder or owner
who may demand any price or fee he or she may
choose for the right to use or publicly perform his

or her individual copyrighted work or works: Pro-

vided, fwfher. Such per piece system of licensing

must not be in excess of any per piece system in

operation in other states where any groups or per-

sons affected bv this act does business, and all groups
and persons affected by this act, are prohibited from
discriminating against the citizens of this state by
charging higher or more inequitable rates per piece

for music licenses in this state than in other

states. . .

."

RCW 19.24.040, provides, in pertinent part:

'In the event two or more persons holding sep-

arate convrighted musical works, or any rights flow-

ing therefrom, whether by assignment, agency agree-

ments, or by anv form of agreement, pool their in-

terests, or combine, or conspire, federate, or join

together in any way, whether for a lawful purpose
or othenvise. a complete list of their copyrighted

works or compositions shall be filed once each vear

in the office of the secretarv of state of the State

of Washington, together with a list of the prices

charged or demand for their various copyrighted

works; no payment or filing fee shall be required

bv the secretary of state, and said persons, corpora-

tions, or association, foreign or domestic shall state

therein under oath, that said list is a complete cata-

logue of the titles of their claimed compositions.
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whether musical or dramatic or of any other classi-

fication, and in addition to stating the name and

title of the copyrighted work it shall recite therein

the date each separate work was copyrighted, and

the name of the author, the date of its assignment,

if any, or the date of the assignment of any interest

therein, if any, and the name of the publisher, the

name of the present owner, together with the ad-

dresses and residences of all parties who have at

any time had any interest in such copyrighted work.

The secretary of state shall require two copies of

said list, one of which he shall keep on file, the

other shall be forwarded to the office of the state

Treasurer at Olympia."

RCW 19.24.050, provides, in pertinent part:

'The foregoing list of names and titles, provided

for in the preceding section, shall be made available

by the secretary of state to all persons for examina-

tion, in order that any user of copyrighted works in

this state may know the rights and the titles to such

copyrighted works as may be claimed by any of said

combinations, pools, associations, or persons as afore-

said; said lists shall be prepared so that all persons

may avoid using said copyrighted compositions, if

they so desire, and may avoid conflict therewith,

and avoid committing innocent infringements of said

works; and in order to further efi^ectuate the copy-

right laws of the United States, the secretary of state

shall, if he deems it necessary to protect the citizens

of this state from committing innocent violations of

the copyright laws of the United States, publish such

list once a year in a newspaper of general circulation,

in order that all citizens of the state may respect any

and all individual rights granted by the United States

copyright laws."

RCW 19.24.055 provides, in pertinent part: I

"No person, corporation, or association, domestic

or foreign, whether doing business in this state as

hereinafter defined or not, shall be absolved from the

foregoing duty of filing said list of holdings as
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required in the preceding sections of this chapter,

if their music or copyrighted works are used com-
mercially in this state, or have been used herein,

whether originating from a point within the state

or from without, and as long as any rendition there-

of is received or heard within the state, or is in-

tended to be so received by the originator of any
musical program; Provided, however. Any individual

owner of a copyrighted work or works, not a party

to or not connected in any way with any pool, con-

spiracy, combination, or groups, or associations of

persons, as prohibited by this chapter, need not file

any such Hst."

RCW 19.24.060 provides, in pertinent part:

"It is hereby declared that the production and
creation of music and the commercial use of music
and of copyrighted works within this state, whether
originating at a point from within or without the

state, as long as the same shall be rendered and
publicly received within the confines of this state,

whether mechanically or by radio communication,
is a big business clothed and affected with the

public interest and the adult educational advan-
tages engendered by the public use of music and in

its creation, makes this business one of public ne-

cessity, and necessary for the education and training

of the youth of this state; that many abuses are

practiced under a false guise of Federal protection

which only the state with its police power can
easily and lawfully restrain, and in order to pro-

hibit, discourage, and prevent monopolistic prac-

tices, and to prevent extortion, to encourage free

bargaining between the citizens of this state with
each other and with those without the state, and
in order to give greater effect to the constitutional

provisions relating to monopoly and price fixing, and
in the general interest of the public, therefore, the

legislature in the interest of the peace and dignity

of the state, in the interest of good morals and gen-

eral welfare of the people of this state, and for

greater educational advantages to the public, de-



32

clares that said business shall be subject to the

police power and reasonable regulation of the state

government, and such police and regulating power
shall be administered by the courts and other offi-

cials of this state in a manner consistent with, in

aid of, and never in conflict with the copyright laws

of the United States. The provisions of this act, and
the administration thereof, shall at all times effect-

uate the enforcement, the true intent, and meaning
of the United States copyright laws in order to pre-

vent abuses from being practiced within this state

from points within or from points without the state,

by any individual, corporation, or organizations, who
attempt to use the Federal courts as innocent in-

strumentalities in the furtherance of any systematic

campaign or scheme designed to illegally fix prices

for the commercial use of copyrighted works in this

state through the use of extortionate means and ter-

rorizing practices based on threats of suits, and an

abuse of both state and Federal process, all of

which are declared to be in violation of this act

and of the state constitution, and it is further de-

clared that any person or persons, or combines, as

aforesaid, who shall violate this act shall be deemed
to have used their property within this state in such

a way that the same shall have acquired a legal

situs, analogous to the situs of other personal tangi-

ble property within the state, even though separate

from the domicile and residence of the owner; Pro-

vided, further. The legal situs of any copyrighted

work is coextensive about the state, and a copyrighted

work used or sold for public use or public perform-

ance for profit, if intended to be heard from a point

without the state or from a point within the state,

is herebv declared to be a commercial commodity,
and its legal situs is hereby declared to be within,

the State of Washington."

(The balance of RCW 19.24.060 is also pertinent to

this case. It is recited in full in Appendix "A" which is

attached hereto. Paraphrasing it makes the "production,"

"creation" and "commercial use of music" in this state
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I business "clothed and affected with the pubUc interest"

ind of "pubhc necessity.")

RCW 19.24.100 provides, in pertinent part:

".
. . and all licenses of any violator of this chapter

shall be deemed as aiders and abettors of said per-

sons and subject to the provisions of this chapter

unless they forthwith indicate their obedience here-

with. . .

."

RCW 19.24.290 provides, in pertinent part:

"Every person, in addition to the other penalties

provided in this chapter, who violates or who pro-

cures, or aids or abets in the violating of any provi-

sion of this chapter, or who conspires to render

ineffectual any valid order or decision of any court

in the enforcement of this chapter, or who procures,

conspires with, or aids or abets any person or per-

sons in his or their failure to obey the provisions

of this chapter, or to render ineffctual any valid

order of any court in connection with the enforce-

ment of this chapter shall be deemed guilty of a

gross misdemeanor, and upon conviction, shall be
punished by a fine not exceeding five hundred dol-

lars ($500), or imprisonment in the county jail for

not more than six months (6), or both such fine

and imprisonment."

The Washington Constitution

Article XII, Sec. 22, of the Constitution of the State

of Washington, provides:

"Sec. 22. Monopolies and Trusts. Monopolies

and trusts shall never be allowed in this state, and
no incorporated company, co-partnership, or associa-

tion of persons in this state shall directly or in-

directly combine or make any contract with any
other incorporated company, foreign or domestic,

through their stockholders, or the trustees or as-

signees of such stockholders, or with any co-partner-

ship or association of persons, or in any manner
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whatever for the purpose of fi ing the price or Hmit-

ing the production or regulating the transportation

of any product or commodity. The legislature shall

pass laws for the enforcement of this section by ade-

quate penalties, and in case of incorporated com-
panies, if necessary for that purpose, may declare

a forfeiture of their franchise."
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APPENDIX "G"

Festimony of Rogan Jones, President of International

Good Music, Inc., and Wescoast Broadcasting Co.,

Owners of KGMI, Bellingham, Washington, and KPQ,
Wenatchee, Washington, respectively.

"The Witness: No, I am not trying to get

ASCAP's music for nothing. I think it might be
cleared at the source as it is for movies.

"There are two basic viewpoints in our position.

"One is that the juke box people get their music
for nothing and theaters get their music for noth-

ing. The record people get their music for a limited

amount.

"We add greatly to the value of all the music
that we play, which is the reason we get records

for nothing and for a discount price. We think that

we should have credit for this.

"And the other point is that we think that in the

land of free enterprise we should have the right to

bargain for the price we pay for these."

"The Court: In other words, what really disturbs

you is the fact that the juke box operators, by statute,

are in a preferred position?

"The Witness: Well, the theater people are, too.

"The Court: The theater people, don't they pay
for their music when they buy the film?

The Witness: We think we do when we buy a
record.

The Court: You mean the two cents?

"The Witness: Yes.

"The Court: And most of the records you get

for free?

"The Witness: Well, no, we get these records,

Your Honor, because of what we add to the value
of the record and the music that we play. This is the
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thing that is overlooked. We add to the value of the

music we play.

"The Coxmr: In other words, by playing music you
encourage people to buy records?

"The Witness: Correct, sir, and we thereby add to

the value of the copyright holder.

'Q. ( By Mr. Topkis ) : Mr. Jones, in the bargaining that

you indulge in with these composers, authors, pub-

lishers, which way would you contemplate payment
would go? Should you pay them or should they

pay you in this land of free enterprise?

"A. I am not sure whether some of them would not be
called to pay us. This is why we had payola."
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APPENDIX "H"

reslimony of Lincoln W. Miller, Assistant President,

Queen Citv Broadcasting Company, owner of KIRO
and KIRO-TV, Seattle, Washington.

"Q. (By Mr. Murphy) : Would it be commercially pos-

sible for a radio station to negotiate with ASCAP
as distinguished from its members for specific

compositions?

"A. For the right to use?

"Q. For the right of use—specific

—

"A. Individual compositions?

"Q. Right.

"A. I would certainly think not because, there again,

ASCAP is located clear to the other end of the

country, and for each tune we might be interested

in we would have to make a separate trip, good-

ness knows how many days talking, and we still

might not get it because the price might not be
right.

"Q. If you had a price list that was determined and
you could see, could you then?

"A. That could certainly expedite matters, yes.

"The Court: How would your position be im-

proved if you negotiated on a per piece basis? As
I understand it, you play music eight hours out of

twelve hours a day. What difi^erence does it make
whether you play Irs'ing Berlin or Cole Porter dur-

ing that period? You would have to pay for what
you are playing, wouldn't you?

"The Witness: Under the present arrangement,

certainlv, we pay for it on a blanket basis which
is simply a percentage of the gross income we take

in.

"The Court: Suppose you were paying on a per

piece basis. How would that improve your situation?

"The Witness: It could improve it substantially
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from the monetary standpoint because we would
then have a different price on these different pieces.

"The Court: So you can take out cheaper pieces?

"The Witness: Right, but some of the cheaper

pieces might be better for a balanced program, and

we might add to it, Your Honor.

"We try to adjust what we call the sound because

it is different from other stations so we might want
to play all western or all religious, so in the case

of our station we try to balance with a little bit of

everything, but if we knew what the price tags were,

this could well influence the kind of music we play

and balance with the kind of music we play. It

would certainly influence our decision because the

economics would be right in front of us. We would
be free to determine.

"Mr. Murphy: No further questions.

Testimony of James W. Wallace, General Manager,
Wescoast Broadcasting Company, Owner of KPQ,
Wenatchee, Washington.

"Q. (By Mr. Murphy): Mr. Wallace, would it be
expensive or (Page 210) inexpensive, or what
would be the effect if you had a list of all music

available and the price for each one of those pieces

of music? Could you allocate a price to music and

then pick and choose?

"Mr. Topkis: Objection.

"The Court: I am going to let him answer, but

I doubt whether he would be oualified to answer

the question. There are many different ramifications

in a plan of that kind, but I will be glad to hear

what you have to say, Mr. Wallace.

"The Witness: I started out as an engineer. I

keep index cards. I know exactly what music we play.

We have a list of it.

"As to how I arrive at kno\ving what the music

should be, I should give you a background. I have
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gone through all the offices, President of the Cham-
ber of Commerce, United Good Neighbors, Boy
Scouts of America (holder of the Silver Beaver

award); I am active in Rotary, Chamber of Com-
merce, and these things are all necessary for a small

town radio station man to know what the people

want.

"For one thing, almost sixty percent of our income
comes from sources other than music. 44 percent

is based on the F.C.C. hcense for that work, and
I can do it on any day or month that might be
desired, but still we are obligated under any con-

tract offered us by ASCAP to pay on the total ( Page

211) amount and not on that portion of the music

we need.

"To answer the question directly, with a list which
I have I can insert prices on it very readily if they

are available, and I would know exactly what our

music cost per day or per month or what would
be due ASCAP, and it would not be burdensome.

Festimony of Lee Facto, Vice President, International

Good Music, Owner of KGMI, Bellingham, Washing-
ton.

"The Witness: May I have the question, please?

"The Court: He said is that a feasible way of

doing business to deal with the composer on a per

piece basis?

"The Witness: Yes, I believe it is.

"The CotJRT: Have you done it recently?

"The Witness: No, sir, because at the present

time I do not believe at the present time it is prac-

tical, but that is not to say that it would not be
practical.

"Mr. Ronald Mlirphy: Would you explain this

to the court in your own words.

"Mr. Topkis: I object to that.
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"Mr. Ronald Murphy: In your owti words.

"The Witness: Well, I think it is a matter of

methodology only, not principle. For example, the

present method of doing business with respect to

copyrights came into being a long time ago. Since

that time there has been a great amount of progress

in all fields.

"We feel it would be very, very feasible to operate

on a per piece basis if we had access to the informa-

tion as to who owns the copyright.

"Mr. Topkis: I thought he wanted to deal vdth the

individual composer.

"The Court: Just a minute. You will have the right

to cross-examine.

"Q. (By Mr. Ronald Murphy): What about price?

Go ahead.

"A. As I say, I do feel that it would be practical to deal

indiviually with the composer or through a group

such as ASCAP on an individual, per play basis,

and I think this could well be very advantageous

to all concerned, particularly to a radio station in-

as much as this would allow them to bargain for

the price of the music as they do in anything else

they buy."

(Page 267 and lines 1-13, page 268, omitted. Com-

mencing with line 14, page 268 )

:

"The Wftness: Well, I feel that, first of all, you
need information as to who owns a particular piece

of music, and, secondly, information as to how much
you would have to pay to use the selection on a

one-time basis or on a three-time basis or on a five-

time or whatever the rate happened to be.

"Beyond this, once you have this information, I

believe most stations keep fairly good track of the

music they plav. Thev know exactly how many times

they play it. If they knew exactly how much it was
going to cost them to play it each time, they could

actually write the individual composer a check with-
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out authorizing an agreed procedure (p. 269) be-

tween the composer and the station and any group

of representing associates.

"The Court: Would you also take into considera-

tion the time in which the piece was played, whether
it was at midnight or six o'clock in the evening or

eight o'clock in the morning?

"The Witness: Well, if you had that on an indi-

vidual per piece basis, I think not, Your Honor.

"The Court: You think it does not make any dif-

ference and the listening public would not have any-

thing to do with how much you would pay?

"The Witness: No, frankly, I think there are a

great number of things which make up this product
which a radio station sells. Music is one of them.

There are news as has been in the testimony here;

there is talk about that music; there is personality;

there are all these other things. Now, it turns out

that music is the only thing which a radio station

is not allowed to bargain for as a practical matter
under the present methodology. This is what I pro-

pose or I am saying. I think there is a practical way
to do this to the benefit of everyone.

Lee Facto continued at line 7, page 284:

"Q. What kind of circumstances are those?

"Mr. Topkis: If Your Honor please, I press my
objection to his lack of qualifications.

"The Court: You have already covered this in

your direct. You cannot go back on that now. You
have covered this.

"Mr. Ronald Murphy: Well, if the court please,

I think there may be some confusion. I think he
should be able to explain what those circumstances

are. He should be able to make it clear on the record

what he means.

"The Court: Proceed. What are those circum-

stances?
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The Witness: The circumstances are where the

information as to the copyright held and the price

to be charged for the music is readily available on
the record, on a list in a catalogue of some sort so

that at the point of receiving the record we could

determine for this particular record and for this

amount of money do we want to play this record,

and if we decided at that time that the record was
worth the amount of money being asked, we would
pay it. If we determined that it wasn't we would
not play the record.

Mr. Ronald Murphy: No further questions.

Testimony of Rogan Jones, President, International

Good Music, Inc., owner of KGMI, Bellingham,
Washington and KPK, Wenatchee, Washington.

"Q. (By Mr. Murphy) If you had a list of music, and
that music had by it a cost of each individual

piece of music, can you operate your radio station

by referring to that list of music and paying a

certain price for it?

"Mr. Topkis: Is that a question at the end?

"Mr. Murphy: Yes.

"The Witness: Yes.

"Mr. Topkis : I object to it.

"The Court: Objection overruled.

"The Witness: We could do this very simply, very

economically and very practically.

"Q. (By Mr. Ronald Murphy) Would you explain this

to the court how it could be done?

"A. The music is picked in our case from these tapes,

but if we were going to live records there would
be no trouble in picking the music the day before

and then running down the prices that evening,

and if a price was too big, we could lay that one
aside and put on another piece with a price lower,

(page 303)

I
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"The Court: What would you regard as a price

too big?

"The WrrNESs: Well the—on the basis of the

present ASCAP contract, the price that we would
have to pay would be approximately five cents per

selection. This is on the basis of 2 plus per cent and
the approximate number of records that we play

per day.

"The Court: Then you think that five cents would
be too much?

"The WiT>fEss: No, I think five cents might not

be an unreasonable price, but as a free enterpriser

I think I ought to have a chance to bargain.

"The Court: Then what you object to is Judge
Ryan's stipulation that ASCAP is required to charge

the same rate to you as it does to a little station?

"The Witness : Yes.

"The Court: You think you are entitled to a little

advantage because you are bigger?

"The Witness: No, sir. May I illustrate, sir?

"The Court: Yes.

"The Witness: There are two automated stations

in Bellingham. One does about $1,800 a month in

gross business. We supply him his music on tapes,

and it is substantially the same music that we use

on our own station except that ours is announced
and his is unannounced, and we gross about twelve

to fifteen thousand dollars a month, and we spend
over and (p. 305) above what it costs for the music.

We spend a great deal of money on good announc-
ing, on good sports, on good news, on many things.

"But music is one of the verv basic costs of operat-

ing a good radio station. There are manv, many
thousands of dollars that go into other things not
connected with music, and we think we ought not

to have to nav a percentage of our gross in competi-
tion with this other boy that does not spend any-

thing. We think this is severe competition.
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"The Court: You charge more advertising rates

than other people?

"The Witness: Yes, sir, but we spend it back.

We spend it in many, many ways, sir. Our news-

man, our newsman gets about $800 a month. We
could hire one for $350, but he would not do as good

a job. I am talking about the local newsman, sir.

"We have a farm show where the farm editor gets

paid specially and doesn't run any music, but ASCAP
wants a percentage of this gross income.

"I would say that our music cost to put on music

on our station probably represents ten per cent of

our over-all expenses, and the other ninety per cent

has nothing to do with music.

"The Court: Do you select the compositions?

(p. 305)

"The Witness: No, sir, I do not. I can't even

play on the floor very well.

"The Court: Proceed. Is there any other question

of Mr. Jones?

'Q. (By Mr. Ronald Murphy) Does your station also

broadcast certain material which has been, the

music in connection with it, which has been, as

the term has been bandied about here, cleared for

;

performance, the music has been cleared?

"Mr. Topkis: Your Honor

—

"The Court: Objection overruled.

"Mr. Topkis: You are saving me wear and tear

on my vocal cords, Your Honor.

"The Witness: We get the network music, and

we get some of these promotional pieces like Wallace •

described, for our public sen/ice. As far as we know,

the music is cleared at the source of all that.

"Q. (By M. Ronald Murphy) If all performance rights

were indicated on the record as cleared, would

this—and had a price on it, could you then pick
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and select the music that you put on your station

according to that price?

"A. Oh, yes; that would be very simple, and we would
be in a position to pay as we would pay anybody
else for anything else, as our credit is good. Our
hands are clean, and we would have no objection

of we had the choice of what we could play or

didn't play, (page 307)

"Q. You have no choice now?

"A. No, not under an ASCAP contract. We pay a per-

centage of our gross, and to this then we object."

Rogan Jones continued, commencing on page 315,

line 19:

"The Wftness: My thinking, sir, is that if the

music were priced by separate pieces, that some
would be more expensive than others and that we
could use—we could then trade oiu- position so that

we could finally bring the price down to a reason-

ably equitable basis.

"The Court: Isn't it a fact that the tunes that you
do play are the result of public demand? You have
to play certain types of tunes; otherwise, people will

not listen to your station? (page 315)

"The Witness: Not necessarily, sir.

"The Court: You create the demand yourself?

"The Witness: No, but out of 200 pieces that we
play in a given day there are probably 500 pieces

that we could have played that day. We have to

use our own judgment as to what 200 out of the

500 to play. We do, however, do something that is

not customary in the industry. We have a daily,

six days a week, six hours a day, survey on an
audience of our station and all the stations in the

town, and in 48 months we have been number one,

40 months, number two. This we use as a guide in

the selection of our music." (page 316)
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APPENDIX "I"

McCANN-ERICKSON, INC.
800 BELL, HOUSTON, TEXAS 77002

February 14, 1964

Commercial Manager
Radio Station KGMJ
Bellingham, Washington

Re: Humble Oil & Refining Company
ASCAP License

Dear Sir:

As you may know, Humble Oil annually buys a spot

schedule of 60-second announcements in the summer.
This year, some of our commercials to be used will in-

corporate a composition which requires that all stations

using the material be licensed by ASCAP.

We have checked your station listing in the current

STANDARD RATE & DATA catalog. Nowhere in your
listing is information contained to indicate whether your

station is licensed by ASCAP.
|

Please indicate on the enclosed copy of this letter

whether or not you have an ASCAP license, and return

the information to this office promptly. Your attention .

to this matter will be greatly appreciated.
j

Repeating, your station will not be eligible to be con-

sidered for our summer spot scheduUng unless you do
have an ASCAP license.

Sincerely,

[Janice MEREorrH (Miss)]

Broadcast Traffic

DO HAVE ASCAP LICENSE

DO NOT HAVE ASCAP LICENSE

SIGNED STATION

CAPACITY DATE
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McCANN-ERICKSON, INC.
800 BELL, HOUSTON, TEXAS 77002

February 14, 1964

[Ilommercial Manager
Radio Station KWYZ
Everett, Washington

Re: Humble Oil & Refining Company
ASCAP License

Dear Sir:

As you may know, Humble Oil annually buys a spot

schedule of 60-second announcements in the summer,
rhis year, some of our commercials to be used will in-

corporate a composition which requires that all stations

using the material be licensed by ASCAP.

We have checked your station listing in the current

STANDARD RATE & DATA catalog. Nowhere in your
listing is information contained to indicate whether your

station is licensed by ASCAP.

Please indicate on the enclosed copy of this letter

whether or not you have an ASCAP license, and return

the information to this office promptly. Your attention

to this matter will be greatly appreciated.

Repeating, your station will not be eligible to be con-

sidered for our summer spot scheduling unless you do
have an ASCAP license.

Sincerely,

[Janice Meredith (Miss)]

Broadcast Traffic

DO HAVE ASCAP LICENSE

DO NOT HAVE ASCAP LICENSE

SIGNED STATION

CAPACITY DATE
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